
 

Page 1 of 4 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 21, 2020 

7:00 PM AT CITY HALL 

 

 
 
The meeting will ALSO be accessible via video conference and the public may access/participate in the 
meeting in the following ways: 
 
a) By dialing the phone number +13126266799 or +19292056099 or +12532158782 or +13017158592 or 
+13462487799 or +16699006833 and when prompted, enter the meeting ID (access code) 962 7287 1738. 
b) iPhone one-tap: +13126266799,,96272871738#  or +19292056099,,96272871738# 
c) Join via smartphone or computer using this link: https://zoom.us/j/96272871738.   
d) View the live stream on Channel 15 YouTube using this link: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCCzeig5nIS-
dIEYisqah1uQ  (view only).  
e) Watch on Cedar Falls Cable Channel 15 (view only). 
 
To request to speak when allowed on the agenda, participants must click “Raise Hand” if connected by 
smartphone or computer, or press *9 if connected by telephone. All participants will be muted by the presiding 
officer when not actually speaking. 

Call to Order by the Mayor 

Roll Call 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Regular Meeting of September 8, 2020. 

Agenda Revisions 

Special Order of Business 

2. Public hearing on proposed funding distribution of the State’s Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG-CV) funding relative to the CARES Act. 

a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published September 14, 2020) 

b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 

c) Staff comments. 

d) Public comments. 

e) Resolution approving an Application for State CDBG-CV Entitlement Funding relative to the 
CARES Act. 

3. Public hearing on a proposed ordinance granting a partial property tax exemption to Owen 5, LLC for 
construction of an industrial use shop/office facility at 1325 Rail Way. 

a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published September 14, 2020) 

b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 

c) Staff comments. 

1



 

Page 2 of 4 

d) Public comments. 

e) Pass an ordinance granting a partial property tax exemption to Owen 5, LLC for construction of an 
industrial use shop/office facility at 1325 Rail Way, upon its first consideration. 

4. Public hearing on a proposed ordinance granting a partial property tax exemption to Tjaden 
Properties, LLC for construction of an industrial use manufacturing/shop facility at 2800 Technology 
Parkway. 

a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published September 14, 2020) 

b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 

c) Staff comments. 

d) Public comments. 

e) Pass an ordinance granting a partial property tax exemption to Tjaden Properties, LLC for 
construction of an industrial use manufacturing/shop facility at 2800 Technology Parkway, upon its 
first consideration. 

5. Public hearing on a proposed ordinance granting a partial property tax exemption to Zuidberg NA, 
LLC for construction of an industrial use warehouse and office facility at 2700 Capital Way. 

a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published September 14, 2020) 

b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 

c) Staff comments. 

d) Public comments. 

e) Pass an ordinance granting a partial property tax exemption to Zuidberg NA, LLC for construction 
of an industrial use warehouse and office facility at 2700 Capital Way, upon its first consideration. 

6. Public hearing to consider entering into an Agreement for Private Development with Panther 
Builders, LLC. 

a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published September 14, 2020) 

b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 

c) Staff comments. 

d) Public comments. 

e) Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for Private Development with 
Panther Builders, LLC. 

Old Business 

7. Pass Ordinance #2969, amending Section 26-118 of the Code of Ordinances by removing property 
located north of West 27th Street and west of P E Center Drive from the A-1, Agricultural District, 
and placing the same in the P, Public District, upon its third and final consideration. 

8. Pass Ordinance #2970, amending Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of 
Ordinances relative to establishing a 4-way stop at the intersection of West 12th Street and Walnut 
Street, upon its second consideration. 

New Business 

2



 

Page 3 of 4 

Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate 
discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 

9. Receive and file a communication from the Mayor relative to the July 2020 Compost Facility Fire 
After-Action Review. 

10. Approve the recommendation of the Mayor relative to the appointment of Jordan Thomas Peterson 
as Student Liaison, term ending 04/30/2021. 

11. Receive & file the resignation of Andrew Morse as a member of the Human Rights Commission. 

12. Receive and file the City Council Work Session minutes of September 8, 2020 relative to Role of 
Human Rights Commission. 

13. Receive and file the FY20 Annual Report of the Operations & Maintenance Division. 

14. Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses: 
a) Pablo's Mexican Grill, 310 Main Street, Class B beer - renewal. 
b) Escapology Cedar Falls, 2518 Melrose Drive, Special Class C liquor - renewal. 
c) Holiday Inn & Suites Hotel/Event Center, 7400 Hudson Road, Class B liquor & outdoor service - 
renewal. 
d) Blue Room, 201 Main Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 
e) Little Bigs, 2210 College Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 
f) SingleSpeed Brewing Co., 128 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
g) The Brass Tap, 421 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
h) The Landmark, 107 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
i) Fareway Store, 214 North Magnolia Drive, Class E liquor - renewal. 

Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without 
separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered 
separately.) 

15. Resolution approving and authorizing submission of the City's FY20 Street Financial Report. 

16. Resolution levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to mow and clear overgrown 
vegetation on the property located at 1122 West 22nd Street. 

17. Resolution levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to mow the property located at 
234 Clark Drive. 

18. Resolution levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to mow and clear overgrown 
vegetation on the property located at 2013 Maplewood Drive. 

19. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement with Tempest, Inc. and iDSS 
Global, LLC for Customer Relationship Management Software for the Visitors and Tourism Division. 

20. Resolution approving six occupancy permits prior to the acceptance of public improvements in 
Western Home Communities Ninth Addition. 

21. Resolution approving a Central Business District (CBD) Overlay Zoning District site plan for facade 
improvements at 201 Main Street. 

22. Resolution approving the final plat of Chrisbro Subdivision, a Replat of Lot 3, Lockard Pines. 

23. Resolution approving and accepting the contract and bond of Feldman Concrete, for the 2020 
Sidewalk Assessment. 

24. Resolution approving and accepting the low bid of Boulder Contracting, LLC, in the amount of 
$277,914.28, for the 2020 Street Patching Project.  

3



 

Page 4 of 4 

25. Resolution approving and accepting the contract and bond of Boulder Contracting, LLC for the 2020 
Street Patching Project. 

26. Resolution approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the work of Lodge Construction 
Inc. for the 100 Block Alley Reconstruction Project. 

27. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Storm Water Maintenance and Repair 
Agreement with Trinity Bible Church relative to a post-construction stormwater management plan for 
125 Orchard Drive. 

28. Resolution approving and authorizing submission of an Iowa Clean Air Attainment Program (ICAAP) 
grant application to the Iowa Department of Transportation (IDOT) for Traffic Flow Improvements 
relative to the West 27th Street Reconstruction Project.  

29. Resolution approving and accepting the quote of Peterson Contractors, Inc., in the amount of 
$106,611.00, and authorizing expenditure of funds for the Mandalay Slope Stabilization Project. 

30. Resolution setting October 5, 2020 as the date of public hearing on a proposal to undertake a public 
improvement project for the Greenhill Road and South Main Street Intersection Improvements 
Project, and to authorize acquisition of private property for said project. 

Allow Bills and Payroll 

31. Allow Bills and Payroll of September 21, 2020. 

City Council Referrals 

City Council Updates 

Staff Updates 

Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics germane to City 

business.) 

Adjournment 

4



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, SEPTEMBER 8, 2020 

REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN PRESIDING 

  
The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, 
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member 
thereof, at 7:00 P.M. on the above date. The Mayor opened the meeting and 
announced that the meeting was being conducted electronically in conformance 
with the Governor’s Proclamation of Disaster Emergency to limit the spread of 
COVID-19. Members present: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, 
Dunn. Absent: None.  

 
52960 - It was then moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the minutes of the 

Regular Meeting of August 17, 2020 and Special Meeting of August 19, 2020 be 
approved as presented and ordered of record. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
52961 - Mayor Green announced that in accordance with the public notice of August 21, 

2020, this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed plans, 
specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2020 Street Patching 
Project. It was then moved by Darrah and seconded by Miller that the proof of 
publication of notice of hearing be received and placed on file. Motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
52962 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed plans, etc. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Civil Engineer 
Tolan provided a brief summary of the proposed project. There being no one else 
present wishing to speak about the proposed plans, etc., the Mayor declared the 
hearing closed and passed to the next order of business. 

 
52963 -   It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that Resolution #22,096, 

approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of 
cost for the 2020 Street Patching Project, be adopted. Following due 
consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon 
call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: deBuhr, Kruse, 
Harding, Darrah, Sires, Dunn, Miller. Nay: None. Motion Carried. The Mayor then 
declared Resolution #22,096 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52964 -  It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that Ordinance #2969, 

amending Section 26-118 of the Code of Ordinances by removing property 
located north of West 27th Street and west of P E Center Drive from the A-1, 
Agricultural District, and placing the same in the P, Public District, be passed 
upon its second consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the 
Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following 
named Councilmembers voted. Aye: deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, 
Dunn, Miller. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
52965 -  It was moved by Harding and seconded by Darrah that Resolution #22,097, 

5

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

adopting a face mask mandate for the City of Cedar Falls, be adopted.  
      The following individuals spoke in support of the proposed mandate: 
       Mark Nook, University of Northern Iowa President 
       Kendra Wohlert, 1416 Madison Street 
       Nate Didier, 501 Barbara Drive 
       Joyce Coil, 4404 Harvest Lane 

 Kathryn Sogard, Executive Director of College Hill Partnership, 330 
Columbia   Circle, Waterloo 

    Deb Bernard, 2922 Shady Lane 
       Jim Skaine, 2215 Clay Street        
 
      The following individuals spoke opposed to the proposed mandate: 

 Karen Bigelow Baker, 1826 Quail Run Lane 
 Thomas (T.J.) Frein, 1319 Austin Way 
 Craig Fairbanks, 405 Spruce Hills Drive 
 Zachary Thoma, 861 Maucker Road 

 
The following individuals provided general comments: 
 Jeremy Sulentic, 1008 Rocklyn Street 
 Rick Sharp, 1623 Birch Street 

 
    Following a comment by Councilmember Harding, it was then moved by Harding 

and seconded by Kruse to amend the resolution to state “face coverings for 
children aged 5 and above”. Following questions and comments by 
Councilmembers Dunn, Kruse and deBuhr, and responses by Black Hawk 
County Health Department Doctor Nafissa Cisse Egbuonye and City Attorney 
Rogers, the motion to amend carried 4-3 with Darrah, Dunn and Miller voting 
Nay. 

 
    Following questions and comments by Councilmembers deBuhr, Harding, Dunn 

and Kruse, and responses by City Attorney Rogers, it was moved by Kruse and 
seconded by Sires to further amend the resolution to state “strong 
recommendation” instead of “mandate”. Following discussion by 
Councilmembers Kruse, Miller, Dunn, deBuhr and Sires, the motion to amend 
failed with Harding, Darrah, Dunn and Miller voting Nay. 

 
Following additional comments by Councilmembers Miller, deBuhr and Dunn, the 
Mayor put the question on the original motion as amended, and upon call of the 
roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Harding, Darrah, Dunn, 
Miller. Nay: deBuhr, Kruse, Sires. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared 
Resolution #22,097 duly passed and adopted, as amended. 

 
52966 - It was moved by Harding and seconded by Kruse that the following items and 

recommendations on the Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved: 
 
Receive and file a proclamation recognizing the week of September 6-12, 2020 
as Suicide Prevention and Recovery Week. 
 
Receive and file a proclamation recognizing the week of September 17-23, 2020 

6

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

as Constitution Week. 
 
Approve the following recommendation of the Mayor relative to the appointment 
of members to Boards and Commissions.  
a) Nathan Arndt, Historic Preservation Commission, term ending 03/31/2022. 
 
Receive and file the City Council Work Session minutes of August 17, 2020 
relative to City Council Committee Structure. 
 
Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports for July 2020. 
 
Approve the following applications for cigarette/tobacco/nicotine/vapor permits:  
a) Panther Travel Center, 1525 West Ridgeway Avenue.  
b) United Wine & Liquor, 2211 College Street. 
 
Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses:  
a) Fleet Farm, 400 West Ridgeway Avenue, Class C beer & Class B wine - 

renewal.  
b) Fleet Farm Fuel, 108 West Ridgeway Avenue, Class C beer & Class B wine - 

renewal.  
c) Hampton Inn & Suites, 101 West 1st Street, Class C beer & Class B wine - 

renewal.  
d) Metro Mart, 103 Franklin Street, Class C beer - renewal.  
e) Murphy USA, 518 Brandilynn Boulevard, Class C beer - renewal.  
f)  Hilton Garden Inn, 7213 Nordic Drive, Class B liquor, Class B native wine & 

outdoor service - renewal.  
g) The Pump Haus Pub & Grill, 311 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service 

- renewal.  
h) Wilbo, 118 Main Street, Class C liquor - renewal.  
i)  Casey's General Store, 1225 Fountains Way, Class E liquor - renewal.  
j)  Chuck E. Cheese's, 5911 University Avenue, Class B beer – change in 

ownership.  
k) United Wine & Liquor, 2211 College Street, Class E liquor – new. 

 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
52967 - It was moved by Miller and seconded by Harding to receive and file the City 

Council Work Session minutes of August 26, 2020 relative to COVID-19 
Mitigation Options Discussion. Following a comment by Rick Sharp, 1623 Birch 
Street, and response by City Attorney Rogers, it was then moved by deBuhr and 
seconded by Kruse to amend the original motion to reflect that the meeting was 
held at a time that did not work for Councilmember deBuhr. The motion to amend 
carried unanimously. Mayor Green then put the question back on the original 
motion, as amended, and the motion carried unanimously.  

 
52968 - It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Miller to receive and file the City 

Council Work Session minutes of August 31, 2020 relative to COVID-19 
Mitigation Options Discussion. It was then moved by Kruse and seconded by 
Darrah to amend the original motion to reflect that the meeting was held at a time 

7

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

that did not work for Councilmember deBuhr. The motion to amend carried 
unanimously. Mayor Green then put the question on the original motion, as 
amended, and the motion carried unanimously.  

 
52969 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Miller that the following resolutions be 

introduced and adopted: 
 

Resolution #22,098, approving and authorizing execution of a Settlement 
Agreement and Release with JKC Investments, LLC relative to the Cyber Lane-
2018 Street Construction Project. 
 
Resolution #22,099, levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to 
mow the property located at 1227 West 22nd Street. 
 
Resolution #22,100, levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to 
mow the property located at 2208 Coventry Lane. 
 
Resolution #22,101, approving and authorizing execution of a Managed Content 
Licensing and Servicing Agreement with Gordon Flesch Company, Inc. relative to 
replacement of the City’s document imaging system. 
 
Resolution #22,102, approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the 
work of Peterson Contractors, Inc. for the Campus Street Box Culvert Project. 
 
Resolution #22,103, approving and accepting completion of public improvements 
in Prairie Winds 4th Addition. 
 
Resolution #22,104, approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental 
Agreement No. 2 to the Professional Service Agreement with Snyder & 
Associates, Inc. relative to the Union Road Recreational Trail Project – 12th 
Street to 27th Street. 
 
Resolution #22,105, approving and authorizing execution of a First Amendment 
to Agreement for Professional Services with Pathways Behavioral Services, Inc. 
for additional Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funding relative to 
the CARES Act. 
 
Resolution #22,106, setting September 21, 2020 as the date of public hearing on 
proposed funding distribution of the State’s Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG-CV) funding relative to the CARES Act. 
 
Resolution #22,107, setting September 21, 2020 as the date of public hearing on 
a proposed ordinance granting a partial property tax exemption for Owen 5, LLC 
for construction of an industrial use shop/office facility at 1325 Rail Way. 
 
Resolution #22,108, setting September 21, 2020 as the date of public hearing on 
a proposed ordinance granting a partial property tax exemption for Zuidberg NA, 
LLC for construction of an industrial use warehouse and office facility at 2700 
Capital Way. 

8

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 5 - 

 

 
Resolution #22,109, setting September 21, 2020 as the date of public hearing on 
a proposed ordinance granting a partial property tax exemption for Tjaden 
Properties, LLC for construction of an industrial use manufacturing/shop facility at 
2800 Technology Parkway. 

 
Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, Dunn, Miller. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolutions #22,098 through #22,109 duly 
passed and adopted. 

 
52970 -    A proposed resolution approving the recommendation of the Mayor to proceed 

with consideration of the removal of a Planning & Zoning Commissioner, failed 
for lack of motion.  

 
52971 -    It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Miller that Resolution #22,110, 

approving and authorizing execution of a lease relative to property vacated by 
the 2008 flood buyout programs, be adopted. Following appreciative comments 
by Councilmember Miller towards neighboring property owners, the Mayor put 
the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, Dunn, 
Miller. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #22,110 
duly passed and adopted. 

 
52972 -    It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Miller that Resolution #22,111, 

approving and authorizing execution of an Iowa Transportation Alternatives 
Program (TAP) Project Federal-Aid Agreement with the Iowa Department of 
Transportation (IDOT) relative to the Lake Street Recreational Trail Project – 
Central Avenue east to Big Woods Trail Connection, be adopted. Following a 
question by Councilmember Miller and response by Public Works Director 
Schrage, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the 
following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, 
Sires, Dunn, Miller. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared 
Resolution #22,111 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52973 -    It was moved by Harding and seconded by Darrah that Resolution #22,112, 

approving and authorizing payment, not to exceed $88,930.00, to River Place 
Properties, LC for brick paver upgrades to the Plaza public sidewalk in the event 
that an Amendment to the Agreement for Private Development with River Place 
Properties, LC is not executed, be adopted. Following a question by 
Councilmember Harding and response by Community Development Director 
Sheetz, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the 
following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, 
Sires, Dunn, Miller. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared 
Resolution #22,112 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52974 -    It was moved by Miller and seconded by Harding that Resolution #22,113, setting 

September 21, 2020 as the date of public hearing to consider entering into a 

9

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 6 - 

 

proposed Agreement for Private Development with Panther Builders, LLC, be 
adopted. Following a question by Councilmember Harding and response by 
Community Development Director Sheetz, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, Dunn, Miller. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #22,113 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52975 -  It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Harding that Ordinance #2970, 

amending Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances 
relative to establishing a 4-way stop at the intersection of West 12th Street and 
Walnut Street, be passed upon its first consideration. Public Works Director 
Schrage provided a summary of the proposed ordinance and responded to 
questions by Councilmembers Kruse and Sires. The Mayor then put the question 
on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers 
voted. Aye: deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, Dunn, Miller. Nay: None. 
Motion carried. 

 
52976 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Darrah that the bills and payroll of 

September 8, 2020 be allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City 
Treasurer be authorized to issue City checks in the proper amounts and on the 
proper funds in payment of the same. Upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, Dunn, 
Miller. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
52977 - It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Kruse to refer the next City Council 

meeting consideration to return to Council Chambers for in-person Council 
Meetings. Following comments by City Attorney Rogers and Mayor Green, the 
motion carried unanimously. 

 
  It was moved by Dunn and seconded by Kruse to refer to the Committee of the 

Whole parking issues around the Place to Play Park. Following comments by 
Councilmembers Kruse, Sires, Miller and Darrah and responses by City 
Administrator Gaines and Community Development Director Sheetz, 
Councilmember Dunn withdrew the motion. 

 
52978 - Councilmember Miller announced that Principal Engineer Fitch was leaving the 

City and expressed appreciation for his service. 
 
  Councilmember Harding encouraged the public to continuing supporting the local 

bars and businesses. 
 
52979 -  Mayor Green responded to questions and comments by Rick Sharp, 1623 Birch 

Street, Thomas (T.J.) Frein, 1319 Austin Way, and Jeremy Sulentic, 1008 
Rocklyn Street, regarding the mask mandate enforcement and signage 
responsibilities. 

 
    Rick Sharp, 1623 Birch Street, and Josh Wilson, 100 East 2nd Street, 

commented on Council Meetings being open to the public and returning to 
Council Chambers, and Mr. Wilson expressed appreciation to City Attorney 

10

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 7 - 

 

Rogers for taking time to speak with him recently. 
 
  Thomas (T.J.) Frein, 1319 Austin Way, requested temporary solutions for the 

parking issues at the Place to Play Park. 
 
  Bob Manning, 2908 West 3rd Street, Executive Officer of Cedar Valley Home 

Builders, announced the Cedar Valley Parade of Homes event, September 17-
20, 2020.  

 
Jim Skaine, 2215 Clay Street, commented on the proclamation recognizing the 
Constitution and requested the term “germane” be removed from agendas. 

 
52980 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the meeting be adjourned 

at 9:35 P.M.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
     ________________________________ 
  Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

11

Item 1.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Administration Division 

  

  

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 TO: Mayor Green and City Council  

 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development 

 DATE: September 15, 2020 

 SUBJECT: Public Hearing: State award of CARES Act Community Development  
  Block Grant funds (CDBG-CV)  
 
 
In April 2020, the CARES Act was passed in response to COVID-19.  The State notified 
us in mid May that a portion of the State’s CDBG funds were anticipated to be 
proportionally allocated to Entitlement Communities.  Cedar Falls is a CDBG 
Entitlement Community and could receive $369,432 of State CDBG-CV funds.  On 
August 14th we were notified that the crucial Federal Register Notice occurred and 
applications were due to the State by September 1, 2020.   We are required to hold a 
local public hearing related to the projects requested for funding. 
 
CDBG-CV funds are to support activities that prevent, prepare for, and respond to 
coronavirus.  Because they are CDBG funds, we must also meet a National Objective 
such as benefit to low- and moderate- income (LMI) persons; aid in the prevention or 
elimination of slums or blight; and/or meet an urgent need.  During the pandemic, many 
CDBG programs have looked to fund public service agencies.  This includes a range of 
non-profit organizations that provide services such as job training, fair housing 
counseling, health services, services for senior citizens, housing for homeless, and the 
like.  Cedar Falls distributed a Request for Proposals (RFP) for service agencies, 
seeking proposals to be used by the local CDBG-CV funds we received and approved 
in May 2020 ($32,132).  The response to the RFPs was well over the funds we have 
available, therefore we propose utilizing State funding of $88,250 toward service 
agencies and the staff time needed to monitor contracts and report compliance. 
 
The remainder of the funding is proposed for park upgrades at Gateway Park and 
Seerley Park.  Both are within low to moderate income census block groups.  
Improvements would include changing the woodchip surface to rubber mats to make the 
areas cleaner and more accessible for those with physical challenges.  Each park would 
also have two additional play structures that can be used by kids with disabilities.  The 

12

Item 2.



proposed funding for the improvements and staff time to develop bid documents and 
ensure federal compliance would total $281,182. 
 
Staff recommends holding the public hearing on the proposed funding distribution of the 
State’s CDBG-CV funding to Cedar Falls.  Attached is the application submitted to the 
State. 
 
Please contact me with any questions.   Thank you. 
 
 
Attachments:  Cedar Falls Entitlement Application 

13

Item 2.



 

 

Entitlement CDBG-CV Application 

Name of City: Cedar Falls 
 
Allocation Amount: $369,432.00 
 
General Considerations:  

1. 70% of funds must be for Low-to Moderate Income Activities.    
2. Include maps of targeted areas (if applicable) 
3. Estimate the amount of funds allocated to activity delivery cost per unit or individual activity.   Activity delivery 

cost will be the source of administration dollars for your city to administer these funds.  HUD put out a CPD 
Notice about activity delivery costs vs. general administration costs:  
https://files.hudexchange.info/resources/documents/Notice-CPD-13-07-Allocating-Staff-Costs-Program-
Administration-Delivery-Costs-CDBG.pdf.   

4. This is a non-competitive application.   IEDA is seeking information on how you will expend your allocation 
(referenced above) of IEDA’s CDBG-CV second allocation funds. 

5. Funds will need to be expended by 7/20/25 
6. 80% of the funds must be spent by 7/20/23 
7. Unless waived or modified by the Federal Register Notice, all state CDBG regulations will govern these funds.   

 
Submit with the Application: 

1. Cover Page:  The application must be accompanied by a letter on City letterhead signed by the Chief Elected 
Official authorizing IEDA to consider the application 

2. Applicant Disclosure Report:   https://www.hud.gov/sites/documents/2880.PDF 
3. Federal Assurances Signature Page:  

http://www.iowaeconomicdevelopment.com/userdocs/documents/ieda/FEDERALASSURANCESSIGNATUREPAG
E.doc  

4. Public Hearing minutes and the notification of the public hearing.  Instructions for the public hearing can be 
found on the next page. 

 
Origin of Funds:  HUD announced on May 11,2020 the availability of a second round of $1 billion in CDBG-CV funds for 
states which allowed them to fund activities in entitlement areas:  
https://www.hud.gov/sites/dfiles/CPD/documents/Revised_CDBG-CV2_Methodology.pdf.    The state decided to 
allocate these funds to entitlements based upon population.    
 
HUD has also released a Federal Register notice about the funds https://www.hud.gov/sites/dfiles/CPD/documents/FR-
6218-N-01-CDBG-CV-clean-8-7-20-header-for-posting.pdf  
 
Program Descriptions:   Please answer the questions starting on the next page for each program.   There can be more 
than three programs, complete the questions for as many programs as you plan to fund.   The programs should meet the 
needs of the COVID-19 response for your community. 
It will be important to remember that a Duplication of Benefits will be required for these funds.   IEDA will work with you 
on developing forms and submission requirements to assure that funds will not be duplicated and that there is still an 
unmet need that these CDBG-CV dollars can meet.   
 
Next Steps:   After your community submits the entitlement application, it will be reviewed by IEDA staff and approved 
by our Director.   IEDA will be unable to send an award letter or contract until HUD issues the CDBG-CV funds Federal 
Register notice.   Once published, IEDA will notify you to determine in any other application materials will need to be 
submitted before IEDA can send you an award letter and contract.       
 
 

14

Item 2.

https://files.hudexchange.info/resources/documents/Notice-CPD-13-07-Allocating-Staff-Costs-Program-Administration-Delivery-Costs-CDBG.pdf
https://files.hudexchange.info/resources/documents/Notice-CPD-13-07-Allocating-Staff-Costs-Program-Administration-Delivery-Costs-CDBG.pdf
https://www.hud.gov/sites/documents/2880.PDF
http://www.iowaeconomicdevelopment.com/userdocs/documents/ieda/FEDERALASSURANCESSIGNATUREPAGE.doc
http://www.iowaeconomicdevelopment.com/userdocs/documents/ieda/FEDERALASSURANCESSIGNATUREPAGE.doc
https://www.hud.gov/sites/dfiles/CPD/documents/Revised_CDBG-CV2_Methodology.pdf
https://www.hud.gov/sites/dfiles/CPD/documents/FR-6218-N-01-CDBG-CV-clean-8-7-20-header-for-posting.pdf
https://www.hud.gov/sites/dfiles/CPD/documents/FR-6218-N-01-CDBG-CV-clean-8-7-20-header-for-posting.pdf


 

 

 
 
Overall Budget (add as many lines as you need): 

 

Program Amount of Funds Activity Delivery Cost Per Unit or 
Individual Activity 

National objective 

1-Service Agencies Support $81,000 $7,250 Low-to Moderate Income 

2- Neighborhood 
Recreational Amenities (i.e 
Parks, Playgrounds, Trees) 

$261,500 $19,682 Low-to Moderate Income 

3-  _____ ____ NA 

Total amount $344,500 $29,250  

 

Public Hearing Instructions:      

The purpose of the hearing is to make the public aware of the application to IEDA to spend the CDBG-CV funds allocated 

to the City.   

Publication: The public hearing notice must be published no more than 20 days and no less than 4 days from the date of 

the public hearing.   The notification should follow the Cities normal protocols for publication.   These can be in the 

paper, posted, or electronically posted.  

Public Hearing:  The City should follow their normal public hearing protocols.   These can be virtual or in-person.  The 

public hearing must include:  

1. Need for the CDBG project  
2. Description of the CDBG funded project & activities 
3. The amount of CDBG funds for the project 
4. Estimated amount of CDBG assistance that will benefit low-and moderate-income persons 
5. The location of project activities 
6. Any relocation that will have to take place because of the CDBG project  
7. City/ County contact information for residents to contact with concerns or complaints regarding the project 
8. Community Development and Housing Needs of low to moderate persons in the City and any planned or 

potential activities to address these needs.    The City should ask for public input on this item and include public 
comments in the minutes. 

9. Other Community Development and Housing needs and any planned or potential activities to address these 
needs.  The City should ask for public input on this item and include public comments in the minutes. 
 

Minutes:   The public hearing minutes from the hearing must include the information provided at the hearing on the 9 

points listed above.   

 

  

15

Item 2.



 

 

  

Program Descriptions (add as many as you need): 

Program 1 Name: Local Service Agencies Support 
 

1. Eligible Activity:  Cedar Falls requested proposals from service agencies to support work with Low-to Moderate 

Income persons needing assistance either preparing, preventing, or responding to the coronavirus.  In Cedar 

Falls’ FFY2019-2023 Consolidated Action Plan it was noted that “...the City is financially supporting service 

providers that can accommodate special needs populations using their expertise and facilities, thus preventing 

duplication of services in the community.  An additional strength is the sheer number of agencies, organization, 

and entities that can offer services to the community.  Gaps include those caused by funding limitations and an 

apparent lack of service education for residents and provider coordination.”   Cedar Falls would like to utilize a 

portion of the CDBG-CV funds through the State to respond to needs created by COVID-19, that we received 

from Pathways Behavioral Services, Jesse Cosby Neighborhood Center, Exceptional Persons, Inc., Ethnic 

Minorities of Burma Advocacy & Resource Center (EMBARC), and Eastside Ministerial Alliance, Inc. 

 

2. National Objective (if LMI, discuss how you will determine LMI): LMI – Each service agency will complete income 

verification for individuals/family served using the 2020 income limits: 

 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

Extremely 
Low Income 

$15,250 $17,400 $21,720 $26,200 $30,680 $35,160 $39,640 $44,120 

Very Low 
Income 

$25,400 $29,000 $32,650 $36,250 $39,150 $42,050 $44,950 $47,850 

Low Income $40,600 $46,400 $52,200 $58,000 $62,650 $67,300 $71,950 $76,600 

 

3. Funds allocated to the Program: $88,250 

 

4. Description of the program: 

 Pathways Behavioral Services – Funding to support the costs of providing substance abuse treatment and 
detox at their residential units.  To prevent the spread of COVID-19, they have reduced room capacity from 
the normal two occupants per bedroom to one per bedroom.  Facility and staff costs remain the same, 
however.  Therefore, support is needed to continue to provide this facility and service to income-eligible 
Cedar Falls residents.  This is a need that would not have occurred but for COVID-19 impacts. 

 Jesse Cosby Neighborhood Center – Serves low and no income individuals and families who are at or below 
the poverty level.  They target individuals who have either lost their jobs, been laid off work, have lost their 
homes and are struggling to support themselves and their families.  The Center proposes to expand their No 
One With Out A Home program, to meet the needs of clients impacted by COVID-19. The CDBG-CV funds 
will be used for deposits, rent and utilities.  This is a new service by this agency in Cedar Falls. 

 Exceptional Persons, Inc. (EPI) – This agency provides residential services to persons with behavioral health 
concerns, intellectual disabilities, & brain injuries, typically in group home settings.  Rental assistance to 
income-eligible existing clients and new clients in Cedar Falls is requested.  Many have been out of work 
since mid-March due to temporary business closure and reduced staffing needs.  This is an increase in 
service due to the need for financial support covering rents that would not have been needed but for 
COVID-19 impacts. 

 Ethnic Minorities of Burma Advocacy & Resource Center (EMBARC) – This organization helps refugees 
integrate and become self-sufficient.  Income-eligible interns would be paid a stipend in return for helping 
refugees in the area to meet their basic needs like food and shelter as well as to reduce their language and 
literacy barriers by translating.  In addition, interns would translate information for increasing awareness, as 
well as prevention and response efforts to coronavirus, for refugees in Cedar Falls.  This is a new service by 
this agency in Cedar Falls. 

16

Item 2.



 

 

 Eastside Ministerial Alliance, Inc. (EMA) – Funding to mitigate the impacts of poverty is requested.  CDBG-
CV funds would be used to provide financial assistance for those with a three-day notice of eviction, due to 
late rent or mortgage.  The requests for support have greatly increased, with many unemployed 
individuals/families seeking assistance.  Households in crisis, complete an application where their income 
eligibility is determined and based on that, a payment of $100-250 is made to support their needs.  This is a 
new service by this agency in Cedar Falls. 

 
5. Describe the criteria that will be used to select applications and the relative importance of these criteria:  Cedar 

Falls received seven responses to the Request for Proposals.  Initially, we had only our local CDBG-CV 

entitlement funds.  These have been quickly used and more need exists.  With the State CDBG-CV funds, we 

would fund five of the agencies.  Their work closely aligned with preparing, preventing and responding to 

coronavirus showing an increased need due to the pandemic.  These agencies also demonstrated an 

understanding of the local community and how to track their services including completing income eligibility 

determinations. 

 

6. Describe threshold factors and anticipated award amounts:  The requests for funding ranged from $6,000 - 
$40,000.  We would like to fund all of them, at the amount requested. 
 

7. Estimate on the number of families assisted: 100 

 

8. Describe how the planned activity targets public health, coronavirus, and housing and economic disruption 

needs directly:  The services the agencies provide range from substance abuse treatment; homelessness; 

support to individuals with behavioral health concerns, intellectual disabilities, & brain injuries; refugees; and 

rent/mortgage payments after eviction notice.  These are some of our most vulnerable populations when it 

comes to economic disruption.  Assistance is targeted to those affected by the coronavirus, having lost a job 

(Jesse Cosby, EPI, EMA) or working to support others (Pathways, EMBARC). 

 

9. Describe how this program will help you expend 80% of your funding by 7/20/2023:  All service agencies 

anticipate the funding requested would be utilized by the end of 2021.  Not knowing the extent or length of the 

pandemic, none wished to request more at this time.  The service agency request by Cedar Falls is $88,250 (24% 

of the overall funds). 

 

10. Please list dates and percentages to reach 80% by 7/20/2023: The service agency request by Cedar Falls’ is 

$88,250 (24% of the overall funds). 

 

Date Amount of Funds Percentage of Funds 

7/20/2021 $58,833 66% 

7/20/2022 $29,417 100% 

 

  

17

Item 2.



 

 

Program 2 Name: Neighborhood Recreational Amenities 

1. Eligible Activity: Cedar Falls FFY2019-2023 Consolidated Action Plan described the need for additional and 
improved public facilities.  This included bus shelters, park playground, sidewalk and trail improvements.  Since 
the City has a $70,000 sidewalk infill project in LMI areas contracted currently and with its FFY20 Annual Action 
Plan plans another $160,000 toward this, park playground improvements is our next priority.    This is especially 
important during the pandemic, as emphasis on outdoor interactions (versus indoor) and social distancing are 
key actions. HUD allows the use of CDBG funds for public facilities and improvements (24 CFR 570.201(c)).  This 
includes improvements to parks and playgrounds.  Such facilities are integral to the quality of life for community 
residents and open to the general public. 
 

2. National Objective (if LMI, discuss how you will determine LMI) Two parks under consideration are shown on the 
attached map.  Within Gateway Park’s service area, 8 block groups with an LMI over 51% are served.  This is also 
within the elementary school boundary that has the highest percentage of free/reduced lunches: North Cedar 
Elementary.  Seerley Park’s service area serves 4 block groups with an LMI over 51%.  Both of these parks are in 
LMI target areas. 
 

Park Type Size Service Area 

Gateway Community 13.2 1-2 miles 

Seerley Neighborhood 2.5 .25-.5-miles 

 
3. Funds allocated to the Program: $281,182 

 
4. Description of the program:  We have playgrounds that need improvements to their play surface and additional 

equipment to better serve the children in our community, especially to allow those with disabilities to use our 

playgrounds.  These improvements would be in parks specifically benefitting individuals and families within LMI 

target areas.  Children of all ages and abilities should be able to play in our parks.  The City proposes to remove 

woodchip surfaces in two playgrounds, replacing it with rubber mats.  This has been met with much success in 

the elementary school playgrounds.  We also propose to add at least two play structures that can be used by 

kids with disabilities, in each park.  Cedar Falls recently opened an inclusive park and it has been wildly popular.  

It attracts kids and families from all over the community.  We would repeat popular elements of that 

playground, with this proposal to expand into other parks with inclusive play structures.  A solid play surface 

under the expanded playground area would be installed.  If any additional sidewalk connection is needed from 

parking lot or existing playground, to the expanded area, that would be part of this project.  The cost for 

equipment, materials, and time to construct/install would be part of this program.  Activity delivery time 

includes preparing plans for bidding, following federal requirements in bidding and construction, and processing 

payments.  If the program is approved, the City would create detailed plans and cost estimates for the projects, 

within the funding available.  After that, the project would be bid for work to occur in 2021.   

 

5. Describe the criteria that will be used to select applications and the relative importance of these criteria:  This 
project proposes improvements to City facilities open to the public, with a focus in Low to-Moderate Income 
areas.   It would be publicly bid to select equipment, materials, and a contractor to complete the work. 

 
6. Describe threshold factors and anticipated award amounts: The amount available for parks projects has been 

based on remaining CDBG-CV funds after first supporting the full requests of area service agencies.  The 
remainder is then proposed toward park projects aimed at improving parks that are in LMI areas and serve 
several LMI block groups.  The enhancements will allow kids of all physical and mental abilities to play on the 
playground, supporting getting outdoors and supporting physical and emotional wellbeing during the pandemic. 

18

Item 2.



 

 

 
7. Estimate on the number of families assisted:  Gateway and Seerley Parks will be improved.  Within Gateway 

Park’s service area (2 miles), 8 block groups with an LMI over 51% are served.  We estimate 9,185 households.  
Seerley Park’s service area (1/2 mile) includes 1,649 households and serves 4 block groups with an LMI over 
51%.  Both of these parks are in LMI target areas. 
 

8. Describe how the planned activity targets public health, coronavirus, and housing and economic disruption 
needs directly:  Humans need both interaction and physical activity.  A park is the perfect place for kids and 
families to meet this need.  Therefore this project is a direct way to provide for such needs, in a way that 
responds to the coronavirus, while encouraging outdoor interaction and physical distancing.  Therefore, it can 
also be a way to prevent spread.  Parks serve nearby neighborhoods.  They can be used whether sheltering in 
place or simply trying to reduce or distance interactions since they are in a larger outdoor space.  Families are 
looking for outdoor recreation where a picnic lunch, afternoon laying under a tree, or kids playing on the 
playground can occur.  In addition, parks are free and available from sunrise to sunset.  Families of any income 
may use any of the parks.  Families that are unemployed may be more likely to use parks as a way to provide 
activities for their kids that do not cost anything.  The City’s parks directly respond to economic disruption by 
providing opportunities for all.  
 

9. Describe how this program will help you expend 80% of your funding by 7/20/2023:  The project(s) would be bid 

in Spring 2021, for completion no later than November 2021.  This program request by Cedar Falls is $281,182 

(76% of the overall funds). 

 

10. Please list dates and percentages to reach 80% by 7/20/2023: 

Date Amount of Funds Percentage of Funds 

7/20/2021 $70,295.50 25% 

7/20/2022 $210,886.50 100% 

 

19

Item 2.



ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

  

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: September 14, 2020 

 SUBJECT: Owen 5, LLC (K Cunningham Construction) - Industrial Partial Property 
Tax Exemption 

  1325 Rail Way in Northern Cedar Falls Industrial Park 
 
On June 3, 2019, City Council approved a Development Agreement with Owen 5, LLC 
for a new 10,000 sf. industrial use shop and office facility located within the Northern 
Cedar Falls Industrial Park.  Work on the $1,200,000 new building at 1325 Rail Way 
began last year and has recently been completed. 
 
As part of the executed Development Agreement approved by City Council, the City of 
Cedar Falls committed to the following actions: 
 

1. Transfer of Lot 16, Northern Viking Road Industrial Park Phase I Addition to 
Owen 5, LLC (Completed).   

 

2. Adoption of an Ordinance granting a partial exemption from taxation of industrial 
property as may be provided by Sections 21-48 through 21-57 of the Cedar Falls 
Code of Ordinances, and by Chapter 427B, Code of Iowa, with respect to the 
Development Property. 
 

Item #1 noted above was completed in June 2019.  The remaining item to be completed 
by the City of Cedar Falls as part of the Development Agreement is formal adoption of a 
Partial Property Tax Exemption Ordinance. Since construction of the new building has 
been completed, it is now necessary to move forward with Ordinance adoption. 
 
The applicable 5-Year Partial Property Tax Exemption schedule is estimated as follows 
based upon the $1,200,000 valuation of the Owen 5, LLC building, 10% 
commercial/industrial valuation rollback, and the FY21 tax rate of $33.13/$1,000 
valuation ($35,785 annually): 
 
 
 

20

Item 3.



 
  Exemption % Exempt $ Amount Paid $ Amount 
 
Year 1  75%   $26,839  $8,946 
Year 2  60%   $21,471  $14,314 
Year 3  45%   $16,103  $19,682 
Year 4  30%   $10,735  $25,049 
Year 5  15%   $5,368  $30,417 
     $80,516  $98,408 
 
Staff recommends that in accordance with our executed Development Agreement, City 
Council approve and adopt the following ordinance through the normal three reading 
process: 
 

1. Ordinance establishing a partial property tax exemption on the actual value 
added to real estate by new construction consisting of a 10,000 square foot 
industrial use warehouse and office facility constructed on property owned by 
Owen 5, LLC, located at 1325 Rail Way, Cedar Falls, Iowa.  

 

If you have any questions pertaining to this memorandum or project, please feel free to 
contact me. 
 
xc:  Ron Gaines, P.E., City Administrator 
       Joe Owen, Owen 5, LLC 
 

 
 
 

21

Item 3.



No
rth

ern
 D

r

Le
ve

rse
e R

d

Hw
y 2

18

Rail Way

Project Location

Owen 5, LLC
10,000 square foot
Shop/Office

ECI Coop

I

Standard Distribution

22

Item 3.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Prepared by: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, (319) 273-8600 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ______ 
 
AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A PARTIAL PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTION OF THE 

ACTUAL VALUE ADDED TO REAL ESTATE BY NEW CONSTRUCTION 
CONSISTING OF A 10,000 SQUARE FOOT INDUSTRIAL USE SHOP/OFFICE 
FACILITY TO BE CONSTRUCTED ON PROPERTY OWNED BY OWEN 5, LLC, 

LOCATED AT 1325 RAIL WAY, CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  
 
  
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has by ordinance 
provided a partial exemption from property taxation of the actual value added to real 
estate by certain new construction, as authorized in Section 427B.1, Code of Iowa, with 
said exemption being provided for in Division 2, Partial Exemptions for Industrial 
Property, of Article II, Tax Exemptions, of Chapter 21, Taxation, of the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Owen 5, LLC, will complete and own an approximate 10,000 square 
foot industrial use shop/office facility by December 31, 2020, to be constructed on 
property owned by Owen 5, LLC, located at 1325 Rail Way Cedar Falls, Iowa, and has 
requested a partial property tax exemption as provided in the Iowa Code and the Cedar 
Falls Code of Ordinances; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council conducted a public hearing on the proposal for said 
exemption on the 21st day of September, 2020, and more than thirty (30) days have 
elapsed since the date of public hearing, as required by Section 427B.1, Code of Iowa; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council deems it appropriate pursuant to state law and city 
ordinance to grant said exemption. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 
 
 Section 1. The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, by this Ordinance 
hereby grants a partial exemption from property taxation of the actual value added to 
real estate by new construction of an approximate 10,000 square foot industrial use 

23

Item 3.



shop/office facility to be constructed by Owen 5, LLC, on property owned by Owen 5, 
LLC, located at 1325 Rail Way, Cedar Falls, Iowa, legally described as: 
 

Lot 16, Northern Cedar Falls Industrial Park Phase I Addition, City of Cedar Falls, 
Black Hawk County, Iowa (Contains 3.90 acres more or less), 
 
by December 31, 2020, to the extent and upon the terms and conditions provided for in 
Sections 427B.1 through 427B.7 of the Code of Iowa, and Sections 21-48 through 21-
57 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. Responsibility for the 
proper and timely filing of an application for exemption with the Black Hawk County 
Assessor is that of the property owner. The amount of actual value added which is 
eligible to be exempt from taxation shall be as follows: 
 

1. For the first assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 
assessed, 75% exemption of the actual value added. 

 

2. For the second assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are 
fully assessed, 60% exemption of the actual value added. 

 

3. For the third assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 
assessed, 45% exemption of the actual value added. 

 

4. For the fourth assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 
assessed, 30% exemption of the actual value added. 

 

5. For the fifth assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 
assessed, 15% exemption of the actual value added. 

 
 
INTRODUCED:  September 21, 2019 

1ST CONSIDERATION: September 21, 2019 

2ND CONSIDERATION:  

3RD CONSIDERATION:  

ADOPTED:  

 
  ________________________ 

  
Robert M. Green 
Mayor 

ATTEST:   
   
______________________________   
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City 
Clerk   
 

24

Item 3.



ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

  

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: September 14, 2020 

 SUBJECT: Tjaden Properties, LLC (Air King Filtration) - Industrial Partial Property 
Tax Exemption 

  2800 Technology Parkway in Cedar Falls Industrial Park 
 
On July 1, 2019, City Council approved a Development Agreement with Tjaden 
Properties, LLC for a new 19,050 sf. industrial use warehouse and office facility located 
within the Cedar Falls Industrial Park.  Work on the $1,300,000 new building at 2800 
Technology Parkway began last year and has recently been completed. 
 
As part of the executed Development Agreement approved by City Council, the City of 
Cedar Falls committed to the following actions: 
 

1. Transfer of Parcel “A” of West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase IV to Tjaden 
Properties, LLC (Completed).   

 

2. Adoption of an Ordinance granting a partial exemption from taxation of industrial 
property as may be provided by Sections 21-48 through 21-57 of the Cedar Falls 
Code of Ordinances, and by Chapter 427B, Code of Iowa, with respect to the 
Development Property. 
 

Item #1 noted above was completed in July 2019.  The remaining item to be completed 
by the City of Cedar Falls as part of the Development Agreement is formal adoption of a 
Partial Property Tax Exemption Ordinance. Since construction of the new building has 
been completed, it is now necessary to move forward with Ordinance adoption. 
 
The applicable 5-Year Partial Property Tax Exemption schedule is estimated as follows 
based upon the $1,300,000 valuation of the Tjaden Properties, LLC building, 10% 
commercial/industrial valuation rollback, and the FY21 tax rate of $33.13/$1,000 
valuation ($38,767 annually): 
 
 
 

25

Item 4.



 
  Exemption % Exempt $ Amount Paid $ Amount 
 
Year 1  75%   $29,075  $9,692 
Year 2  60%   $23,260  $15,507 
Year 3  45%   $17,445  $21,322 
Year 4  30%   $11,630  $27,137 
Year 5  15%   $5,815  $32,952 
     $87,226  $106,609 
 
Staff recommends that in accordance with our executed Development Agreement, City 
Council approve and adopt the following ordinance through the normal three reading 
process: 
 

1. Ordinance establishing a partial property tax exemption on the actual value 
added to real estate by new construction consisting of a 19,050 square foot 
industrial use warehouse and office facility constructed on property owned by 
Tjaden Properties, LLC, located at 2800 Technology Parkway, Cedar Falls, Iowa.  

 

If you have any questions pertaining to this memorandum or project, please feel free to 
contact me. 
 
xc:  Ron Gaines, P.E., City Administrator 
       Brett Tjaden, Tjaden Properties, LLC 
 

 
 
 

26

Item 4.



Capital Way

Tec
hn

olo
gy

Pl

Production Dr

Technology Pkwy

Venture Way

Project Location

Tjaden Properties, LLC
20,000 square foot
Warehouse/Office

Ashley Furniture
Distribution Center

I

Bossard

Zuidberg NA

Buckeye
Corrugated, Inc.

27

Item 4.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Prepared by: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, (319) 273-8600 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ______ 
 
AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A PARTIAL PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTION OF THE 

ACTUAL VALUE ADDED TO REAL ESTATE BY NEW CONSTRUCTION 
CONSISTING OF A 19,000 SQUARE FOOT INDUSTRIAL USE 

MANUFACTURING/SHOP FACILITY TO BE CONSTRUCTED ON PROPERTY 
OWNED BY TJADEN PROPERTIES, LLC, LOCATED AT 2800 TECHNOLOGY 

PARKWAY, CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  
 
  
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has by ordinance 
provided a partial exemption from property taxation of the actual value added to real 
estate by certain new construction, as authorized in Section 427B.1, Code of Iowa, with 
said exemption being provided for in Division 2, Partial Exemptions for Industrial 
Property, of Article II, Tax Exemptions, of Chapter 21, Taxation, of the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Tjaden Properties, LLC, will complete and own an approximate 
19,000 square foot industrial use manufacturing/shop facility by December 31, 2020, to 
be constructed on property owned by Tjaden Properties, LLC, located at 2800 
Technology Parkway Cedar Falls, Iowa, and has requested a partial property tax 
exemption as provided in the Iowa Code and the Cedar Falls Code of Ordinances; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council conducted a public hearing on the proposal for said 
exemption on the 21st day of September, 2020, and more than thirty (30) days have 
elapsed since the date of public hearing, as required by Section 427B.1, Code of Iowa; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council deems it appropriate pursuant to state law and city 
ordinance to grant said exemption. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 
 
 Section 1. The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, by this Ordinance 
hereby grants a partial exemption from property taxation of the actual value added to 

28

Item 4.



real estate by new construction of an approximate 19,000 square foot industrial use 
manufacturing/shop facility to be constructed by Tjaden Properties, LLC, on property 
owned by Tjaden Properties, LLC, located at 2800 Technology Parkway, Cedar Falls, 
Iowa, legally described as: 
 

Parcel “A” of “Replat of Lot 16 and Tract “B”, West Viking Road Industrial Park 
Phase IV” in the City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa. (Contains 2.70 
acres more or less), 
 
by December 31, 2020, to the extent and upon the terms and conditions provided for in 
Sections 427B.1 through 427B.7 of the Code of Iowa, and Sections 21-48 through 21-
57 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. Responsibility for the 
proper and timely filing of an application for exemption with the Black Hawk County 
Assessor is that of the property owner. The amount of actual value added which is 
eligible to be exempt from taxation shall be as follows: 
 

1. For the first assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 
assessed, 75% exemption of the actual value added. 

 

2. For the second assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are 
fully assessed, 60% exemption of the actual value added. 

 

3. For the third assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 
assessed, 45% exemption of the actual value added. 

 

4. For the fourth assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 
assessed, 30% exemption of the actual value added. 

 

5. For the fifth assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 
assessed, 15% exemption of the actual value added. 

 
 
INTRODUCED:  September 21, 2019 

1ST CONSIDERATION: September 21, 2019 

2ND CONSIDERATION:  

3RD CONSIDERATION:  

ADOPTED:  

 
  ________________________ 

  
Robert M. Green 
Mayor 

ATTEST:   
   
______________________________   
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City 
Clerk   
 

29

Item 4.



ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

  

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: September 14, 2020 

 SUBJECT: Zuidberg NA, LLC - Industrial Partial Property Tax Exemption 
  2700 Capital Way in Cedar Falls Industrial Park 
 
On April 15, 2019, City Council approved a Development Agreement with Zuidberg NA, 
LLC for a new 30,000 sf. industrial use warehouse and office facility located within the 
Cedar Falls Industrial Park.  Work on the $2,750,000 new building at 2700 Capital Way 
began last year and has recently been completed. 
 
As part of the executed Development Agreement approved by City Council, the City of 
Cedar Falls committed to the following actions: 
 

1. Transfer of Lots 21 and 22 of West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase IV to 
Zuidberg NA, LLC (Completed).   

 

2. Adoption of an Ordinance granting a partial exemption from taxation of industrial 
property as may be provided by Sections 21-48 through 21-57 of the Cedar Falls 
Code of Ordinances, and by Chapter 427B, Code of Iowa, with respect to the 
Development Property. 
 

Item #1 noted above was completed in May 2019.  The remaining item to be completed 
by the City of Cedar Falls as part of the Development Agreement is formal adoption of a 
Partial Property Tax Exemption Ordinance. Since construction of the new building has 
been completed, it is now necessary to move forward with Ordinance adoption. 
 
The applicable 5-Year Partial Property Tax Exemption schedule is estimated as follows 
based upon the $2,750,000 valuation of the Zuidberg NA, LLC building, 10% 
commercial/industrial valuation rollback, and the FY21 tax rate of $33.13/$1,000 
valuation ($82,007 annually): 
 
 
 
 

30

Item 5.



  Exemption % Exempt $ Amount Paid $ Amount 
 
Year 1  75%   $61,505  $20,502 
Year 2  60%   $49,204  $32,803 
Year 3  45%   $36,903  $45,104 
Year 4  30%   $24,602  $57,405 
Year 5  15%   $12,301  $69,706 
     $184,516  $225,509 
 
Staff recommends that in accordance with our executed Development Agreement, City 
Council approve and adopt the following ordinance through the normal three reading 
process: 
 

1. Ordinance establishing a partial property tax exemption on the actual value 
added to real estate by new construction consisting of a 30,000 square foot 
industrial use warehouse and office facility constructed on property owned by 
Zuidberg NA, LLC, located at 2700 Capital Way, Cedar Falls, Iowa.  

 

If you have any questions pertaining to this memorandum or project, please feel free to 
contact me. 
 
xc:  Ron Gaines, P.E., City Administrator 
       Ryan Holden, President, Zuidberg NA, LLC 
 

 
 
 

31

Item 5.



Capital Way

Tec
hn

olo
gy

Pl

Venture Way

Production Dr

Technology Pkwy

Project Location

Zuidberg NA, LLC
30,000 square foot
Warehouse/Office

Ashley Furniture
Distribution Center

I

Bossard

Air King Filtration

Buckeye
Corrugated, Inc.

Target Regional
Distribution Center

32

Item 5.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Prepared by: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, (319) 273-8600 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ______ 
 
AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A PARTIAL PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTION OF THE 

ACTUAL VALUE ADDED TO REAL ESTATE BY NEW CONSTRUCTION 
CONSISTING OF A 30,000 SQUARE FOOT INDUSTRIAL USE WAREHOUSE AND 

OFFICE FACILITY TO BE CONSTRUCTED ON PROPERTY OWNED BY ZUIDBERZG 
NA, LLC, LOCATED AT 2700 CAPITAL WAY, CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  

 
  
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has by ordinance 
provided a partial exemption from property taxation of the actual value added to real 
estate by certain new construction, as authorized in Section 427B.1, Code of Iowa, with 
said exemption being provided for in Division 2, Partial Exemptions for Industrial 
Property, of Article II, Tax Exemptions, of Chapter 21, Taxation, of the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Zuidberg NA, LLC, will complete and own an approximate 30,000 
square foot industrial use warehouse and office facility by December 31, 2020, to be 
constructed on property owned by Zuidberg NA, LLC, located at 2700 Capital Way 
Cedar Falls, Iowa, and has requested a partial property tax exemption as provided in 
the Iowa Code and the Cedar Falls Code of Ordinances; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council conducted a public hearing on the proposal for said 
exemption on the 21st day of September, 2020, and more than thirty (30) days have 
elapsed since the date of public hearing, as required by Section 427B.1, Code of Iowa; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council deems it appropriate pursuant to state law and city 
ordinance to grant said exemption. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 
 
 Section 1. The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, by this Ordinance 
hereby grants a partial exemption from property taxation of the actual value added to 

33

Item 5.



real estate by new construction of an approximate 30,000 square foot industrial use 
warehouse and office facility to be constructed by Zuidberg NA, LLC, on property owned 
by Zuidberg NA, LLC, located at 2700 Capital Way, Cedar Falls, Iowa, legally described 
as: 
 
Lot 21 and 22, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase IV, City of Cedar Falls, Black 
Hawk County, Iowa (Contains 3.54 acres more or less), 
 
by December 31, 2020, to the extent and upon the terms and conditions provided for in 
Sections 427B.1 through 427B.7 of the Code of Iowa, and Sections 21-48 through 21-
57 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. Responsibility for the 
proper and timely filing of an application for exemption with the Black Hawk County 
Assessor is that of the property owner. The amount of actual value added which is 
eligible to be exempt from taxation shall be as follows: 
 

1. For the first assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 
assessed, 75% exemption of the actual value added. 

 

2. For the second assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are 
fully assessed, 60% exemption of the actual value added. 

 

3. For the third assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 
assessed, 45% exemption of the actual value added. 

 

4. For the fourth assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 
assessed, 30% exemption of the actual value added. 

 

5. For the fifth assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 
assessed, 15% exemption of the actual value added. 

 
 
INTRODUCED:  September 21, 2019 

1ST CONSIDERATION: September 21, 2019 

2ND CONSIDERATION:  

3RD CONSIDERATION:  

ADOPTED:  

 
 
  ________________________ 

  
Robert M. Green 
Mayor 

ATTEST:   

   
______________________________   
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City 
Clerk   
 

34

Item 5.



ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

  

   

 

 

 
 

  

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: September 15, 2020 

 SUBJECT: Panther Builders, LLC – Agreement for Private Development 
 

Introduction 
 
On August 7, 2017, City Council approved a site plan for a new 3,500 square foot office 
building for Panther Builders, LLC at 616 Clay Street, within the Downtown Urban 
Renewal Area. The site was previously vacant, as no building was located on the 
property. The building was completed in 2019, with a 100% assessed valuation as of 
01/01/2020 of $501,320. Typically, a developer will submit to the city a written request 
for financial assistance in conjunction with a site plan, if it is eligible for such assistance. 
In this case, the developer did not submit a request to city staff for financial assistance, 
so no agreement was ever entered into. It was not until recently, when a similar project 
for a new building in the downtown area (Community Bank and Trust) was approved by 
City Council that the developer reached out to city staff to discuss if his project was 
eligible for assistance under the Downtown Urban Renewal Area. Staff indicated that it 
was, and the developer has since formally submitted a request for financial assistance 
under the Downtown Urban Renewal Area, and staff has been working with the 
developer over the past several months on drafting the agreement. 
 

Financial Assistance Request  
 

This project is eligible under the Downtown Urban Renewal Plan for consideration of 
certain incentives that promote the development or redevelopment of existing buildings 
and properties. The typical incentive offered for downtown projects such as this is a 
rebate of 100% of the tax increments on the increased value of the property after the 
improvements are complete, with a minimum increase in value of $200,000.   
 
A copy of the Agreement for Private Development with Panther Builders, LLC is 
attached for your review. The project includes the construction of a 3,500 square foot 
office building, which has a fully assessed value as of 01/01/2020 of $501,320. The 
Economic Development Grants shall commence on June 1, 2022 and end on June 1, 
2026 based on the value added to the property. The following schedule would be 
applicable: 
 
 

35

Item 6.



June 1, 2022 100% of Tax Increments for Fiscal Year 20-21 
June 1, 2023 100% of Tax Increments for Fiscal Year 21-22 
June 1, 2024 100% of Tax Increments for Fiscal Year 22-23 
June 1, 2025 100% of Tax Increments for Fiscal Year 23-24 

 June 1, 2026 100% of Tax Increments for Fiscal Year 24-25 
 
The maximum amount of tax rebates provided to the developer shall not exceed 
$70,000. This is based on using a maximum of $501,320 tax increment increase in the 
valuation of the minimum improvements to the building. 
 

Recommendation 
 
It is recommended that City Council approve and adopt the following: 
 

1. Resolution approving and executing an Agreement for Private Development 
between Panther Builders, LLC and the City of Cedar Falls. 

 

Approval of this project is consistent with Organizational Goal 6: Create an environment 
conducive to economic development.  This is further identified on Page 23 of City 
Council Goals under Supporting Policies: 
 
 *Continue to support public and private economic development efforts in Cedar 
Falls and the metropolitan area. 
 
If you have any questions regarding this project, please feel free to let me know. 
 
xc: Ron Gaines, P.E., City Administrator 
 

36

Item 6.



Cla
y S

t

Wa
sh

ing
ton

 S
t

W 6th St

W 7th St

W 5th St

W 8th St

Project Location

Panther Builders, LLC
616 Clay Street
New Office Building I

37

Item 6.



Execution Version 

 

 

 

 

 

AGREEMENT FOR PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT 

 

 

 

 

By and Between 

 

 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

 

 

AND 

 

 

 

PANTHER BUILDERS, LLC 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

38

Item 6.



 

 

Execution Version 

 

 2 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

AGREEMENT FOR PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT 

 

 

ARTICLE I.  DEFINITIONS………………………………………………..  5 

Section 1.1.  Definitions……………………………………………… 5 

 

ARTICLE II.  REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES………………  7 

Section 2.1.  Representations and Warranties of the City……………  7 

Section 2.2.  Representations and Warranties of Developer.….……..  8 

 

ARTICLE III.  CONSTRUCTION OF MINIMUM IMPROVEMENTS…..  10 

Section 3.1.  Construction of Minimum Improvements………………. 10 

Section 3.2. Commencement and Completion of Construction………. 10 

 

ARTICLE IV.  RESERVED…………………………………………………. 10 

 

ARTICLE V.  INSURANCE………………………………………………… 11 

Section 5.1.  Insurance Requirements………………………………… 11 

 

ARTICLE VI.  FURTHER COVENANTS OF DEVELOPER……………… 12 

Section 6.1. Maintenance of Properties……………………………..  12 

Section 6.2. Maintenance of Records……………………………….  12 

Section 6.3. Compliance with Laws………………………………...  13 

Section 6.4. Non-Discrimination….……………………………….  13 

Section 6.5.   Available Information…………………………………  13 

Section 6.6.   Employment…………………….…………………….  13 

Section 6.7.   Annual Certification………………..………………….  13 

Section 6.8. Term of Operations……………………………………  14 

Section 6.9. Developer Completion Guarantee…….………………  14 

 Section 6.10. Relocation .......................................................................  14 

 

ARTICLE VII.  PROHIBITION AGAINST ASSIGNMENT AND 

TRANSFER………………………………………………………………….  14 

Section 7.1.  Status of Developer; Transfer of Substantially All Assets; 

Assignment………………………………………  14 

Section 7.2.  Prohibition Against Use as Non-Taxable or Centrally 

Assessed Property……..……………………………...  15 

 

ARTICLE VIII.  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT GRANT..……………….. 15 

39

Item 6.



 

 

Execution Version 

 

 3 

Section 8.1.   Economic Development Grant………………………...  15 

Section 8.2.   Conditions………………………………………………. 16 

Section 8.3.   Grant Schedule……….…………………………………. 17 

Section 8.4.   Maximum Amount of Grants………………………….. 17 

Section 8.5.   Limitations……………………………………….……... 18 

Section 8.6.   Source of Grant Funds Limited……..…………………. 18 

Section 8.7.   Use of Other Tax Increments…………………………… 20 

Section 8.8.   Real Property Taxes…………………………….……… 20 

 

ARTICLE IX.  INDEMNIFICATION……………………………………..  20 

Section 9.1.  Release and Indemnification Covenants…………………. 20 

 

ARTICLE X.  REMEDIES……………………………………………….  21 

Section 10.1.  Events of Default Defined…………….………………  21 

Section 10.2.  Remedies on Default………………………………….  23 

Section 10.3.  No Remedy Exclusive………………………………..  23 

Section 10.4.  No Implied Waiver……………………………………  24 

Section 10.5.  Agreement to Pay Attorneys' Fees and Expenses…….  24 

 

ARTICLE XI.  RESERVED…………………………………………………  24 

 

ARTICLE XII.  MISCELLANEOUS………………………………………..  24 

Section 12.1.  Conflict of Interest……………………………………  24 

Section 12.2.  Notices and Demands………………………………...  24 

Section 12.3.  Titles of Articles and Sections………………………… 25 

Section 12.4.  Counterparts……………………….……………..……  25 

Section 12.5.  Governing Law………………………………………… 25 

Section 12.6.  Entire Agreement……………………………………… 25 

Section 12.7.  Successors and Assigns……………………………….  25 

Section 12.8.  Termination Date……………………………………… 25 

Section 12.9.  Memorandum of Agreement………..………………..  25 

Section 12.10. No Third-Party Beneficiaries…………………………. 26 

 

EXHIBIT A  Development Property…………………………………  29 

EXHIBIT B   Minimum Improvements………………………………. 30 

EXHIBIT C  Certificate of Completion……………………………… 32 

EXHIBIT D  Memorandum of Agreement for Private Development... 34 

EXHIBIT E  Developer Annual Certification...……………………..  37 

 

 

 

40

Item 6.



 

 

Execution Version 

 

 4 

AGREEMENT FOR PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT 

 

THIS AGREEMENT FOR PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT (hereinafter called 

"Agreement"), is made on or as of the ____ day of _____________, 2020, by and 

between the CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, a municipality (hereinafter called 

"City"), established pursuant to the Code of Iowa of the State of Iowa and acting under 

the authorization of Chapters 15A and 403 of the Code of Iowa, 2019, as amended 

(hereinafter called "Urban Renewal Act"), and Panther Builders, LLC, an Iowa limited 

liability company, having offices for the transaction of business at 616 Clay Street, Cedar 

Falls, Iowa 50613 (hereinafter known as "Developer"). 

 

WITNESSETH: 

 

WHEREAS, in furtherance of the objectives of the Urban Renewal Act, the City 

has undertaken a program for the development of an economic development area in the 

City and, in this connection, is engaged in carrying out urban renewal project activities in 

an area known as the Downtown Development Area Urban Renewal Area (“Area” or 

“Urban Renewal Area”), as set forth in the Downtown Development Area Urban 

Renewal Plan, as amended (“Plan” or “Urban Renewal Plan”); and 

 

WHEREAS, a copy of the foregoing Urban Renewal Plan, as amended, has been 

recorded among the land records in the office of the Recorder of Black Hawk County, 

Iowa; and 

 

WHEREAS, Developer is the owner of certain real property located in the 

foregoing Urban Renewal Area and as more particularly described in Exhibit A attached 

hereto and made a part hereof (which property as so described is hereinafter referred to as 

the "Development Property"); and 

 

WHEREAS, the Developer is willing to develop the Development Property for 

and in accordance with the uses specified in the Urban Renewal Plan and in accordance 

with this Agreement by constructing certain Minimum Improvements (as hereafter 

defined) on the Development Property; and 

 

WHEREAS, the construction of the Minimum Improvements on the Development 

Property will alleviate the blighted condition of the neighborhood and will benefit the 

City economically through increased property tax generation of the Minimum 

Improvements, and will otherwise provide economic growth; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City believes that the development of the Development Property 

pursuant to this Agreement and the fulfillment generally of this Agreement are in the vital 

41

Item 6.



 

 

Execution Version 

 

 5 

and best interests of the residents of the City, and in accord with the public purposes and 

provisions of the applicable State and local laws and requirements under which the 

foregoing project has been undertaken and is being assisted, including but not limited to 

Chapters 15A and 403 of the Code of Iowa. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and the mutual obligations 

of the parties hereto, each of them does hereby covenant and agree with the other as 

follows: 

 

ARTICLE I.  DEFINITIONS 

 

Section 1.1.  Definitions. In addition to other definitions set forth in this 

Agreement, all capitalized terms used and not otherwise defined herein shall have the 

following meanings unless a different meaning clearly appears from the context: 

 

Agreement means this Agreement and all exhibits and appendices hereto, as the 

same may be from time to time modified, amended or supplemented. 

 

Area or Urban Renewal Area shall mean the area known as Downtown 

Development Urban Renewal Area. 

 

Certificate of Completion means a certification in the form of the certificate 

attached hereto as Exhibit C and hereby made a part of this Agreement. 

 

City or Cedar Falls means the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, or any successor to its 

functions.  

 

Code or Code of Iowa means the Code of Iowa, 2019, as amended. 

 

Commencement Date means the date of this Agreement. 

 

Downtown Development Area Urban Renewal Tax Increment Revenue Fund 

means the special fund of the City created under the authority of Section 403.19(2) of the 

Code, which fund was created in order to pay the principal of and interest on loans, 

monies advanced to or indebtedness, whether funded, refunded, assumed or otherwise, 

including bonds or other obligations issued under the authority of Chapters 15A, 403 or 

384 of the Code, incurred by the City to finance or refinance in whole or in part projects 

undertaken pursuant to the Urban Renewal Plan for the Urban Renewal Area. 

 

Developer means Panther Builders, LLC, collectively, and its successors and 

assigns. 

42

Item 6.



 

 

Execution Version 

 

 6 

 

Development Property means that portion of the Downtown Development Area 

Urban Renewal Area of the City described in Exhibit A and locally known as 616 Clay 

Street. 

 

Economic Development Grants means the payments to be made by the City to 

Developer under Article VIII of this Agreement. 

 

Event of Default means any of the events described in Section 10.1 of this 

Agreement. 

 

First Mortgage means any Mortgage granted to secure any loan made pursuant to 

either a mortgage commitment obtained by Developer from a commercial lender or other 

financial institution to fund any portion of the construction costs and initial operating 

capital requirements of the Minimum Improvements or all such Mortgages as 

appropriate. 

 

Full-Time Equivalent Employment Unit means the employment at the Minimum 

Improvements of the equivalent of one person for an average of 2,000 hours per year, 

assuming eight hours per day for a five-day, forty-hour work week for fifty weeks per 

year. 

 

 Minimum Improvements shall mean the construction of improvements on the 

Development Property as described in Exhibit B.   

 

Mortgage means any mortgage or security agreement in which Developer has 

granted a mortgage or other security interest in the Development Party, or any portion or 

parcel thereof, or any improvements constructed thereon. 

 

Net Proceeds means any proceeds paid by an insurer to Developer under a policy 

or policies of insurance required to be provided and maintained by Developer, as the case 

may be, pursuant to Article V of this Agreement and remaining after deducting all 

expenses (including fees and disbursements of counsel) incurred in the collection of such 

proceeds. 

 

Ordinance shall mean Ordinance(s) of the City under which the taxes levied on the 

taxable property in the Urban Renewal Area shall be divided, with a portion of said taxes 

to be paid into the Downtown Development Area Urban Renewal Tax Increment 

Revenue Fund, referred to and authorized by Section 403.19(2) of the Code of Iowa. 

 

43

Item 6.



 

 

Execution Version 

 

 7 

Panther Builders, LLC, 616 Clay Street TIF Account means a separate account 

within the Downtown Development Area Urban Renewal Tax Increment Revenue Fund 

of the City, in which there shall be deposited Tax Increments received by the City with 

respect to the Minimum Improvements on the Development Property. 

 

Project shall mean the construction of the Minimum Improvements on the 

Development Property, as described in this Agreement. 

 

State means the State of Iowa. 

 

 Tax Increments means the property tax increment revenues made available to the 

City for deposit in the Downtown Development Area Urban Renewal Tax Increment 

Revenue Fund, under the provisions of Section 403.19 of the Code of Iowa and the 

Ordinance. 

 

Termination Date means the date of termination of this Agreement, as established 

in Section 12.8 of this Agreement. 

 

Unavoidable Delays means delays resulting from acts or occurrences outside the 

reasonable control of the party claiming the delay including but not limited to storms, 

floods, fires, explosions or other casualty losses, unusual weather conditions, strikes, 

boycotts, lockouts or other labor disputes, delays in transportation or delivery of material 

or equipment, litigation commenced by third parties, or the acts of any federal, State or 

local governmental unit (other than the City). 

 

Urban Renewal Area means the area included within the boundaries of the 

Downtown Development Area Urban Renewal Area, as amended. 

 

Urban Renewal Plan means the Urban Renewal Plan approved with respect to the 

Downtown Development Area Urban Renewal Area, described in the preambles hereof. 

 

ARTICLE II.  REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 

 

Section 2.1.  Representations and Warranties of the City. The City makes the 

following representations and warranties:  

 

a. The City is a municipal corporation and municipality organized under the 

provisions of the Constitution and the laws of the State and has the power to enter into 

this Agreement and carry out its obligations hereunder. 

 

44

Item 6.



 

 

Execution Version 

 

 8 

b. The execution and delivery of this Agreement, the consummation of the 

transactions contemplated hereby, and the fulfillment of or compliance with the terms 

and conditions of this Agreement are not prevented by, limited by, in conflict with, or 

result in a breach of, the terms, conditions or provisions of any contractual restriction, 

evidence of indebtedness, agreement or instrument of whatever nature to which the City 

is now a party or by which it is bound, nor do they constitute a default under any of the 

foregoing. 

 

c. The City would not undertake its obligations under this Agreement without 

the consideration being made to the City pursuant to this Agreement. 

 

Section 2.2.  Representations and Warranties of Developer. Developer makes the 

following representations and warranties: 

 

a. Panther Builders, LLC is an Iowa limited liability company, duly organized 

and validly existing under the laws of the State of Iowa, with all requisite power and 

authority to own and operate its properties, to carry on its business as now conducted and 

as presently proposed to be conducted, and to enter into and perform its obligations under 

this Agreement.   

 

b. This Agreement has been duly and validly authorized, executed and 

delivered by Developer and, assuming due authorization, execution and delivery by the 

City, is in full force and effect and is a valid and legally binding instrument of Developer 

enforceable in accordance with its terms, except as the same may be limited by 

bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or other laws relating to or affecting creditors' 

rights generally. 

 

c. The execution and delivery of this Agreement, the consummation of the 

transactions contemplated hereby, and the fulfillment of or compliance with the terms 

and conditions of this Agreement are not prevented by, limited by, in conflict with, or 

result in a violation or breach of, the terms, conditions or provisions of the governing 

documents of Developer or of any contractual restriction, evidence of indebtedness, 

agreement or instrument of whatever nature to which Developer is now a party or by 

which it or its property is bound, nor do they constitute a default under any of the 

foregoing. 

 

d. There are no actions, suits or proceedings pending or threatened against or 

affecting Developer in any court or before any arbitrator or before or by any 

governmental body in which there is a reasonable possibility of an adverse decision 

which could materially adversely affect the business (present or prospective), financial 

position or results of operations of Developer or which in any manner raises any 

45

Item 6.



 

 

Execution Version 

 

 9 

questions affecting the validity of the Agreement or Developer's ability to perform its 

obligations under this Agreement. 

 

e.  Developer will cause the Minimum Improvements to be constructed in 

accordance with the terms of this Agreement, the Urban Renewal Plan, and all local, 

State, and federal laws and regulations. 

 

f. Developer will use its best efforts to obtain or cause to be obtained, in a 

timely manner, all required permits, licenses, and approvals, and will meet, in a timely 

manner, all requirements of all applicable local, State, and federal laws and regulations 

which must be obtained or met before the Minimum Improvements may be lawfully 

constructed. 

 

g. The construction of the Minimum Improvements requires a total investment 

of not less than Five Hundred Thousand and no/100 Dollars ($500,000.00). 

 

h. Developer has not received any notice from any local, State or federal 

official that the activities of Developer with respect to the Development Property may or 

will be in violation of any environmental law or regulation (other than those notices, if 

any, of which the City has previously been notified in writing). Developer is not currently 

aware of any State or federal claim filed or planned to be filed by any party relating to 

any violation of any local, State or federal environmental law, regulation or review 

procedure applicable to the Development Property, and Developer is not currently aware 

of any violation of any local, State or federal environmental law, regulation or review 

procedure which would give any person a valid claim under any State or federal 

environmental statute with respect thereto. 

 

i. Developer has firm commitments for construction or acquisition and 

permanent financing for the Project in an amount sufficient, together with equity 

commitments, to successfully complete the Minimum Improvements in accordance with 

the Construction Plans contemplated in this Agreement. 

 

j. Developer will cooperate fully with the City in resolution of any traffic, 

parking, trash removal or public safety problems which may arise in connection with the 

construction and operation of the Minimum Improvements. 

 

k. Developer states that the Minimum Improvements are substantially 

completed and a certificate of occupancy was obtained by the 12th day of July, 2019. The 

Minimum Improvements were fully assessed as of January 1, 2020. 

 

46

Item 6.



 

 

Execution Version 

 

 10 

l. Developer would not undertake its obligations under this Agreement 

without the payment by the City of the Economic Development Grants being made to 

Developer pursuant to this Agreement. 

 

m. All covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements and obligations of the 

Developer contained herein shall be deemed to be the covenants, stipulations, promises, 

agreements and obligations of the Developer, and not of any member, officer, agent, 

servant or employee of the Developer in the individual capacity thereof. 

 

ARTICLE III.  CONSTRUCTION OF MINIMUM IMPROVEMENTS 

 

Section 3.1.  Construction of Minimum Improvements. Developer has caused 

Construction Plans to be provided for the Minimum Improvements and the City has 

approved of the Construction Plans. Construction of the Minimum Improvements has 

been completed and Developer states that such construction required a total investment of 

less than Five Hundred Thousand and no/100 Dollars ($500,000.00). 

 

Section 3.2.  Certificate of Completion. Upon written request of Developer after 

issuance of an occupancy permit for the Minimum Improvements, the City will furnish 

Developer with a Certificate of Completion in recordable form, in substantially the form 

set forth in Exhibit C attached hereto. Such Certificate of Completion shall be a 

conclusive determination of the satisfactory termination of the covenants and conditions 

of this Agreement with respect to the obligations of Developer to cause construction of 

the Minimum Improvements.  

 

The Certificate of Completion may be recorded in the proper office for the 

recordation of deeds and other instruments pertaining to the Development Property at 

Developer's sole expense. If the City shall refuse or fail to provide a Certificate of 

Completion in accordance with the provisions of this Section, the City shall, within 

twenty (20) days after written request by Developer provide a written statement 

indicating in adequate detail in what respects Developer has failed to complete the 

Minimum Improvements in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement, or is 

otherwise in default under the terms of this Agreement, and what measures or acts it will 

be necessary, in the opinion of the City, for Developer to take or perform in order to 

obtain such Certificate of Completion.  

 

ARTICLE IV.   RESERVED 

 

 

 

 

47

Item 6.



 

 

Execution Version 

 

 11 

ARTICLE V.  INSURANCE 

 

Section 5.1.  Insurance Requirements. 

 

a. Upon completion of construction of the Minimum Improvements and at all 

times prior to the Termination Date, Developer shall maintain or cause to be maintained, 

at its cost and expense (and from time to time at the request of the City shall furnish proof 

of the payment of premiums on), insurance as follows: 

 

 i. Insurance against loss and/or damage to the Minimum 

Improvements under a policy or policies covering such risks as are ordinarily insured 

against by similar businesses, including (without limitation the generality of the 

foregoing) fire, extended coverage, vandalism and malicious mischief, explosion, water 

damage, demolition cost, debris removal, and collapse in an amount not less than the full 

insurable replacement value of the Minimum Improvements, but any such policy may 

have a deductible amount of not more than $50,000 or self-insurance up to not more than 

$1,000,000. No policy of insurance shall be so written that the proceeds thereof will 

produce less than the minimum coverage required by the preceding sentence, by reason 

of co-insurance provisions or otherwise, without the prior consent thereto in writing by 

the City. The term "full insurable replacement value" shall mean the actual replacement 

cost of the Minimum Improvements (excluding foundation and excavation costs and 

costs of underground flues, pipes, drains, and other uninsurable items) and equipment, 

and shall be determined from time to time at the request of the City, but not more 

frequently than once every three years, by an insurance consultant or insurer selected and 

paid for by Developer and approved by the City.   

 

 ii. Comprehensive general public liability insurance, including personal 

injury liability for injuries to persons and/or property, including any injuries resulting 

from the operation of automobiles or other motorized vehicles on or about the 

Development Property, in the minimum amount for each occurrence and for each year of 

$1,000,000. 

 

 iii. Such other insurance, including workers' compensation insurance 

respecting all employees of Developer, in such amount as is customarily carried by like 

organizations engaged in like activities of comparable size and liability exposure; 

provided that Developer may be self-insured with respect to all or any part of its liability 

for workers' compensation. 

 

b. All insurance required by this Article V to be provided prior to the 

Termination Date shall be taken out and maintained in responsible insurance companies 

selected by Developer, which are authorized under the laws of the State to assume the 

48

Item 6.



 

 

Execution Version 

 

 12 

risks covered thereby. Developer will deposit annually with the City copies of policies 

evidencing all such insurance, or a certificate or certificates or binders of the respective 

insurers stating that such insurance is in force and effect. Unless otherwise provided in 

this Article V, each policy shall contain a provision that the insurer shall not cancel or 

modify it without giving written notice to Developer and the City at least thirty (30) days 

before the cancellation or modification becomes effective. Not less than fifteen (15) days 

prior to the expiration of any policy, Developer shall furnish the City evidence 

satisfactory to the City that the policy has been renewed or replaced by another policy 

conforming to the provisions of this Article V, or that there is no necessity therefor under 

the terms hereof. In lieu of separate policies, Developer may maintain a single policy, or 

blanket or umbrella policies, or a combination thereof, which provide the total coverage 

required herein, in which event Developer shall deposit with the City a certificate or 

certificates of the respective insurers as to the amount of coverage in force upon the 

Minimum Improvements. 

 

c. Developer agrees to notify the City immediately in the case of damage 

exceeding $25,000 in amount to, or destruction of, the Minimum Improvements or any 

portion thereof resulting from fire or other casualty. Net Proceeds of any such insurance 

shall be paid directly to Developer, and Developer will forthwith repair, reconstruct, and 

restore the Minimum Improvements to substantially the same or an improved condition 

or value as they existed prior to the event causing such damage and, to the extent 

necessary to accomplish such repair, reconstruction and restoration, Developer will apply 

the Net Proceeds of any insurance relating to such damage received by Developer to the 

payment or reimbursement of the costs thereof. 

 

d. Developer shall complete the repair, reconstruction, and restoration of the 

Minimum Improvements, whether or not the Net Proceeds of insurance received by 

Developer for such purposes are sufficient.   

 

ARTICLE VI.  FURTHER COVENANTS OF DEVELOPER 

 

Section 6.1. Maintenance of Properties.  Developer will maintain, preserve, and 

keep its properties within the City (whether owned in fee or a leasehold interest), 

including but not limited to the Minimum Improvements, in good repair and working 

order, ordinary wear and tear excepted, and from time to time will make all necessary 

repairs, replacements, renewals, and additions. 

 

Section 6.2. Maintenance of Records. Developer will keep at all times proper 

books of record and account in which full, true, and correct entries will be made of all 

dealings and transactions of or in relation to the business and affairs of Developer relating 

to this Project in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, consistently 

49

Item 6.



 

 

Execution Version 

 

 13 

applied throughout the period involved, and Developer will provide reasonable protection 

against loss or damage to such books of record and account.  

 

Section 6.3. Compliance with Laws. Developer will comply with all state, federal 

and local laws, rules and regulations relating to the Minimum Improvements. 

 

Section 6.4. Non-Discrimination. In carrying out the operation of the Minimum 

Improvements, the Developer shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant 

for employment because of race, creed, color, gender, sex, sexual orientation, gender 

identity, religion, national origin, age or disability. The Developer shall ensure that 

applicants for employment are employed, and the employees are treated during 

employment, without regard to their race, creed, color, gender, sex, sexual orientation, 

gender identity, religion, national origin, age or disability. 

 

Section 6.5 Available Information. Upon request, Developer shall promptly 

provide the City with copies of information requested by City that are related to this 

Agreement so that City can determine compliance with the Agreement. 

   

Section 6.6  Employment. Developer agrees that the Minimum Improvements will 

create usable commercial space on the Development Property. Developer shall use its 

best efforts to ensure that at least 2 Full-Time Equivalent Employment Units will be 

employed at the Minimum Improvements by October 1, 2020 and retained until at least 

the Termination Date of this Agreement.   

 Section 6.7 Annual Certification. To assist the City in monitoring the Agreement 

and performance of Developer hereunder, a duly authorized officer of Developer shall 

annually provide to the City: (i) proof that all ad valorem taxes on the Development 

Property and Minimum Improvements have been paid for the prior fiscal year and any 

taxes due and payable for the current fiscal year as of the date of certification; (ii) the 

date of the first full assessment of the Minimum Improvements; (iii) certification of the 

number of Full-Time Equivalent Employment Units as of October 1 and as of the first 

day of each of the preceding eleven (11) months; and (iv) certification that such officer 

has re-examined the terms and provisions of this Agreement and that at the date of such 

certificate, and during the preceding twelve (12) months, Developer is not, or was not, in 

default in the fulfillment of any of the terms and conditions of this Agreement and that no 

Event of Default (or event which, with the lapse of time or the giving of notice, or both, 

would become an Event of Default) is occurring or has occurred as of the date of such 

certificate or during such period, or if the signer is aware of any such default, event or 

Event of Default, said officer shall disclose in such statement the nature thereof, its 

period of existence and what action, if any, has been taken or is proposed to be taken with 

respect thereto. Such statement, proof and certificate shall be provided not later than 

50

Item 6.



 

 

Execution Version 

 

 14 

October 15 of each year, commencing October 15, 2020 and ending on October 15, 2024, 

both dates inclusive. Developer shall provide supporting information for their Annual 

Certifications upon request of the City. See Exhibit E for form required for Developer's 

Annual Certification. 

 Section 6.8. Term of Operation. Developer will continue its efforts to lease the 

Minimum Improvements on the Development Property and its other obligations 

contained in this Agreement, including the employment obligations in Section 6.6, until 

the Termination Date of this Agreement.   

 Section 6.9 Developer Completion Guarantee. By signing this Agreement, 

Developer hereby guarantees to the City performance by Developer of all the terms and 

provisions of this Agreement pertaining to Developer's obligations with respect to the 

construction of the Minimum Improvements. Without limiting the generality of the 

foregoing, Developer guarantees that:  (a) the Minimum Improvements were constructed 

and completed in accordance with the Construction Plans; (b) the Minimum 

Improvements were constructed and completed free and clear of any mechanic's liens, 

materialman's liens and equitable liens; (c) all costs of constructing the Minimum 

Improvements were paid when due.  

 

Section 6.10.  Relocation. Developer agrees and covenants not to lease the 

Minimum Improvements to any entity that is relocating to the City from another part of 

Black Hawk County or a contiguous county during the term of this Agreement. In 

general, use of urban renewal incentives cannot be used for projects that involve a 

relocating entity unless there is a written agreement regarding the use of economic 

incentives from the City where the business is currently located and the City to which the 

business is relocating, either specific to this Project or in general (a fair play or neutrality 

agreement), or if the City finds the use of tax increment in connection with the relocation 

is in the public interest, which means that the business has provided a written affirmation 

that it is considering moving part or all of its operations out of state and such relocation 

would result in either significant employment or wage loss in Iowa. Developer 

understands and agrees that if it does lease to a relocating entity, as determined by the 

City in its sole discretion, the Developer is not eligible to  receive all or a pro rata portion 

of the Economic Development Grants under this Agreement and will be responsible for 

paying back previously received Economic Development Grants, if applicable. 

 

ARTICLE VII.  PROHIBITION AGAINST ASSIGNMENT AND TRANSFER 

 

 Section 7.1.  Status of Developer; Transfer of Substantially All Assets; 

Assignment. As security for the obligations of Developer under this Agreement, 

Developer represents and agrees that, prior to the Termination Date, Developer will 

51

Item 6.



 

 

Execution Version 

 

 15 

maintain existence as a company and will not wind up or otherwise dispose of all or 

substantially all of its assets or transfer, convey, or assign its interest in the Development 

Property or its interest in this Agreement to any other party unless: (i) the transferee 

partnership, corporation, limited liability company or individual assumes in writing all of 

the obligations of Developer under this Agreement; and (ii) the City consents thereto in 

writing in advance thereof. Notwithstanding the foregoing, however, or any other 

provisions of this Agreement, Developer may pledge any and/or all of its assets as 

security for any financing of the Minimum Improvements, and the City agrees that 

Developer may assign its interest under this Agreement for such purpose.   

 

7.2 Prohibition Against Use as Non-Taxable or Centrally Assessed Property.  

During the term of this Agreement, the Developer, or its successors, or assigns agree that 

the Development Property cannot be transferred or sold to a non-profit entity or used for 

a purpose that would exempt the Development Property or Minimum Improvements from 

property tax liability. Nor can the Development Property or Minimum Improvements be 

used as centrally assessed property (including but not limited to, Iowa Code § 428.24 to 

428.29 (Public Utility Plants and Related Personal Property); Chapter 433 (Telegraph and 

Telephone Company Property); Chapter 434 (Railway Property); Chapter 437 (Electric 

Transmission Lines); Chapter 437A (Property Used in the Production, Generation, 

Transmission or Delivery of Electricity or Natural Gas); and Chapter 438 (Pipeline 

Property)). 

 

ARTICLE VIII.  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT GRANT 

 

Section 8.1.  Economic Development Grant. For and in consideration of the 

obligations being assumed by Developer hereunder, and as a necessary means of 

achieving the goals and objectives of the Urban Renewal Plan for the Urban Renewal 

Area and the Urban Renewal Act, the City agrees, subject to the terms and conditions of 

this Article and to subject to Developer being and remaining in compliance with the 

terms of this Agreement, to make up to five (5) consecutive annual payments of 

Economic Development Grants to Developer up to an aggregate total amount not to 

exceed Sixty Eight Thousand One Hundred Dollars ($68,100) under the following terms 

and conditions. 

 

 Assuming debt certification to the Auditor by the City prior to December 1, 2020, 

the Economic Development Grants shall commence on June 1, 2022, and end on June 1, 

2026, pursuant to Section 403.19 of the Urban Renewal Act under the following formula: 

 

June 1, 2022  100% of Tax Increments for Fiscal Year 20-21 

June 1, 2023 100% of Tax Increments for Fiscal Year 21-22 

June 1, 2024 100% of Tax Increments for Fiscal Year 22-23 

52

Item 6.



 

 

Execution Version 

 

 16 

June 1, 2025 100% of Tax Increments for Fiscal Year 23-24 

June 1, 2026 100% of Tax Increments for Fiscal Year 24-25 

 

Each annual payment shall be equal in amount to the above percentages of the Tax 

Increments collected by the City with respect to the Minimum Improvements on 

Development Property under the terms of the Ordinance and deposited into the Panther 

Builders, LLC, 616 Clay Street TIF Account (without regard to any averaging that may 

otherwise be utilized under Section 403.19 and excluding any interest that may accrue 

thereon prior to payment to the Developer) during the preceding twelve-month period in 

respect of the Development Property and the Minimum Improvements, but subject to 

limitation and adjustment as provided in this Article (such payments being referred to 

collectively as the "Economic Development Grants"). 

 

The above schedule of the payments for Economic Development Grants is based 

on the first full assessment of the Minimum Improvements being January 1, 2020.  If the 

completion of the Minimum Improvements is delayed so that the Minimum 

Improvements are not fully assessed as of January 1, 2020, then the Economic 

Development Grants will not begin as scheduled above.  In no event shall the City certify 

a request for Tax Increment to the County until the Minimum Improvements are fully 

assessed. It is the responsibility of the Developer to inform the City in writing when the 

Minimum Improvements are first fully assessed and to do so not later than October 15 

after the January 1 when the Minimum Improvements are first fully assessed. 

 

Section 8.2  Conditions. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 8.1 above, the 

obligation of the City to make an Economic Development Grant in any year shall be 

subject to and conditioned upon the following: 

 

(a) an increase in assessed value of at least 50% resulting from 

construction of the Minimum Improvements; and 

 

(b) a total investment of at least $500,000, substantiated by documented 

receipts and invoices provided to the City as part of Developer’s Annual 

Certifications; 

 

(c) compliance with the terms of this Agreement and the obligations 

imposed under the State Agreement;  

 

(d) timely filing by Developer of the Annual Certifications required 

under Section 6.7 hereof and the Council's approval thereof.  

 

53

Item 6.



 

 

Execution Version 

 

 17 

Section 8.3.  Grant Schedule. After the Minimum Improvements are first fully 

assessed and if in compliance with this Agreement, if the Developer's Annual 

Certification is timely filed and contains the information required under Section 6.7 and 

the Council approves of the same, the City shall certify to the County prior to December 

1 of that year its request for the available Tax Increments resulting from the assessments 

imposed by the County as of January 1 of that year, to be collected by the County and 

paid to the City as taxes are paid during the following fiscal year and which shall 

thereafter be disbursed to Developer on the following June 1. (Example: assuming 

completion by December 2019 and first full assessment on January 1, 2020 if Developer 

and the City each so certify in October 2020, the first Economic Development Grants 

would be paid to Developer on June 1, 2022 (for 100% of the Tax Increment for fiscal 

year 2020-2021)). Compliance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement is a 

condition precedent to an Economic Development Grant. As an example, if property 

taxes are not paid, the Developer is not eligible for an Economic Development Grant. 

 

In the event that the Annual Certification required to be delivered by the 

Developer under Section 6.7 is not delivered to the City by October 15 of any year, the 

Developer recognizes and agrees that the City may have insufficient time to review and 

approve the same and certify its request for Tax Increments to the County and that, as a 

result, no Economic Development Grant may be made to the Developer in respect 

thereof.  The City covenants to act in good faith to appropriately review and consider any 

late certification on the part of the Developer, but the City shall not be obligated to make 

any certification to the County for the available Tax Increments or make any 

corresponding payment of the Economic Development Grant to the Developer if, in the 

reasonable judgment of the City, it is not able to give appropriate consideration (which 

may include, but not be limited to, specific discussion before the City Council at a regular 

City Council meeting with respect thereto) to the Developer’s certification due to its late 

filing. 

 

Section 8.4. Maximum Amount of Grants. The aggregate amount of the 

Economic Development Grants that may be paid to Developer under this Agreement shall 

be equal to the sum of the total amount of the applicable percentage of Tax Increments 

collected in respect of the assessments imposed on the Minimum Improvements over the 

specified time period, but in no event shall exceed a total aggregate amount of $68,100.  

Economic Development Grants shall at all times be subject to suspension, reduction, or 

termination in accordance with the terms of this Article VIII.  Thereafter the taxes levied 

on the Minimum Improvements shall be divided and applied in accordance with the 

Urban Renewal Act and the Ordinance. 

 

54

Item 6.



 

 

Execution Version 

 

 18 

It is recognized by all parties that the total aggregate amount set forth above is a 

maximum amount only and that the actual payment amounts will be determined as set 

forth in Section 8.1 and this Article. 

 

Section 8.5.  Limitations. In the event that an Event of Default occurs or any 

certification filed by Developer under Section 6.7 (or other information) discloses the 

existence or prior occurrence of an Event of Default that was not cured or cannot 

reasonably be cured, the City shall have no obligation thereafter to make any payments to 

Developer in respect of the Economic Development Grants and the provisions of this 

Article shall terminate and be of no further force or effect. 

 

Each Annual Certification filed by Developer under Section 6.7 hereof shall be 

considered separately in determining whether the City shall make any of the Economic 

Development Grant payments available to Developer under this Section. Under no 

circumstances shall the failure by Developer to qualify for an Economic Development 

Grant in any year serve to extend the term of this Agreement beyond the Termination 

Date or the years during which Economic Development Grants may be awarded to 

Developer or the total amount thereof, it being the intent of parties hereto to provide 

Developer with an opportunity to receive Economic Development Grants only if 

Developer fully complies with the provisions hereof and the Developer becomes entitled 

thereto, up to the maximum aggregate amount set forth in Section 8.1(c). 

 

Section 8.6.  Source of Grant Funds Limited.   

 

a. The Economic Development Grants shall be payable from and secured 

solely and only by amounts deposited and held in the Panther Builders, LLC, 616 Clay 

Street TIF Account of the Downtown Development Urban Renewal Tax Increment 

Revenue Fund of the City. The City hereby covenants and agrees to maintain the 

Ordinance in force during the term hereof and to apply the appropriate percentage of Tax 

Increments collected in respect of the Minimum Improvements and allocated to the 

Panther Builders, LLC, 616 Clay Street TIF Account to pay the Economic Development 

Grants, as and to the extent set forth in this Article.  The Economic Development Grants 

shall not be payable in any manner by other tax increment revenues or by general 

taxation or from any other City funds. Any commercial and industrial property tax 

replacement monies that may be received under chapter 441.21A shall not be included in 

the calculation to determine the amount of Economic Development Grants for which 

Developer is eligible, and any monies received back under chapter 426C relating to the 

Business Property Tax Credit shall not be included in the calculation to determine the 

amount of Economic Development Grants for which Developer is eligible. 

 

55

Item 6.



 

 

Execution Version 

 

 19 

b. Each Economic Development Grant is subject to annual appropriation by 

the City Council. The right of non-appropriation reserved to the City in this Section is 

intended by the parties, and shall be construed at all times, so as to ensure that the City's 

obligation to make future Economic Development Grants shall not constitute a legal 

indebtedness of the City within the meaning of any applicable constitutional or statutory 

debt limitation prior to the adoption of a budget which appropriates funds for the payment 

of that installment or amount. In the event that any of the provisions of this Agreement 

are determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to create, or result in the creation of, 

such a legal indebtedness of the City, the enforcement of the said provision shall be 

suspended, and the Agreement shall at all times be construed and applied in such a 

manner as will preserve the foregoing intent of the parties, and no Event of Default by the 

City shall be deemed to have occurred as a result thereof. If any provision of this 

Agreement or the application thereof to any circumstance is so suspended, the suspension 

shall not affect other provisions of this Agreement which can be given effect without the 

suspended provision. To this end the provisions of this Agreement are severable. 

 

c. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 8.1 hereof, the City shall have no 

obligation to make an Economic Development Grant to Developer if at any time during 

the term hereof the City fails to appropriate funds for payment, or receives an opinion 

from its legal counsel to the effect that the use of Tax Increments resulting from the 

Minimum Improvements to fund an Economic Development Grant to Developer, as 

contemplated under said Section 8.1, is not authorized or otherwise an appropriate urban 

renewal activity permitted to be undertaken by the City under the Urban Renewal Act or 

other applicable provisions of the Code, as then constituted or under controlling decision 

of any Iowa Court having jurisdiction over the subject matter hereof. Upon receipt of any 

such legal opinion or non-appropriation, the City shall promptly forward notice of the 

same to Developer.  If the non-appropriation or circumstances or legal constraints giving 

rise to the decision continue for a period during which two (2) annual Economic 

Development Grants would otherwise have been paid to the Developer under the terms of 

Section 8.1, the City may terminate this Agreement, without penalty or other liability to 

the City, by written notice to Developer. 

 

d. The City makes no representation with respect to the amounts that may 

finally be paid to Developer as the Economic Development Grants, and under no 

circumstances shall the City in any manner be liable to Developer so long as the City 

timely applies the appropriate percentage of Tax Increments actually collected and held 

in the Panther Builders, LLC, 616 Clay Street TIF Account (regardless of the amounts 

thereof) to the payment of the corresponding Economic Development Grants to 

Developer as and to the extent described in this Article. 

 

56

Item 6.



 

 

Execution Version 

 

 20 

Section 8.7.  Use of Other Tax Increments. The City shall be free to use any and 

all Tax Increments collected from any other properties within the Downtown 

Development Urban Renewal Area, or any available Tax Increments resulting from the 

suspension or termination of the Economic Development Grants, for any purpose for 

which the Tax Increments may lawfully be used pursuant to the provisions of the Urban 

Renewal Act (including an allocation of all or any portion thereof to the reduction of any 

eligible City costs), and the City shall have no obligations to Developer with respect to 

the use thereof. 

 

Section 8.8.  Real Property Taxes.  Developer or its successors shall pay or cause 

to be paid, when due, all real property taxes and assessments payable with respect to all 

and any parts of the Development Property acquired and owned or leased by them and 

pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement. Until Developer's obligations have been 

assumed by any other person or legal title to the property is vested in another person, all 

pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement, Developer shall be solely responsible for all 

assessments and taxes.  

 

Developer and its successors agree that prior to the Termination Date: 

 

a. They will not seek administrative review or judicial review of the 

applicability or constitutionality of any tax statute relating to the taxation of real property 

contained on the Development Property determined by any tax official to be applicable to 

the Development Property, Minimum Improvements, or raise the inapplicability or 

constitutionality of any such tax statute as a defense in any proceedings, including 

delinquent tax proceedings; and 

 

b. They will not seek any tax exemption deferral or abatement either presently 

or prospectively authorized under any State, federal or local law with respect to taxation 

of real property contained on the Development Property between the date of execution of 

this Agreement and the Termination Date. 

  

ARTICLE IX.  INDEMNIFICATION 

 

 Section 9.1.  Release and Indemnification Covenants. 

 

 a. Developer releases the City and the governing body members, officers, 

agents, servants and employees thereof (hereinafter, for purposes of this Article IX, the 

"indemnified parties") from, covenants and agrees that the indemnified parties shall not 

be liable for, and agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the indemnified parties 

against, any loss or damage to property or any injury to or death of any person occurring 

57

Item 6.



 

 

Execution Version 

 

 21 

at or about or resulting from any defect in the Minimum Improvements or Development 

Property.  

 

 b. Except for any willful misrepresentation or any willful or wanton 

misconduct or any unlawful act of the indemnified parties, Developer agrees to protect 

and defend the indemnified parties, now or forever, and further agrees to hold the 

indemnified parties harmless, from any claim, demand, suit, action or other proceedings 

whatsoever by any person or entity whatsoever arising or purportedly arising from:  (i) 

any violation of any agreement or condition of this Agreement (except with respect to 

any suit, action, demand or other proceeding brought by Developer against the City to 

enforce its rights under this Agreement); (ii) the acquisition and condition of the 

Development Property and the construction, installation, ownership, and operation of the 

Minimum Improvements; or (iii) any hazardous substance or environmental 

contamination located in or on the Development Property. 

 

 c. The indemnified parties shall not be liable for any damage or injury to the 

persons or property of Developer or their officers, agents, servants or employees or any 

other person who may be about the Minimum Improvements or Development Property 

due to any act of negligence of any person, other than any act of negligence on the part of 

any such indemnified party or its officers, agents, servants or employees. 

 

 d.  All covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements, and obligations of the 

City contained herein shall be deemed to be the covenants, stipulations, promises, 

agreements, and obligations of the City, and not of any governing body member, officer, 

agent, servant or employee of the City in the individual capacity thereof. 

 

 e. The provisions of this Article IX shall survive the termination of this 

Agreement. 

 

ARTICLE X.  REMEDIES 

 

Section 10.1.  Events of Default Defined. The following shall be "Events of 

Default" under this Agreement and the term "Event of Default" shall mean, whenever it is 

used in this Agreement, any one or more of the following events during the Term of this 

Agreement: 

 

a. Failure by Developer to cause the Minimum Improvements operations to 

continue pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Agreement; 

 

b.   Failure by Developer to comply with any provision of this Agreement or 

the State Agreement; 

58

Item 6.



 

 

Execution Version 

 

 22 

 

c. Transfer of Developer's interest in the Development Property or any interest 

in this Agreement or the assets of Developer in violation of the provisions of this 

Agreement; 

 

d. Failure by Developer to pay ad valorem taxes on the Development Property 

and Minimum Improvements;  

 

e. Failure by Developer to substantially observe or perform any covenant, 

condition, obligation or agreement on its part to be observed or performed under this 

Agreement; 

 

f. The holder of any mortgage on the Development Property, or any 

improvements thereon, or any portion thereof, commences foreclosure proceedings as a 

result of any default under the applicable mortgage documents; 

 

g. Developer shall: 

 

 i. file any petition in bankruptcy or for any reorganization, 

arrangement, composition, readjustment, liquidation, dissolution, or similar relief under 

the United States Bankruptcy Act of 1978, as amended, or under any similar federal or 

state law; or 

 

 ii. make an assignment for the benefit of its creditors; or 

 

 iii. admit in writing its inability to pay its debts generally as they 

become due; or 

 

 iv. be adjudicated as bankrupt or insolvent; or if a petition or answer 

proposing the adjudication of Developer as a bankrupt or its reorganization under any 

present or future federal bankruptcy act or any similar federal or state law shall be filed in 

any court and such petition or answer shall not be discharged or denied within ninety (90) 

days after the filing thereof; or a receiver, trustee or liquidator of Developer or the 

Minimum Improvements, or part thereof, shall be appointed in any proceedings brought 

against Developer, and shall not be discharged within ninety (90) days after such 

appointment, or if Developer shall consent to or acquiesce in such appointment; or 

 

h. Any representation or warranty made by Developer in this Agreement or in 

any written statement or certificate furnished by Developer pursuant to this Agreement, 

shall prove to have been incorrect, incomplete or misleading in any material respect on or 

as of the date of the issuance or making thereof. 

59

Item 6.



 

 

Execution Version 

 

 23 

 

Section 10.2.  Remedies on Default. Whenever any Event of Default referred to in 

Section 10.1 of this Agreement occurs and is continuing, the City, as specified below, 

may take any one or more of the following actions after the giving of thirty (30) days' 

written notice by the City to Developer of the Event of Default, but only if the Event of 

Default has not been cured within said thirty (30) days, or if the Event of Default cannot 

reasonably be cured within thirty (30) days and Developer does not provide assurances 

reasonably satisfactory to the City that the Event of Default will be cured as soon as 

reasonably possible: 

 

a. The City may suspend its performance under this Agreement until it 

receives assurances from Developer, deemed adequate by the City, that Developer will 

cure the default and continue its performance under this Agreement; 

 

b. The City may terminate this Agreement; 

 

c. The City may withhold the Certificate of Completion;  

 

d. The City may take any action, including legal, equitable or administrative 

action, which may appear necessary or desirable to enforce performance and observance 

of any obligation, agreement, or covenant of Developer, as the case may be, under this 

Agreement; or 

 

e. The City shall be entitled to recover from the Developer, and the Developer 

shall repay to the City, an amount equal to the full amount of the Economic Development 

Grants previously made to Developer under Article VIII hereof, with interest thereon at 

the highest rate permitted by State law. The City may take any action, including any legal 

action it deems necessary, to recover such amount from Developer. 

 

f. At the option of the City, Developer's right of possession of the 

Development Property shall terminate, and the City shall be entitled to possession of the 

Premises. The City may proceed to recover possession by process of law. In the event of 

such re-entry by process of law, Developer nevertheless agrees to remain answerable for 

any and all damages the City may sustain by such recovery, whether or not the City relets 

the Premises. In the event of re-entry, the City shall have full power that is hereby 

acceded to by Developer, to relet the Premises for and on behalf of and at the expense of 

Developer.  

 

Section 10.3.  No Remedy Exclusive. No remedy herein conferred upon or 

reserved to the City is intended to be exclusive of any other available remedy or 

remedies, but each and every remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every 

60

Item 6.



 

 

Execution Version 

 

 24 

other remedy given under this Agreement or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity 

or by statute. No delay or omission to exercise any right or power accruing upon any 

default shall impair any such right or power or shall be construed to be a waiver thereof, 

but any such right and power may be exercised from time to time and as often as may be 

deemed expedient.   

 

Section 10.4.  No Implied Waiver. In the event any agreement contained in this 

Agreement should be breached by any party and thereafter waived by any other party, 

such waiver shall be limited to the particular breach so waived and shall not be deemed to 

waive any other concurrent, previous or subsequent breach hereunder. 

 

 Section 10.5.  Agreement to Pay Attorneys' Fees and Expenses.  Whenever any 

Event of Default occurs and the City shall employ attorneys or incur other expenses for 

the collection of payment due or to become due or for the enforcement or performance or 

observance of any obligation or agreement on the part of Developer herein contained, 

Developer agrees that it shall, on demand therefor, pay to the City the reasonable fees of 

such attorneys and such other expenses as may be reasonably and appropriately incurred 

by the City in connection therewith.  

 

ARTICLE XI     RESERVED 

 

ARTICLE XII.  MISCELLANEOUS 

 

 Section 12.1.  Conflict of Interest. Developer represents and warrants that, to its 

best knowledge and belief after due inquiry, no officer or employee of the City, or their 

designees or agents, nor any consultant or member of the governing body of the City, and 

no other public official of the City who exercises or has exercised any functions or 

responsibilities with respect to the Project during his or her tenure, or who is in a position 

to participate in a decision-making process or gain insider information with regard to the 

Project, has had or shall have any interest, direct or indirect, in any contract or 

subcontract, or the proceeds thereof, for work or services to be performed in connection 

with the Project, or in any activity, or benefit therefrom, which is part of the Project at 

any time during or after such person's tenure. 

 

Section 12.2.  Notices and Demands. A notice, demand or other communication 

under this Agreement by any party to the other shall be sufficiently given or delivered if 

it is dispatched by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, 

or delivered personally, and 

 

61

Item 6.



 

 

Execution Version 

 

 25 

a. In the case of Developer, is addressed or delivered personally to Panther 

Builders, LLC, 616 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613, Attn: Brent 

Dahlstrom, Member; 

 

b. In the case of the City, is addressed to or delivered personally to the City at 

220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, Attn: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director 

of Finance and Business Operations; 

 

or to such other designated individual or officer or to such other address as any party 

shall have furnished to the other in writing in accordance herewith. 

 

Section 12.3.  Titles of Articles and Sections. Any titles of the several parts, 

Articles, and Sections of this Agreement are inserted for convenience of reference only 

and shall be disregarded in construing or interpreting any of its provisions. 

 

Section 12.4.  Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of 

counterparts, each of which shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

 

Section 12.5.  Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed and construed in 

accordance with the laws of the State of Iowa. 

 

Section 12.6.  Entire Agreement. This Agreement and the exhibits hereto reflect 

the entire agreement among the parties regarding the subject matter hereof, and 

supersedes and replaces all prior agreements, negotiations or discussions, whether oral or 

written. This Agreement may not be amended except by a subsequent writing signed by 

all parties hereto. 

 

Section 12.7  Successors and Assigns. This Agreement is intended to and shall 

inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective 

successors and assigns. 

 

Section 12.8.  Termination Date. This Agreement shall terminate and be of no 

further force or effect on and after December 31, 2026, unless terminated earlier under 

the provisions of this Agreement. 

 

Section 12.9.  Memorandum of Agreement. The parties agree to execute and 

record a Memorandum of Agreement for Private Development, in substantially the form 

attached as Exhibit D, to serve as notice to the public of the existence and provisions of 

this Agreement, and the rights and interests held by the City by virtue hereof.  

 

62

Item 6.



 

 

Execution Version 

 

 26 

Section 12.10  No Third-Party Beneficiaries. No rights or privileges of either party 

hereto shall inure to the benefit of any landowner, contractor, subcontractor, material 

supplier, or any other person or entity, and no such contractor, landowner, subcontractor, 

material supplier, or any other person or entity shall be deemed to be a third-party 

beneficiary of any of the provisions contained in this Agreement. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City has caused this Agreement to be duly 

executed in its name and behalf by its Mayor and its seal to be hereunto duly affixed and 

attested by its City Clerk and Developer has caused this Agreement to be duly executed 

in its name and behalf by its authorized representatives, all on or as of the day first above 

written. 

 

 

[Signatures start on the next page]  

63

Item 6.



 

 

Execution Version 

 

 27 

 

(SEAL)     CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

 

By: ________________________________ 

Robert M. Green, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

By: ____________________________________ 

      Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA          ) 

                         )  SS  

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK ) 

 

 On this _____ day of _________________, 2020, before me a Notary Public in 

and for said State, personally appeared Robert M. Green and Jacqueline Danielsen, to me 

personally known, who being duly sworn, did say that they are the Mayor and City Clerk, 

respectively, of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, a Municipality created and existing under 

the laws of the State of Iowa, and that the seal affixed to the foregoing instrument is the 

seal of said Municipality, and that said instrument was signed and sealed on behalf of 

said Municipality by authority and resolution of its City Council, and said Mayor and 

City Clerk acknowledged said instrument to be the free act and deed of said Municipality 

by it voluntarily executed. 

 

 

 

 
______________________________________ 

Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

64

Item 6.



 

Execution Version 

 28 

 

DEVELOPER: 

 

Panther Builders, LLC 

 

 

By: _________________________________ 

 Brent Dahlstrom, Authorized Representative 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA   ) 

                      )  SS  

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK ) 

 

On this _______ day of ________________, 2020, before me the undersigned, a Notary 

Public in and for said State, personally appeared Brent Dahlstrom, to me personally known, 

who, being by me duly sworn, did say that he is the Authorized Representative of Panther 

Builders, LLC, and that said instrument was signed on behalf of said company; and that the said 

Brent Dahlstrom  as such officer, acknowledged the execution of said instrument to be the 

voluntary act and deed of said company, by her voluntarily executed. 

 

 

  ______________________________________ 

  Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

 

65

Item 6.



 

Execution Version 

 29 

EXHIBIT A 

 

DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY 

 

 

The Development Property is legally described as follows: 

 
AUDITORS PLAT NO 19 CF LOTS 9 AND 10 
 

Locally known as 616 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 

Parcel # 8914-12-337-014 (Black Hawk County) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

66

Item 6.



 

Execution Version 

 30 

EXHIBIT B 

 

MINIMUM IMPROVEMENTS 

 

Minimum Improvements shall mean the construction of an approximate 3,500 square foot 

commercial building. This will allow for increased commercial business and the creation and 

retention of jobs. The construction of the Minimum Improvements is expected to be completed 

in 2019. Construction costs are expected to be approximately $500,000.   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

67

Item 6.



 

Execution Version 

 31 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

616 Clay Street 

Proposed Building Rendering 

616 Clay Street 

Proposed Site Plan 

68

Item 6.



 

Execution Version 

 32 

EXHIBIT C 

 

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (the "City") and Panther Builders, LLC, an 

Iowa Limited Liability Company, ("Developer"), did on or about the _____ day of 

____________________, 2020, make, execute and deliver, each to the other, an Agreement for 

Private Development (the "Agreement"), wherein and whereby Developer agreed, in accordance 

with the terms of the Agreement, to develop and maintain certain real property located within 

the City and as more particularly described as follows: 

 
AUDITORS PLAT NO 19 CF LOTS 9 AND 10 

 

Locally known as 616 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 

(the "Development Property"); and 

 

WHEREAS, the Agreement incorporated and contained certain covenants and restrictions 

with respect to the development of the Development Property, and acknowledged that the 

Developer constructed certain Minimum Improvements (as defined therein) in accordance with 

the Agreement; and 

 

WHEREAS, Developer has to the present date performed said covenants and conditions 

insofar as they relate to the construction of said Minimum Improvements in a manner deemed 

by the City to be in conformance with the Agreement to permit the execution and recording of 

this certification. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, this is to certify that all covenants and conditions of the 

Agreement with respect to the obligations of Developer and its successors and assigns, to 

construct the Minimum Improvements on the Development Property have been completed and 

performed by Developer and are hereby released absolutely and forever terminated insofar as 

they apply to the land described herein. The County Recorder of Black Hawk County is hereby 

authorized to accept for recording and to record the filing of this instrument, to be a conclusive 

determination of the satisfactory termination of the covenants and conditions of said Agreement 

with respect to the construction of the Minimum Improvements on the Development Property. 

 

All other provisions of the Agreement shall otherwise remain in full force and effect until 

termination as provided therein. 

 

 

 

 

69

Item 6.



 

Execution Version 

 33 

 

(SEAL)     CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

 

By: ________________________________ 

Robert M. Green, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

By: _________________________________________ 

      Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  

 

 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA          ) 

                         )  SS  

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK ) 

 

 On this ________ day of ________________________, 2020, before me a Notary Public 

in and for said State, personally appeared Robert M. Green and Jacqueline Danielsen, to me 

personally known, who being duly sworn, did say that they are the Mayor and City Clerk, 

respectively, of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, a Municipality created and existing under the laws 

of the State of Iowa, and that the seal affixed to the foregoing instrument is the seal of said 

Municipality, and that said instrument was signed and sealed on behalf of said Municipality by 

authority and resolution of its City Council, and said Mayor and City Clerk acknowledged said 

instrument to be the free act and deed of said Municipality by it voluntarily executed. 

 

       

      __________________________________  

      Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa

70

Item 6.



 

Execution Version 

 34 

EXHIBIT D 

 

 MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT FOR PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT 

 

WHEREAS, the City of  Cedar Falls, Iowa (the "City"), and Panther Builders, LLC, an 

Iowa Limited Liability Company, ("Developer"), did on or about the _____ day of 

_______________, 2020, make, execute and deliver, each to the other, an Agreement for Private 

Development (the "Agreement"), wherein and whereby Developer agreed, in accordance with 

the terms of the Agreement and the Downtown Development Area Urban Renewal Plan (the 

"Plan"), to develop certain real property located within the City and within the Downtown 

Development Urban Renewal Plan/Area. 

 

The Development Property is described as follows: 

 
AUDITORS PLAT NO 19 CF LOTS 9 AND 10 

 

Locally known as 616 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 

Parcel # 8914-12-337-004 (Black Hawk County) 

 

(the "Development Property"); and 

 

WHEREAS, the term of the Agreement commenced on the ____ day of 

________________, 2020 and terminates on December 31, 2026, unless otherwise terminated as 

set forth in the Agreement; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City and Developer desire to record a Memorandum of the Agreement 

referring to the Development Property and their respective interests therein.   

 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 

1. That the recording of this Memorandum of Agreement for Private Development 

shall serve as notice to the public that the Agreement contains provisions restricting 

development and use of the Development Property and the improvements located and operated 

on such Development Property. 

 

2. That all of the provisions of the Agreement and any subsequent amendments 

thereto, if any, even though not set forth herein, are by the filing of this Memorandum of 

Agreement for Private Development made a part hereof by reference, and that anyone making 

any claim against any of said Development Property in any manner whatsoever shall be fully 

advised as to all of the terms and conditions of the Agreement, and any amendments thereto, as 

if the same were fully set forth herein.   

 

71

Item 6.



 

Execution Version 

 35 

3. That a copy of the Agreement and any subsequent amendments thereto, if any, 

shall be maintained on file for public inspection during ordinary business hours in the office of 

the City Clerk, Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and Developer have executed this Memorandum of 

Agreement for Private Development on the ______ day of ___________________, 2020. 

 

 

(SEAL)     CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

By: ________________________________ 

Robert M. Green, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

By: _____________________________________ 

       Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA          ) 

                         )  SS  

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK ) 

 

 On this ________ day of ________________________, 2020, before me a Notary Public 

in and for said State, personally appeared Robert M. Green and Jacqueline Danielsen, to me 

personally known, who being duly sworn, did say that they are the Mayor and City Clerk, 

respectively, of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, a Municipality created and existing under the laws 

of the State of Iowa, and that the seal affixed to the foregoing instrument is the seal of said 

Municipality, and that said instrument was signed and sealed on behalf of said Municipality by 

authority and resolution of its City Council, and said Mayor and City Clerk acknowledged said 

instrument to be the free act and deed of said Municipality by it voluntarily executed. 

       

 

      ___________________________________  

      Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

 

 

 

 

 

 

72

Item 6.



 

Execution Version 

 36 

DEVELOPER: 

 

Panther Builders, LLC 

 

 

By:   __________________________________ 

Brent Dahlstrom, Authorized Representative 

 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA   ) 

                      )  SS  

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK ) 

 

On this _______ day of ________________, 2020, before me the undersigned, a Notary 

Public in and for said State, personally appeared Brent Dahlstrom, to me personally known, 

who, being by me duly sworn, did say that she is the Authorized Representative of Panther 

Builders, LLC, and that said instrument was signed on behalf of said limited liability company; 

and that the said Brent Dahlstrom as such officer, acknowledged the execution of said 

instrument to be the voluntary act and deed of said company, by her voluntarily executed. 

 

 

  ______________________________________ 

  Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa  

73

Item 6.



 

Execution Version 

 37 

EXHIBIT E 

DEVELOPER ANNUAL CERTIFICATION  

 (due before October 15st as required under terms of Development Agreement) 

The Developer certifies the following:  

A. During the time period covered by this Certification, the Developer is and was in compliance with Section 

6.7 as follows: 

(i) all ad valorem taxes on the Development Property then owned by the Developer in the Urban 

Renewal Area have been paid for the prior fiscal year (and for the current year, if due) and attached to this Annual 

Certification are proof of payment of said taxes; 

 

(ii) The Minimum Improvements (building only) were first fully assessed on January 1, 20___, at a 

full assessment value of $______________; 

 

(iii) The number of Full-Time Equivalent Employment Units employed at the Minimum Improvements 

as of October 1, 20___ and as of the first day of each of the preceding eleven (11) months were are follows: 

October 1, 20__: ______   April 1, 20__:_________ 

September 1, 20__:_________  March 1, 20__:_________ 

August 1, 20__:_________      February 1, 20___:________ 

July 1, 20__:_________   January 1, 20__:_______ 

June 1, 20__:_________   December 1, 20__:_______ 

May1, 20__: __________   November 1, 20__:_______ 

 

(iv) the undersigned officers of Developer have re-examined the terms and provisions of this 

Agreement and that at the date of such certificate, and during the preceding twelve (12) months, certify that the 

Developer is not, or was not, in default in the fulfillment of any of the terms and conditions of this Agreement and 

that no Event of Default (or event which, with the lapse of time or the giving of notice, or both, would become an 

Event of Default) is occurring or has occurred as of the date of such certificate or during such period, or if the signer 

is aware of any such default, event or Event of Default, said officer shall disclose in such statement the nature 

thereof, its period of existence and what action, if any, has been taken or is proposed to be taken with respect 

thereto. 

Signed this _________ day of _____________________, 20___. 

 

 

PANTHER BUILDERS, LLC, 

By: ______________________________ 

  Brent Dahlstrom 

ATTEST: 

By:   _____________________________ 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA   ) 

                      )  SS  

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK  ) 

 

On this _______ day of ________________, 20__, before me the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said State, 

personally appeared Brent Dahlstrom, to me personally known, who, being by me duly sworn, did say that he is the 

Authorized Representative of Panther Builders, LLC, and that said instrument was signed on behalf of said company; and 

that the said Brent Dahlstrom here as such officer, acknowledged the execution of said instrument to be the voluntary act and 

deed of said limited liability company, by her voluntarily executed. 

   

  ___________________________________ 

      Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

 

Attachments: (a) Proof of payment of taxes        

74

Item 6.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA (319) 268-5160 

 

RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING 

EXECUTION OF AN AGREEMENT FOR PRIVATE 

DEVELOPMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF CEDAR 

FALLS AND PANTHER BUILDERS, LLC 

 

 WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 7418, adopted November 24, 1986, and amended 

by Amendment No. 1, approved by Resolution No. 12,795 on May 14, 2001, by 

Amendment No. 2, approved by Resolution No. 18,165 on July 16, 2012, by Amendment 

No. 3, approved by Resolution No. 18,837 on November 11, 2013, by Amendment No. 4, 

approved by Resolution 20,864 on December 18, 2017, and by Amendment No. 5, 

approved by Resolution 21,367 on December 17, 2018, this Council found and 

determined that certain areas located within the City are eligible and should be designated 

as an urban renewal area under Iowa law, and approved and adopted the Downtown 

Development Area Urban Renewal Plan ("Plan" or “Urban Renewal Plan”) for the 

Downtown Development Area Urban Renewal Area (“Area” or "Urban Renewal Area") 

described therein, which Plan, as amended, is on file in the office of the Recorder of 

Black Hawk County; and 

 

 WHEREAS, it is desirable that properties within the Area be redeveloped as part 

of the overall redevelopment area covered by said Plan; and 

  

WHEREAS, the City has received a proposal from Panther Builders, LLC (the 

"Developer"), in the form of a proposed Agreement for Private Development (the 

"Agreement") by and between the City and the Developer, pursuant to which, among 

other things, the Developer would agree to construct certain Minimum Improvements (as 

defined in the Agreement) on certain real property located within the Downtown 

Development Area Urban Renewal Area as defined and legally described in the 

Agreement and consisting of the construction of an approximate 3,500 square foot 

commercial, together with all related site improvements, as outlined in the proposed 

Agreement; and   

75

Item 6.



 

WHEREAS, the Agreement further proposes that the City will make up to five (5) 

consecutive annual payments of Economic Development Grants to Developer in the form 

of a percentage of Tax Increments generated from the construction of the Minimum 

Improvements, the cumulative total for all such payments not to exceed the lesser of 

$68,100, or the amount accrued under the formula outlined in the proposed Agreement 

for Private Development, under the terms and following satisfaction of the conditions set 

forth in the Agreement; and 

 

WHEREAS, Iowa Code Chapters 15A and 403 (the "Urban Renewal Law") 

authorize cities to make grants for economic development and blight remediation in 

furtherance of the objectives of an urban renewal project and to appropriate such funds 

and make such expenditures as may be necessary to carry out the purposes of said 

Chapters, and to levy taxes and assessments for such purposes; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Council has determined that the Agreement is in the best interests 

of the City and the residents thereof and that the performance by the City of its 

obligations thereunder is a public undertaking and purpose and in furtherance of the Plan 

and the Urban Renewal Law and, further, that the Agreement and the City's performance 

thereunder is in furtherance of appropriate economic development and blight remediation 

activities and objectives of the City within the meaning of Chapters 15A and 403 of the 

Iowa Code taking into account any or all of the factors set forth in Chapter 15A, to wit: 

 

a. Businesses that add diversity to or generate new opportunities for the Iowa 

economy should be favored over those that do not. 

 

b. Development policies in the dispensing of the funds should attract, retain, 

or expand businesses that produce exports or import substitutes or which 

generate tourism-related activities. 

 

c. Development policies in the dispensing or use of the funds should be 

targeted toward businesses that generate public gains and benefits, which 

gains and benefits are warranted in comparison to the amount of the funds 

dispensed. 

 

d. Development policies in dispensing the funds should not be used to attract a 

business presently located within the state to relocate to another portion of 

the state unless the business is considering in good faith to relocate outside 

the state or unless the relocation is related to an expansion which will 

generate significant new job creation.  Jobs created as a result of other jobs 

in similar Iowa businesses being displaced shall not be considered direct 

jobs for the purpose of dispensing funds; and 

 

76

Item 6.



 WHEREAS, pursuant to notice published as required by law, this Council has held 

a public meeting and hearing upon the proposal to approve and authorize execution of the 

Agreement and has considered the extent of objections received from residents or 

property owners as to said proposed Agreement; and, accordingly the following action is 

now considered to be in the best interests of the City and residents thereof. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS IN THE STATE OF IOWA: 

 

Section 1.  That the performance by the City of its obligations under the 

Agreement, including but not limited to making of grants to the Developer in connection 

with the development of the Development Property under the terms set forth in the 

Agreement, be and is hereby declared to be a public undertaking and purpose and in 

furtherance of the Plan and the Urban Renewal Law and, further, that the Agreement and 

the City's performance thereunder is in furtherance of appropriate economic development 

and blight remediation activities and objectives of the City within the meaning of 

Chapters 15A and 403 of the Iowa Code, taking into account the factors set forth therein. 

 

Section 2.  That the form and content of the Agreement, the provisions of which 

are incorporated herein by reference, be and the same hereby are in all respects 

authorized, approved and confirmed, and the Mayor and the City Clerk be and they 

hereby are authorized, empowered and directed to execute, attest, seal and deliver the 

Agreement for and on behalf of the City in substantially the form and content now before 

this meeting, but with such changes, modifications, additions or deletions therein as shall 

be approved by such officers, and that from and after the execution and delivery of the 

Agreement, the Mayor and the City Clerk are hereby authorized, empowered and directed 

to do all such acts and things and to execute all such documents as may be necessary to 

carry out and comply with the provisions of the Agreement as executed. 

 

 PASSED AND APPROVED this 21st day of September, 2020.  

 

 

       _______________________________ 

       Robert M. Green, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

  

77

Item 6.



CERTIFICATE 

 

STATE OF IOWA 

 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK 

) 

) SS 

) 

 
  

I, Jacqueline Danielsen, City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereby certify that 

the above and foregoing is a true and correct typewritten copy of Resolution No. 

_______________ duly and legally adopted by the City Council of said City on the _____ day of 

____________________, 2020. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto signed my name and affixed the official seal 

of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa this _____ day of ____________________, 2020. 

   

  

Jacqueline Danielsen 

City Clerk of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 

  

78

Item 6.



1 
 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Jaydevsinh Atodaria, Planner I 

 DATE: August 13, 2020 

 SUBJECT: Rezoning Request Cedar Falls High School (RZ20-005) 
  Land Use Map Amendment (LU20-002) 
 

 
REQUEST: 
 

Amend Future Land Use Map to reflect public use of the property. 
Rezone property from A-1, Agricultural District to P, Public Zoning District. 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Cedar Falls Community School District / Brian Sanderman, INVISION 
Architects 
 

LOCATION: 
 

North of W. 27th Street and west of PE Center Drive 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
The Cedar Falls Community School District has requested to rezone 20 acres (871,200SF) of 
property from the A-1, Agricultural District, to the P, Public Zoning District. This property is 
located north of W. 27th Street and west of PE Center Drive.  
 
BACKGROUND 
Cedar Falls Community School District (CFCSD) owns the subject property. This parcel was 
purchased by CFCSD last year from the adjacent property owner to the west in order to provide 
additional area for the new high school campus.    
 
CFCSD also owns the abutting property at 2701 W 27th Street to the east of the subject property 
which is approximately 50 acres (2,178,000SF).  The property west of the subject property is 
currently being rezoned to allow development of West Fork Crossing, a large planned residential 
area. The area to the east is owned by the University of Northern Iowa. The 50-acre parcel to 
the east of the subject property was purchased from UNI, so is already zoned Public.  
 
If the petitioner’s request to rezone the property to P zone is approved, the intent is to combine 
the subject property with the lot to the east in order to accommodate a new Cedar Falls High 

79

Item 7.



2 
 

School campus on a total land area of about 70 acres. The applicant will be submitting a site 
plan for the new Cedar Falls High School facility at a later date.  
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Existing and Proposed Zoning 
The request is to rezone 20 acres of land north of W 27th Street and west of PE Center Drive 
from A-1, Agricultural District to P, Public Zoning District. The purpose of A-1 Agricultural 
District is to act as a "holding zone" in areas of the city that are undeveloped and not served 
by essential municipal services (i.e., sanitary sewer, water, roadways) but where future growth 
and development is anticipated according to the Comprehensive Plan.  
 
The Public Zoning District Zone designation is reserved exclusively for structures and uses of 
land owned by the federal government, the state, the county, the city and the Cedar Falls 
Community School District. Although such publicly owned property is generally exempt from 
zoning regulations and requirements, it is expected that such governmental authorities will 
cooperate with the City to encourage structures and uses of public land which will be compatible 
with the general character of the area in which the public property is located.  
 
The rezoning is a necessary first step to allow development of the new high school. The request 
aligns with the intent to develop the land for public purposes. 
 
Compliance with the Comprehensive Plan and Future Land Use Map 
 
The Future Land Use Map in the City’s Comprehensive Plan indicates that this property is 
designated for Medium Density Residential use. With the purchase of the property by the school 
district, the Future Land Use Map will need to be amended for both the property purchased from 
UNI, which is currently designated as “University,” and the property that is the subject of this 
rezoning.  Staff recommends amending the map to reflect the “School” designation for both 
properties. See excerpt from the Future Land Use Map below with properties labeled.  
 

 
Future Land use Map (Legend) 

University- 
Low Density Residential -  
Medium Density Residential- 

80

Item 7.



3 
 

 
Access to Public Services 
The property is located in a developed area of the city and will have access to utilities. The City 
will be re-constructing W. 27th Street to facilitate development of the new school. With that 
project a sewer main will be extended from the south to serve the new school and the West Fork 
Crossing development.    
 
Access to Adequate Street Network 
A traffic study has been conducted to assess the traffic circulation needs for the school, with two 
driveway access points anticipated along W. 27th Street, one from PE Center Drive and a local 
neighborhood street connection on the west side of the property.  The subject property will have 
adequate street connections in order to regulate the traffic flow and accessibility to the site.  
 
PUBLIC NOTICE 
Notice of the rezoning proposal was mailed to the adjoining property owners with the potential 
date of public hearing and public hearing notice was also published in Waterloo Cedar Falls 
Courier on 16th July, 2020. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of rezoning of the subject property 
from A-1, Agricultural District to P, Public District and an amendment to the Future Land Use 
Map changing the designation of the entire high school site from “Medium Density Residential” 
and “University” to “Schools” at their regular meeting on July 22, 2020 with a vote of 6 ayes and 
0 nays. The Community Development Department also recommends approval of the proposed 
Rezoning and Future Land Use Amendment. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Introduction  
7/8/2020 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Discussion 
& Vote 
7/22/2020 

Chair Holst introduced the item and Mr. Atodaria provided background 
information. He explained that the Cedar Falls Community School District is 
requesting a rezoning for property north of W. 27th Street and west of PE Center 
Drive from A-1, Agricultural,  to P, Public.  The school district intends to use the 
land for construction of a new high school. He noted that the Future Land Use 
Map will also need amending to acknowledge the public ownership and use of the 
property by the public school district. The proposed land use map amendment 
would change the designations on the map from “Medium Density Residential” 
and “University” to “Schools.” Staff recommends setting a date of public hearing 
for July 22 to discuss the proposed rezoning and amendment to the future land 
use map. Andy Pattee, superintendent of Cedar Falls Schools, stated that he is 
available for any questions and thanked the Commission for their work.  

Mr. Schrad asked if notification letters will be sent out before the next meeting. 
Mr. Atodaria stated that notices have been sent out and notification will also be 
posted in the newspaper. The matter will be continued at the next meeting. 

 
Chair Holst introduced the item and Mr. Atodaria provided background 
information, explaining that Cedar Falls Community School District is proposing to 
rezone the property North of W 27th Street and West of PE Center drive from A1, 
Agriculture District to P, Public Zoning District for the proposed new Cedar Falls 

81

Item 7.



4 
 

High School campus. The Future Land Use map will also have to be amended 
from “Medium Density Residential” and “University” to “Schools”. Mr. Atodaria 
explained that improvements are planned along W.27th Street and to extend the 
sewer from the south so there will be access to public services, as well as 
adequate street access to the property. Staff recommends approval of the 
rezoning and future land use map amendment.    
 
Mr. Prideaux made a motion to approve the land use map amendment. Ms. 
Adkins seconded the motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 6 ayes 
(Adkins, Hartley, Holst, Lynch, Prideaux and Schrad), and 0 nays. 

 
Mr. Hartley made a motion to approve the rezoning. Ms. Prideaux seconded the 
motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 6 ayes (Adkins, Hartley, 
Holst, Lynch, Prideaux and Schrad), and 0 nays. 

 
 

Attachments: Location Map 
  Rezoning Plat 

82

Item 7.



Dry Run Creek (W)

University of
Northern Iowa

Le
xin

gto
n D

r

Quail Hollow LnWaterbury Dr
Quai lRunLn

W 22nd St

W 31st St

Quail RidgeRd

Pendleton Dr
PE

Center Dr

W 27th St

W
Gr

een
hill

Rd

R-1

R-4

M-1 C-2

RP

RP

P

R-2
A-1

A-1

A-1

A-1

A-1

A-1

Cedar Falls City Council
August 3, 2020

Cedar Falls High School
A-1 to P

W Viking
Industrial Park

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls

University Ave
Rainbow Dr

Orchard Dr

E Dunkerton Rd

W 18th St

W Ridgeway Ave

S M
ain

 St

Center St

Hu
ds

on
Rd

Ma
in

St

W 12th St

W 1st St

E V ikin

gRd Ceda
rH

eig
hts

Dr

W Viking Rd

Waterloo Rd

Un
ion

 R
d

W 27th St

E Greenhill Rd

Lincoln St

NUnion Rd E Lone Tree Rd

Le
v er

se
eR

d

E 1st St
®¬57

®¬58

®¬27 £¤63£¤20

£¤218

^

Location
Map

83

Item 7.



PLANNING ARCHITECTUREINTERIORS

OWNER SIGN-OFF:

REVISIONS:

DATE

SHEET:

NAME

SHEET NAME:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

SHEET SET:

501 Sycamore
Suite 101
Waterloo, IA  50703
PO Box 1800
Waterloo, IA 50704-1800
319.233.8419
319.233.9772 Fax
www.invisionarch.com

CONSULTANT:

1 of 1

C
ED

A
R 

FA
LL

S 
HI

G
H 

SC
HO

O
L

W
 2

7T
H 

ST
RE

ET
, C

ED
A

R
FA

LL
S,

 IA
 5

06
13

C
ED

A
R 

FA
LL

S 
C

O
M

M
UN

ITY
 S

C
HO

O
L 

D
IS

TR
IC

T

2020-06-05

REZONING PLAT

19116

PLANNING & ZONING

STORY CONSTRUCTION

RAKER RHODES

ENGINEERING

MODUS

CONSTRUCTION MANAGER

STRUCTURAL

MEP

CIVIL ENGINEERING AND

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE

RITLAND-KUIPER

NORTH

Description Date No.

DESCRIPTION:

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

R

E

Z

O

N

I

N

G

 

R

E

Q

U

E

S

T

"

A

-

1

"

 

T

O

 

"

P

"

84

Item 7.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Copyright  C  2020

AutoCAD SHX Text
S C A L E  I N  F E E T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S C A L E  I N  F E E T

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
300

AutoCAD SHX Text
600

AutoCAD SHX Text
300' NOTIFICATION LIMIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOCUMENT #2020-7423 A PARCEL OF LAND LOCATED IN THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER (SW ¼ SE ¼) OF SECTION 15, T-89-N, R-24-W OF THE 5TH PM., BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA AND MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHEAST (SE) CORNER OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER (SW ¼ SE ¼) OF SAID SECTION 15; THENCE ALONG SAID EAST LINE, NORTH 00°08'50” WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 75.00 FEET TO THE NORTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF 27TH STREET, THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE CONTINUING ALONG SAID EAST LINE, NORTH 00°08'50” WEST FOR A DISTANCE WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 1251.33 FEET TO THE NORTH LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER (SW ¼ SE ¼); THENCE ALONG SAID NORTH LINE, SOUTH 89°45'30” WEST FOR A DISTANCE WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 680.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 00°08'50” EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 1244.81 FEET TO THE NORTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF 27TH STREET; THENCE ALONG SAID RIGHT OF WAY LINE, SOUTH 85°35'04" °EAST FOR ADISTANCE OF 77.49 FEET; THENCE NORTH 89°46'48” EAST A DISTANCE OF EAST A DISTANCE OF 602.75 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. TRACT CONTAINS 19.53 ACRES AND IS SUBJECT TO ALL EASEMENTS OF RECORD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST 27TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREENHILL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
RP



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by: Jaydevsinh Atodaria (JD), Planner I, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 (319) 273-8600 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2969 

 

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING SECTION 26-118,  

DISTRICT BOUNDARIES OF DIVISION I GENERALLY  

OF ARTICLE III DISTRICT AND DISTRICT  

REGULATIONS OF CHAPTER TWENTY-SIX (26), ZONING,  

OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, 

AND RE-ENACTING SAID SECTION 26-118 OF SAID ORDINANCE, AS 

AMENDED, SO AS TO APPLY AND INCLUDE TO THE  

CHANGE IN THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF  

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AS PROVIDED BY THIS ORDINANCE. 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

finds that the rezoning is consistent with the proposed use of Cedar Falls New High School Project 

which is identified as “Public” use for the City of Cedar Falls and therefore has recommended to the 

City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, that all that area described as follows shall be removed 

from the A-1 Agricultural Zoning District and placed in P Public Zoning District, as follows: 

 

Legal description for land to be rezoned from A-1 to P: 

 

A parcel of land located in the Southwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of Section 15, Township 

89 North, Range 24 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa and more particularly described 

as follows: Commencing at the Southeast corner of the Southwest Quarter of Section 15, thence 

along said East line, North 00°8’50” West for a distance of 75 feet to the Northerly right-of-way line 

of 27th street, the point of beginning, thence continuing along said East line, North 00°8’50” West for 

a distance of 1251.33 feet to the North line of said Southwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter, 

thence along said North line, South 89°45’30” West for a distance of 680 feet, thence South 00°8’50” 

East for a distance of 1244.81 feet to the northerly right-of-way line of 27th Street, thence along said 

right of way line, South 85°35’04” East for a distance of 77.49 feet, thence North 89°46’48” East a 

distance of 602.75 feet to the point of beginning. Tract contains 19.53 acres and is subject to all 

easements of record. 

 

And 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, deems it to the best interests 

of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, that said proposal be made and approved; and 

 

  WHEREAS, the said Section 26-118, District Boundaries of Division I, Generally, of Article 

III, Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter Twenty-Six (26), Zoning, of the Code of 

Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, provides that the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, attached thereto, is incorporated into and made a part of said Ordinance; 
85

Item 7.



 

 WHEREAS, notice of public hearing has been published, as provided by law, and such 

hearing held on the proposed amendment; now, therefore, 

 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

 

 Section 1.  That the following described real estate: 

 

Legal description for land to be rezoned from A-1 to P: 

 

A parcel of land located in the Southwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of Section 15, Township 

89 North, Range 24 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa and more particularly described 

as follows: Commencing at the Southeast corner of the Southwest Quarter of Section 15, thence 

along said East line, North 00°8’50” West for a distance of 75 feet to the Northerly right-of-way line 

of 27th street, the point of beginning, thence continuing along said East line, North 00°8’50” West for 

a distance of 1251.33 feet to the North line of said Southwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter, 

thence along said North line, South 89°45’30” West for a distance of 680 feet, thence South 00°8’50” 

East for a distance of 1244.81 feet to the northerly right-of-way line of 27th Street, thence along said 

right of way line, South 85°35’04” East for a distance of 77.49 feet, thence North 89°46’48” East a 

distance of 602.75 feet to the point of beginning. Tract contains 19.53 acres and is subject to all 

easements of record. 

 

Be and the same is hereby removed from the A-1 Agricultural District and added to the P Public 

Zoning District.  

 

Section 2. That the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, be and the same is hereby 

amended to show the property described in Section 1, above, as now being in the P Public Zoning 

District, and the amended map is hereby ordained to be the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, as amended. 

 

 Section 3. That said Section 26-118, District Boundaries of Division I, Generally, of Article 

III, Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter Twenty-Six (26), Zoning, of the Code of 

Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, be and the same is hereby repealed and hereby re-

enacted in the identical language as the same now is, in order that the same shall apply to and include 

the change hereby made in the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

 

INTRODUCED:    August 17, 2020    

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:  August 17, 2020    

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:  September 8, 2020    

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:      

ADOPTED:         

 

 

         _________________________ 

ATTEST:        Robert M. Green, Mayor 

 

____________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

86

Item 7.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Jon Fitch, PE, Principal Engineer 
 
 DATE: August 25, 2020 
 
 SUBJECT: Update to City Code Section 23-231 – Through Streets Designated 
 
 
 
The intended street crossing at W 12th St and Walnut will be marked with a 4-way stop 
at the completion of the reconstruction project in early October to match the study and 
final design of this intersection. Walnut Street was lowered to help with sightlines from 
W 12th St. 
 
The Engineering Division is proposing changes to City Code Section 23-231 – Through 
Streets Designated so the code matches what has been designed and constructed. 
Please see the attached changes for City Code Section 23-231 – Through Streets 
Designated.  
 
The Engineering Division recommends approval of the 4-way intersection at W 12th St 
and Walnut St. 
 
If you have any questions or concerns, please feel free to ask.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, PE, City Engineer  

87

Item 8.



 
Prepared By: Kevin Rogers, City Attorney, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, Phone: (319) 273-8600 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ______ 
 

AN ORDINANCE MAINTAINING  WALNUT STREET AS AN ARTERIAL THROUGH 
STREET FROM FIRST STREET TO THE END OF THE STREET SOUTH OF 29TH 
STREET, BUT ADDING AN EXCEPTION AT 12TH STREET TO THE EXCEPTIONS AT 
SIXTH STREET, 18TH STREET, SEERLEY BOULEVARD AND UNIVERSITY AVENUE  
BY STRIKING THE UNNUMBERED SUBSECTION ENTITLED WALNUT STREET AND 
CORRESPONDING DESIGNATION IN SECTION 23-231, THROUGH STREETS 
DESIGNATED, OF DIVISION 3, RIGHT-OF-WAY, OF ARTICLE III, OPERATION, OF 
CHAPTER 23, TRAFFIC AND MOTOR VEHICLES, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 
OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA,  AND ENACTING A NEW UNNUMBERED 
SUBSECTION ENTITLED WALNUT STREET AND CORRESPONDING  DESIGNATION 
IN LIEU THEREOF. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

 
Section 1. The unnumbered Subsection entitled Walnut Street and corresponding designation, of 

Section 23-231, Through Streets Designated, of Division 3, Right-of-Way, of Article III, Operation, of 
Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is 
hereby repealed in its entirety and a new unnumbered subsection entitled Walnut Street, and 
corresponding designation, are hereby enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

 

Street                                                                  Portion of Street                                                                        

Designated as Arterial                                                                           

Through Street 

                   Walnut Street                                             From First Street to the end of the street south of 

29th Street, except at Sixth Street, 12th Street, 18th 

Street, Seerley Boulevard and University Avenue. 

 

INTRODUCED:    September 8, 2020   

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:  September 8, 2020   

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:      

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:     

ADOPTED:        

 

__________________________________ 

      Robert M. Green, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

88

Item 8.



   ROBERT M. GREEN 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
M E M O R A N D U M 

Office of the Mayor 
 

  
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 TO: City Council 

 FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green  

 DATE: September 17, 2020 

 SUBJECT: July 2020 Compost Facility Fire After-Action Review 

 

1. Executive Summary.    This memorandum provides a summary of the findings from the 

Compost Facility Fire After-Action Review held on August 18, 2020 from 8:30 to 10:30am 

at the Public Safety Building. While after-action reviews are typically held after significant 

events, this incident merited special scrutiny and documentation. City officials and staff who 

attended this review were directly engaged in the response. These participants were: 

Rob Green Mayor 

Ron Gaines City Administrator 

Chase Schrage Public Works Director 

Jeff Olson Public Safety Services Director 

Craig Berte Police Chief 

John Bostwick Fire Chief 

Roger Stensland Fire Battalion Chief 

Brian Heath Operations and Maintenance Division Mgr. 

Timothy Smith  Blue Shift Public Safety Supervisor 

Zach Ladage Public Safety Officer 

 

I compiled detailed notes from this review, compiled them into a narrative, and provided 

them to the City Administrator, the Director of Public Safety Services and the Director of 

Public Works for correction and clarification. After incorporating their feedback, I 

respectfully submit this report for your consideration. 

2. Incident Description. 

a. Discovery. In the late afternoon of Monday, July 27, 2020 a fire was discovered in the 

brush pile at the Cedar Falls compost facility (not the compost pile). This pile was 

composed of tree branches and other yard waste collected from the July 9 wind storm. 

b. Notification. The initial call to the County Consolidated Dispatch Center (9-1-1) was 

received at 3:53pm, and was logged as #20-055791.  The Fire Division’s Blue Shift 

responded and determined that the fire was too involved for immediate extinguishment. 

89

Item 9.



2 
 

Given the remote location and the minimal likelihood of threat to life or property, the Fire 

Chief determined that the fire should be allowed to burn itself out.  

c. Public Communication. At 5:39pm on the day of the fire, the City of Cedar Falls 

published a media advisory with the subject line “Cedar Falls Compost Facility Closed”, 

and text stating “The Cedar Falls Compost Facility is closed until further notice due to 

brush fire.”   This was followed up on July 30 at 5:26pm with a media advisory stating 

that the facility would reopen with limited hours on July 31.  At 5:06pm on August 3, a 

final media advisory was issued, noting that the facility would be back to full operation 

beginning August 4. 

d. Incident Progression.  

(1) The compost facility fire continued to burn during the next several days.  While 

much of the upper surface had been reduced to ash, the deep-seated fire retained 

enough fuel to emit a significant volume of white smoke.  Due to unusual winds 

from the north, this smoke frequently drifted southward into Downtown Cedar Falls 

and adjacent residential areas.   Smoke complaints from residents were received 

from as far as The Meadows, more than four miles away.   

(2) During the week, Fire Division leadership remained in contact with the County 

Public Health Office in consideration of the potential adverse effects of the white 

smoke to public health.  The guidance from the County Public Health to the Public 

Safety Department was for residents with respiratory concerns to remain indoors as 

much as possible for the duration.  

(3) By Friday, July 31, the smoke volume had not decreased significantly. Fire Division 

personnel in a pumper, wearing full firefighter ensembles, worked to douse one 

collected pile of ash and fuel.   After applying 750 gallons of water to the pile, the 

white smoke from this pile was observed to have diminished significantly.  While the 

test dousing appeared to be successful, Public Safety leadership determined that the 

water and resource requirements for dousing the very large pile of ash and fuel would 

be impractical, and the fire should be allowed to burn itself out. Considerations also 

included that no danger to the public existed from the fire, and a concern that the 

effort could result in the generation of considerable additional smoke into the 

downtown and residential areas. 

(4) On Friday afternoon, the Fire Chief e-mailed a detailed memo to the Mayor and 

City Council to brief the elected leaders on the situation.  This was the first 

communication provided by Public Safety to the members of the City Council, 

aside from the brief press release on Monday afternoon. 

(5) At 6pm on Friday, the Mayor directed the City Administrator to carry out fire 

suppression efforts over the weekend, rather than to allow the fires to continue to 

90

Item 9.



3 
 

smolder/burn themselves out.  Factors for this decision were the significant public 

nuisance presented by the white smoke, and the forecast of calm weather on Saturday 

(and winds from the north from Sunday onward).  Also, responder would be able to 

determine by early Saturday if the effort was having the desired effect, for continuing 

or ceasing efforts.  Additionally, no rain was forecast for the next five days, making 

natural extinguishment highly unlikely. 

(6) During the workday of Friday, July 31, the Public Works Director contacted area 

contractors, and began working out arrangements for Benton’s Sand and Gravel to rent 

the excavators and loaders needed to accelerate the planned fire suppression. These 

agreements were in place when the Mayor made the decision to go ahead with the 

Saturday response (Item #5 above),  

(7) Due to the nature of the fire and temperatures within the pile, only steel-track 

equipment could be used; rubber-tired vehicles risked tire damage due to melting. 

Though loaders and excavators typically are brought to the scene using flatbed 

trailers, a dirt path from Benton’s Sand and Gravel to the adjacent compost facility 

allowed vehicles to travel without flatbed transport. 

(8) Response to fully extinguish the compost facility fire began on Saturday, August 1 

at 8:30am.  The Fire Division’s Blue Shift again responded along with three 

additional public safety officers.  Unlike the Friday evolution (Item #3 above), 

responding personnel did not wear firefighter ensembles.  Instead, regular duty t-

shirts, pants or shorts, and athletic footwear were worn.  Public Safety Standard 

Operating Guidelines did not prescribe the use of firefighting ensembles for this 

type of outdoor incident, which was treated similar to a controlled burn. Factors in 

this decision were the health / overheating risks posed by unnecessarily wearing a 

full firefighting ensemble, and the lack of a condition of Immediate Danger to Life 

and Health (IDLH) on the fireground. 

(9) The fire response was greatly facilitated by the availability of a submersible pump 

from Benton’s Sand and Gravel with a 6,000 gal/min draw capacity.  By drafting 

creek water by hose from nearby Snag Creek into a collapsible water reservoir on 

scene, the pumper crew could maintain a constant flow of firefighting water onto 

the compost facility piles throughout the day.   The crew also regularly doused the 

heavy equipment to reduce equipment surface temperatures.  The presence of this 

submersible pump was instrumental for the accelerated fire suppression response. 

(10) The response effort concluded at 6:30pm on Saturday, August 1st, with all fires 

extinguished, ash cleared, and debris overhauled, and no emanation of white smoke. 

Public safety personnel returned several times the following week to inspect for re-

flash fires, finding none. 

91

Item 9.



4 
 

e. Safety Considerations. Aside from the white smoke, no other hazardous gases or 

particulates were present in this fire.  As the fuel in the compost facility was entirely 

wood products, no hydrogen cyanide or other toxic chemical fumes were a 

threat.  Additionally, the open-air outdoor environment minimized any potential risks 

from carbon monoxide. Saturday’s lack of surface winds additionally facilitated the 

smoke’s rise to several hundred feet before dispersal by prevailing winds higher in the 

atmosphere. 

f. Incident Cause. The cause of the fire remains undetermined; given the lack of physical 

evidence or witnesses, the actual cause may never be known. The fire was not a 

controlled burn by city staff; spontaneous combustion has also been determined to be 

highly unlikely due to the fire’s start in the brush pile (branches and debris from the July 

9 windstorm) rather than in the compost pile.  

3. Lessons Learned / Insights: 

a. Technical firefighting efforts. Once given the order to extinguish the fire, efforts by the 

Cedar Falls Public Safety Department were carried out safely, effectively, and 

professionally. No changes are recommended for the overall extinguishing effort.  

b. Use of Contractors.  Given that the city does not possess the heavy equipment needed for 

overhauling a compost facility fire, the City should continue to engage with Benton’s 

Sand and Gravel for the rental of their equipment and operators.  The rarity of this 

situation would make direct purchase of similar equipment (and associated training costs) 

an unwise use of taxpayer funds.   Benton’s Sand and Gravel is to be commended for 

their excellent support to the City and people of Cedar Falls. 

c. Use of Dry Run Creek and Submersible Pump.  The availability of ‘unlimited’ 

firefighting water was considered in this review as a prime factor in the success of 

extinguishing efforts. The City has learned that, absent an emergency, the Iowa 

Department of Natural Resources (DNR) will require a permit for the drawing of creek 

water for firefighting efforts. City staff will seek to obtain this permit prior to taking 

similar action in the future. 

d. Appropriateness of foam use. The quantity of foam required to carry out this response 

would have been significantly greater than the available supplies on hand.  Use of this 

resource would have also depleted the available supply, potentially hampering local fire 

response until replacement supplies arrived.   For these reasons, foam was appropriately 

dismissed as an option. 

e. Air quality considerations. Given the compost facility’s proximity to downtown 

businesses and residences, only a slight breeze from the north is necessary to greatly 

impact quality of life in these areas.  While the wood smoke may not be toxic, or present 

long-term health risks (a traditional ‘public danger’), the negative impact on a significant 

92

Item 9.



5 
 

number of Cedar Falls residents and downtown visitors makes quick extinguishment 

necessary. For this reason, in the event of a future compost facility fire, the city should 

seek to extinguish once the fire is shown unlikely to burn out within 24 hours.  

f. Notification of public officials. In public safety actions affecting a significant number of 

residents, Public Safety Department leadership will keep the Mayor and City Council 

members apprised of the overall situation, so that the elected officials can effectively 

respond to constituent concerns and requests for information.  E-mails to the Mayor, and 

cc:ing citycouncil@cedarfalls.com will suffice.  Operational considerations should 

always prevail, in instances where notification would delay or otherwise negatively 

impact the operational response.   

g. Changes to Standard Operating Guidelines (SOGs). As a result of this after action 

review, no changes were recommended to the city’s SOG’s for fire response.  

XC: City Administrator 

        Director of Public Safety Services 

        Director of Public Works 

        City Clerk 

 

### 

 

 

 

93

Item 9.



 MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN  
  
 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA   
 220 CLAY STREET 
 CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 PHONE 319-273-8600 
 FAX 319-268-5126 

 www.cedarfalls.com 
 
 

 TO: City Council 

 FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green 

 DATE: September 17, 2020 

 SUBJECT: Nomination of Mr. Jordan Thomas Peterson as City Council Student Liaison 

 REF: (a) Cedar Falls City Council Resolution #20,502 Appointing a Student Liaison to the 

City Council for an Indefinite Term dated April 17, 2017 

 

1. In accordance with the requirements of reference (a), I hereby nominate Mr. Jordan Thomas 

Peterson for appointment as the Student Liaison to the City Council for a term beginning 

upon council approval and ending April 30, 2021. 

 

2. Typically, this appointment is made in April for a term beginning May 1; due to the 

significant challenges posed by the Coronavirus Pandemic, the Northern Iowa Student 

Government was delayed in recommending a student for appointment to the position. 

 

3. I have interviewed Mr. Peterson to discuss the Council’s expectations for the role of the 

Student Liaison; from this conversation I am satisfied that he meets the qualifications 

required by the City Council in reference (a).  

 

xc:  City Clerk   

 Northern Iowa Student Government 

 
# 

 
 
 
 
 
 

94

Item 10.



95

Item 11.



CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 
Cedar Falls Council Chambers 

September 8, 2020 
 

The City Council held a special work session at City Hall via teleconference at 6:00 p.m. 
on September 8, 2020, with the following persons in attendance:  Mayor Robert M. 
Green, Frank Darrah, Susan deBuhr, Kelly Dunn, Simon Harding, Daryl Kruse, Mark 
Miller, and Dave Sires.  Staff members attended from all City Departments.  Amie 
Rivers from the Waterloo Courier, as well as members of the community 
teleconferenced in.   

Mayor Green introduced the only item on the agenda, Role of Human Rights 
Commission.  Director Jennifer Rodenbeck presented a PowerPoint on the Role of 
Human Rights Commission. 

Director Rodenbeck explained that depending on the case we either keep it in house or 
send to the state for investigation (Iowa Civil Rights Commission).  The benefits of 
sending investigations to the state are its cost effective, state doesn’t charge, trained 
professionals, a better prospective and doesn’t put the city in a conflict of interest 
situation.        

Mayor Green opened it up for discussion.  Mayor Green stated HRC (Human Rights 
Commission) members want to be in the investigation role, but want the city to give 
them training/certification.  We need to discuss the pros and cons on having an 
investigatory role or having the HRC focus on education, outreach and advocacy.  
Councilmember Darrah asked what are some examples of outreach and what kind of 
further education.  If we are not doing investigations, what are the tasks?  Mayor Green 
stated the HRC has done a study with Cedar Falls businesses to put together a survey, 
but the survey has not moved forward.  Mayor Green stated Waterloo’s HRC posts 
activities/celebrations/videos on social media that are informative.  Councilmember 
Miller asked the commissioners terms and what training is necessary.  Director 
Rodenbeck stated it’s difficult to find good/appropriate training, local training and it’s 
challenging to retain that information if you’re only doing one case per year.  Also, the 
commissioner may leave the commission.  Mayor Green stated HRC terms are 3 years.  
Councilmember Darrah asked why the survey didn’t get completed.  Mayor Green 
stated he didn’t have a good answer for that.  Councilmember Kruse suggested 
delegating this to people who are trained.  Do we need to amend the ordinance?  
Attorney Rogers confirmed if council gives direction it would be appropriate to amend 
the ordinance.  Commissioners are concerned they are not fulfilling their charge.  
Director Rodenbeck confirmed we want to amend the ordinance to what the HRC is 
actively doing.  Mayor confirmed there are two different roles and it can be frustrating for 
commissioners.  We want to make the ordinance clearer on what we expect from 
commissioners.  Councilmember Darrah asked if we’ve sat down with commissioners to 
ask what value and outreach they see.  Can they help us define these roles and what 
the purpose of the HRC is?  Mayor Green stated we needed council’s direction on what 
they want from the HRC.  Do we want to proceed with a joint City Council Work Session 
or Committee of the Whole with the HRC?  Councilmember Kruse asked if Iowa code 

96

Item 12.



has a minimum on commissioners.  Attorney Rogers stated the Iowa code is bare 
bones, but we will review as we build our ordinance.  Councilmember Kruse commented 
that we should review other cities codes and he agrees with what staff has proposed.  
Councilmember deBuhr agrees with Councilmember Kruse, but why was this brought to 
our attention at this time.  Mayor Green stated there have been complaints, 
commissioners want to know their roles, there’s dissatisfaction on how things are being 
run and action needs to be taken before more problems arise.  Councilmember Harding 
asked if we need 9 members, can we have less, and has the HRC worked with the 
school system?  Director Rodenbeck stated we have great participation within the 
schools.  Councilmember Harding agreed to send investigations to the state, give 
commissioner’s guidance on education/outreach and review the number of members.  
Director Rodenbeck will gather information on how many commissioners other cities 
similar to Cedar Falls have.  Mayor stated to maybe move to 5-7 commissioners.  
Councilmember Miller stated he’d like to hear the details and complaints and 
understand the issues.  Mayor Green suggested having a second work session with 
HRC members.  Councilmember Miller agreed to have a joint meeting.  Councilmember 
deBuhr asked to have a memo sent to councilmembers outlining the issues of the HRC.  
Councilmember Miller stated we need to outline what the HRC duties are and 
investigations should go to the state.  Councilmember Kruse agrees we need to clarify 
the focus of the HRC.  Councilmember Dunn agreed to send investigations to the state 
and focus on education.  Councilmember Harding commented that it seems we have a 
consensus and we should move towards changing the ordinance that investigations will 
go to the state, but agrees with Councilmember Miller that a joint meeting to support 
HRC should be scheduled.  Councilmember Sires suggested meeting with HRC before 
amending the ordinance.  Mayor Green clarified HRC has 8 active members.  
Councilmember Miller asked if HRC has a budget.  Director Rodenbeck stated a budget 
of $1,500/year.  Mayor Green will confirm with staff on having a Committee of the Whole 
or City Council Work Session meeting prior to a council meeting.  Councilmembers 
agreed to another meeting.   

There being no further discussion, Mayor Green adjourned the meeting at 6:48 p.m. 

Minutes by Kim Kerr, Administrative Supervisor             

 

97

Item 12.



98

Item 13.



99

Item 13.



100

Item 13.



101

Item 13.



102

Item 13.



103

Item 13.



104

Item 13.



105

Item 13.



106

Item 13.



107

Item 13.



108

Item 13.



109

Item 13.



110

Item 13.



111

Item 13.



112

Item 13.



113

Item 13.



114

Item 13.



115

Item 13.



116

Item 13.



117

Item 13.



118

Item 13.



119

Item 13.



120

Item 13.



121

Item 13.



122

Item 13.



123

Item 13.



124

Item 13.



125

Item 13.



126

Item 13.



127

Item 13.



128

Item 13.



129

Item 13.



130

Item 13.



131

Item 13.



132

Item 13.



133

Item 13.



134

Item 13.



135

Item 13.



136

Item 13.



137

Item 13.



138

Item 13.



139

Item 13.



140

Item 13.



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  4600 SOUTH MAIN STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Green and City Councilmembers 

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Services Director 

Craig Berte, Police Chief 

Date:  September 17, 2020 

Re:  Beer/Liquor License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for liquor licenses and/ or wine or beer 
permits. We find no records that would prohibit these license and permits and 
recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

a) Pablo's Mexican Grill, 310 Main Street, Class B beer - renewal. 

b) Escapology Cedar Falls, 2518 Melrose Drive, Special Class C liquor - renewal. 

c) Holiday Inn & Suites Hotel/Event Center, 7400 Hudson Road, Class B liquor & 
outdoor service - renewal. 

d) Blue Room, 201 Main Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 

e) Little Bigs, 2210 College Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 

f) SingleSpeed Brewing Co., 128 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - 
renewal. 

g) The Brass Tap, 421 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 

h) The Landmark, 107 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 

i) Fareway Store, 214 North Magnolia Drive, Class E liquor - renewal. 

 

141

Item 14.



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

    M E M O R A N D U M 
Financial Services Division 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council Members  

 FROM: Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer 

 DATE: September 17, 2020 

 SUBJECT: FY2020 City Street Financial Report 

 
Attached for your review is the State required FY2020 City Street Financial Report for 

the City of Cedar Falls.  The report is based on actual FY2020 revenues and 

expenditures relative to various aspects of street operations, maintenance, construction, 

and debt service.    Iowa Code Section 312.14 requires all cities to submit the Street 

Financial Report (SFR) to the Iowa Department of Transportation (DOT) by September 

30 of each year.  Failure to submit the report may cause delay or suspension of future 

State payments of Road Use Tax Funds to the City of Cedar Falls. 

 
This year’s report is in a new format, which is similar to the detail from our chart of 

accounts.  If you should have any questions, please contact me.  Thank you. 

 
 
Attachment 
 
CC: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director Finance & Business Operations 
  
 
 

142

Item 15.



143

Item 15.



144

Item 15.



145

Item 15.



146

Item 15.



147

Item 15.



148

Item 15.



149

Item 15.



150

Item 15.



151

Item 15.



152

Item 16.



153

Item 16.



154

Item 16.



155

Item 16.



156

Item 16.



157

Item 16.



158

Item 16.



159

Item 16.



160

Item 16.



161

Item 16.



162

Item 16.



163

Item 16.



164

Item 16.



165

Item 16.



166

Item 17.



167

Item 17.



168

Item 17.



169

Item 17.



170

Item 17.



171

Item 17.



172

Item 17.



173

Item 17.



174

Item 17.



175

Item 17.



176

Item 17.



177

Item 17.



178

Item 17.



179

Item 17.



180

Item 18.



181

Item 18.



182

Item 18.



183

Item 18.



184

Item 18.



185

Item 18.



186

Item 18.



187

Item 18.



188

Item 18.



189

Item 18.



190

Item 18.



191

Item 18.



192

Item 18.



193

Item 18.



194

Item 18.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

VISITORS, TOURISM AND CULTURAL PROGRAMS 
6510 HUDSON ROAD 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
PH: 319-268-4266 
FAX: 319-277-9707 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

TO: Mayor Robert M Green and City Council 

FROM: Kim Manning 

DATE: 

SUBJECT: 

The Visitors and Tourism Division is in need of a Customer Relationship Management 
tool (CRM) and iDSS has been identified as the best solution. This product will help us 
organize contact details, distribute leads, and track events and other projects. It will also 
expose us to best practices for meeting and event marketing allowing us to compete 
more effectively with other destinations as we work to restore business and recover 
from COVID-19. 

Why now? It is true that COVID is impacting our income, and now is the time to make 
this investment for two reasons. 

1. Support for our current database, ACT, expires November 30, 2020. The update 
they offer is a cloud-based subscription like iDSS but they do not offer 
customized reports or mass email and provide little to no support. 

2. Our community is growing and we have new product to sell. With our new focus 
on proactively seeking meetings and events, it makes sense to manage these 
efforts using a new database rather than waiting to upgrade later. 

Why iDSS? Dan Jaeger, Pat Williams and I reviewed several options including ACT, 
Simpleview, and others. We selected iDSS because it is specialized to destination 
marketing organizations and offers unlimited log-in licenses, cloud-based mobile access 
that requires little from our IT division, and robust customer service and training. They 
also come highly recommended by several other Iowa destinations. 

The cost is a one-time set up fee of $3,000 and a $6,000 annual fee. This expense was 
not anticipated when we put our FY21 budget together last October so I plan to reduce 
spending in the Promotional Items account from $5,000 to $3,000 and reduce the Gift 
Shop account from $7,000 to $3,000. This makes the $6,000 subscription fee available. 
I intend to pull the $3,000 set up fee from reserves since this is a one-time expense and 
an opportunity designed to make us more efficient and effective. We have intentionally 
built a reserve for use in challenging times and/or for special opportunities. In my 

195

Item 19.



opinion, this project reflects both. 

Please approve this purchase. Agreement documents have been reviewed and 
approved by Kevin Rogers. 

Thank you. 

Cc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz 

196

Item 19.



CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

SERVICE/PRODUCT AGREEMENTS 

This Agreement is by and between Tempest, Inc. ("Contractor") and the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa ("City"), and is to be 
effective on the date last signed by the Contractor or the City below. 

1.0. Contractor's Services 

1.1. Contractor's services shall consist only of the those services and/or products provided or supplied by 
Contractor as defined in this Agreement and as listed on Exhibit "A" attached. ("Services" or "Scope of Services") 

1.2. Contractor shall not commence or perform any work outside the Scope of Services unless and until 
authorized in writing by the City. No changes to the Scope of Services shall be valid unless agreed to by both the 
Contractor and the City in writing. Any work performed or expenses incurred by the Contractor shall be conclusively 
presumed to be part of the Scope of Services unless a written change order covering such work, and the cost of such 
work, has been agreed to in advance. If Exhibit "A" includes provisions for contingent services, such services shall 
not be performed until written authorization is given by the City. 

1.3. Contractor shall assign qualified and experienced personnel to perform the Services, and Contractor hereby 
warrants to the City that Contractor has sufficient experience and financial resources to complete the Services 
required by this Agreement. Where the Scope of Services identifies particular personnel who shall perform the 
Services, such personnel shall remain assigned to provide the Services throughout the term of this Agreement, 
unless otherwise approved in writing by the City. In the event that such particular personnel must be replaced, 
Contractor agrees to replace such particular personnel with persons of equivalent or better qualifications, as 
approved by the City. 

1.4. Contractor shall perform the Services in a timely manner and in accordance with any schedule set forth in 
Exhibit "A". The Contractor and the City agree that time is of the essence with respect to Contractor's performance 
under this Agreement. 

1.5. Contractor warrants that its fulfillment of this Agreement will not infringe on or misappropriate the rights of any 
third party, and that the Contractor has the complete right and full authority to convey ownership of the Services to 
the City. Contractor shall obtain all required governmental and third-party licenses, approvals and permits for the 
provision of Services, at Contractor's cost. 

1.6. The person signing this Agreement on behalf of the Contractor represents and warrants that the person has 
full and sufficient authority to execute this Agreement on behalf of the Contractor. 

2.0. Compensation 

2.1. All bids and prices shall be shown in U.S. Dollars. All prices must remain firm for the duration of this 
Agreement. 

2.2. After inspection (if applicable) and acceptance by the City of Services, City shall pay Contractor in 
accordance with the payment terms set forth in Exhibit "B''. The maximum amount of all payments for Services shall 
be the amount set forth in Exhibit "B", unless additional Services are agreed upon as set forth in Section 1.2, in which 
case the maximum amount of all payments shall be adjusted accordingly. 

2.3. Following acceptance of Services by the City, payment shall be made to the Contractor within thirty (30) days 
of receipt of a proper invoice. The invoice shall include, at a minimum, the name and address of the Contractor, the 
invoice number, the date services were performed or goods were shipped, a general description of the services or 

1 
197

Item 19.



goods, total amount to be paid, any discounts or credits, and the net amount to be paid. The invoice shall be mailed 
or emailed to the authorized representative of the City listed below, at the address listed below. 

2.4. Expenses shall not be reimbursed to the Contractor unless specifically described in Exhibit "B". 

2.5. If services in addition to the Scope of Services are agreed upon as set forth in Section 1.2, Contractor must 
provide a separate invoice for such additional services before payment will be made. 

2.6. If the City fails to make any payment when due to the Contractor, the Contractor may charge the City interest 
on the unpaid balance at the rate of 5% per annum until paid. In addition, Contractor may, after giving at least seven 
(7) days written notice to the City, suspend services under this Agreement until such unpaid balance is paid in full. 

2.7. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, the City may withhold payment to Contractor for 
faulty Services, or if the City is advised of liens or other claims against any Services, including products. 

3.0. Taxes. 

3.1. The City is exempt from all federal, State of Iowa, and other states' taxes on the purchase of products and 
services used by the City within the State of Iowa. The City shall provide tax exemption certification as requested. 

3.2. Any charges for taxes from which the City is exempt will be deducted from invoices before payment is made. 

4.0. Ownership and Use of Documents 

4.1. All Services to be provided under this Agreement, and any invention, improvement, discovery , or innovation 
(whether or not patentable) made, conceived or actually reduced to practice by Contractor in the performance of the 
Scope of Services in this Agreement will be owned exclusively by the City, including all proprietary and intellectual 
property rights. To the extent not automatically vested in the City, Contractor hereby assigns to the City all right, title 
and interest in and to the Services, including, without limitation, copyright, patent and trade secret rights. Upon the 
City's request, Contractor shall execute any additional documents necessary for the City to perfect such ownership 
rights. 

4.2. Notwithstanding Section 4.1, Contractor retains ownership of its pre-existing and proprietary materials and 
other intellectual property that may be incorporated into the Services. 

4.3. Copies of City furnished data that may be relied upon by Contractor are limited to the printed copies (also 
known as hard copies) that are delivered to the Contractor. Files in electronic media format of text, data, graphics, or 
of other formats that are furnished by the City to the Contractor are only for the convenience of the Contractor. Any 
conclusion or information obtained or derived from such electronic files will be at the Contractor's sole risk. 

4.4. During the term of this Agreement and following completion or termination of the Agreement, the Contractor 
and any authorized Subcontractors shall maintain all accounting records and other documentation generated in 
providing Services under this Agreement. The City or its designee shall be allowed to have access to such 
information for the purpose of inspection, audit and copying during normal business hours for a period of five (5) 
years after the final payment by the City, termination of this Agreement, or resolution of all matters under this 
Agreement, whichever date is latest. No additional compensation shall be paid to Contractor for such retention or 
inspection by the City or designee. 

5.0. Termination. 

5.1. The City may terminate this Agreement at any time for its convenience by giving written notice to the 
Contractor of such termination and specifying the effective date of the termination, at least thirty (30) calendar days 
before the effective date of termination. In that event, all finished or unfinished Services, reports and materials 
prepared or furnished by the Contractor shall, at the option of the City, become the City's property. If the Agreement 
is terminated by the City as provided herein, the Contractor shall be paid for all Services which have been authorized, 

2 

198

Item 19.



approved and provided up to the effective date of termination. The City will not be subject to any termination fees 
from the Contractor. 

5.2. Either party may terminate this Agreement upon seven (7) calendar days written notice in the event that the 
other party fails to substantially perform in accordance with the terms of this Agreement through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. 

6.0. Warranties. 

6.1. Contractor represents and warrants that Services shall be performed in a manner consistent with the 
standard of care of other professional service providers in a similar industry and application. 

6.2. Contractor represents and warrants that products delivered as part of the Scope of Services, including each 
component, shall be free of defects and shall conform to the quality standards of the applicable industry and shall 
meet in all respects the requirements of the Scope of Services. If any defect or sign of deterioration is identified by 
the City within one year after delivery which is not due to the acts or omissions of the City, Contractor shall, within 15 
days after notification by the City, at Contractor's expense, repair, adjust or replace such items to the complete 
satisfaction of the City. 

6.3. Contractor shall be responsible for the quality, technical accuracy, completeness and coordination of all 
Services under this Agreement. Contractor shall promptly and without charge, provide all corrective work necessary 
as a result of Contractor 's acts, errors or omissions with respect to the quality and accuracy of Contractor 's Services. 

6.4. Contractor shall be responsible for any and all damages to property or persons as a result of Contractor's 
acts, errors or omissions in performing the Services under this Agreement, and for any losses or costs to repair or 
remedy any Services undertaken by the City as a result of any such acts, errors or omissions. 

6.5. Contractor's obligations shall exist without regard to, and shall not be construed to be waived by, the 
availability or unavailability of any insurance, either by the City or by the Contractor . None of the provisions of this 
Agreement shall be construed as a limitation on the City's right to seek recovery of damages it suffers as a result of 
Contractor's fault or breach. 

7.0. Warranties - Intellectual Property. 

7.1. Contractor represents and warrants that the Services produced or provided to the City do not infringe upon 
any copyright, trademark, trade name, trade dress patent, statutory, common law or any other right of any person or 
entity. 

7.2. Contractor represents and warrants that the Services, and the City's use of the same, and the exercise by the 
City of the rights granted by this Agreement, shall not infringe upon any other work or violate the rights of publicity or 
privacy of, or constitute a libel or slander against, any person or entity. 

7.3. Contractor represents and warrants that it is the owner of or otherwise has the right to use and distribute the 
Services contemplated by this Agreement. 

8.0. Disputes. 

8.1. Should any dispute arise with respect to this Agreement, the parties agree to act immediately to resolve such 
dispute. Time is of the essence in the resolution of disputes. 

8.2. Contractor agrees that, the existence of a dispute notw ithstanding, it will continue without delay to carry out 
all of its responsibilities under this Agreement that are not affected by the dispute and the City shall continue to make 
payment for all Services that are performed in conformance with this Agreement. Should the Contractor fail to 
continue to perform its responsibilities regarding all non-disputed Services, without delay, any additional costs 
incurred by the City or the Contractor as a result of such failure to proceed shall be borne by the Contractor. 

3 
199

Item 19.



8.3. Should any dispute between the parties remain unresolved, the parties mutually agree to engage in 
mediation prior to the filing of suit by either party. The cost of mediation shall be divided equally between the parties 
except that each party shall be responsible for that party's own expenses and attorney fees associated with 
mediation. The City shall not engage in arbitration of any dispute. 

9.0. Indemnification. 

9.1. Contractor (including, for purposes of this Section, Contractor's agents, employees, subcontractors or others 
working on behalf of Contractor) shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the City and its elected and appointed 
officers, its employees, and agents working on behalf of the City, from any and all liability, loss, cost, damage and 
expense (including reasonable attorney fees and court costs) resulting from, arising out of, or related in any way to 
any claims, demands, actions or suits based upon or alleging personal injury, including bodily injury or death, and 
property damages, arising out of or in any way connected or associated with the Contractor's performance under this 
Agreement. 

9.2. Contractor's duty of indemnification and to hold harmless includes, but is not limited to, Contractor's breach 
or alleged breach of the warranties found in Sections 6.0 and 7.0 above, and shall survive the termination of this 
Agreement. 

9.3. It is specifically agreed between the parties that this Agreement is not intended to create in the public or any 
member of the public, any third party beneficiary status or to authorize anyone not a party to this Agreement to 
maintain a suit for personal injuries or property damage. 

10.0. Insurance. 

Contractor shall at all times during the performance of this Agreement maintain insurance as set forth in Exhibit "C" 
unless this insurance requirement is waived by the City in this Section. 

Insurance requirement waived: (Signature and title of 
authorized City employee or officer) 

The City may at any time during the term of this Agreement require proof of such insurance. 

11.0. Compliance with Laws and Regulations. 

11.1. Contractor certifies that in performing this Agreement it will comply with all applicable provisions of federal, 
state and local laws, ordinances, rules, licenses and regulations. 

11.2. Contractor is responsible for determining which products are considered to be hazardous chemicals under 
applicable standards and to provide the most current Safety Data Sheet ("SOS") with the initial shipment of such 
chemicals. Failure by Contractor to do so may be considered by the City to be delivery of a defective product and its 
delivery may be refused. It is also the Contractor's responsibility to provide to the City any updated or revised SOS 
as it becomes available for any such hazardous chemicals sold and delivered to the City. 

12.0. Independent Contractor. 

Both parties shall act in their individual capacities in the performance of this Agreement and not as agents, 
employees, partners, joint ventures or associates of one another. The employees or agents of one party shall not be 
deemed or construed to be the employees or agents of the other for any purpose whatsoever. 

13.0. Non-Collusion. 

13.1. Neither the Contractor, nor anyone acting on behalf of Contractor, has employed any person to solicit or 
procure this Agreement, nor will the Contractor make any payment or agreement for payment of any compensation in 
connection with the solicitation or procurement of this Agreement. 

4 
200

Item 19.



13.2. Contractor agrees that there is no agreement, arrangement or understanding expressed or implied, 
contemplating any division of compensation for Services provided under this Agreement, or in the participation in 
such Services, directly or indirectly, by any person or entity, except as provided in this Agreement. 

13.3. Neither the Contractor, nor anyone acting on behalf of Contractor, has either directly or indirectly entered 
into any agreement, arrangement or understanding to collude or otherwise take any action in restraint of free 
competitive procurement in connection with this Agreement. 

14.0. Nondiscrimination and Equal Opportunity. 

14.1. Contractor will not in the performance of this Agreement unlawfully discriminate against any employee or 
applicant for employment because of race, sex, color, creed, national origin, marital or familial status, religion, age, 
disability, sexual orientation, gender identity, genetic information or veteran status, or any other classification 
protected by federal, state, or local law. 

14.2. Contractor shall inform all subcontractors and agents performing under this Agreement of this 
nondiscrimination and equal opportunity requirement and shall take reasonable steps to ensure their compliance with 
the same. 

15.0. No Conflict of Interest. 

Contractor represents, warrants and covenants that no relationship exists or will exist during the term of this 
Agreement that is a conflict of interest under Iowa law. No employee, officer or agent of the Contractor shall 
participate in the procurement or performance of this Agreement if a conflict of interest exists as to such person. 
Should a conflict of interest arise during the term of this Agreement for Contractor or any employee, officer or agent of 
Contractor, Contractor shall immediately notify the City, in which case this Agreement may be terminated and any 
additional costs incurred by the City due to such termination shall be paid by Contractor or deducted from any sums 
yet due to Contractor. 

16.0. Force Majeure. 

16.1. Force majeure shall be any of the following events: acts of God or the public enemy; compliance with any 
order, rule, regulation, decree, or request of any governmental authority or agency or person purporting to act as 
such; acts of war, public disorder, rebellion, terrorism, or sabotage; floods, hurricanes, or other storms; strikes or 
labor disputes; public health emergency; or any other cause, whether or not of the class or kind specifically named or 
referred to in this Agreement which is not within the reasonable control of the party affected. A delay in or failure of 
performance by either party shall not constitute a default in performance nor be the basis for, or give rise to, any 
claim for damages, if and to the extent such delay or failure is caused by force majeure. 

16.2. The party who is prevented from performing by force majeure shall be obligated, within a period not to 
exceed fourteen (14) calendar days after the occurrence or detection of any such event, to provide notice to the other 
party setting forth in reasonable detail the nature thereof and the anticipated extent of the delay, and shall remedy 
such cause as soon as reasonably possible, as mutually agreed between the parties. 

16.3. If a remedy to an event of force majeure cannot be agreed upon within a reasonable amount of time, this 
Agreement may be terminated by either party. 

17.0. Assignment. 

No rights under this Agreement may be assigned or transferred by Contractor without the prior written consent of the 
City. The benefits of this Agreement may inure to Contractor's assigns, transferees, or successors in interest if 
approved by the City in writing in advance, and if such assignee, transferees or successors agree in writing to be 
bound by the terms of this Agreement. 

18.0. Governing Law. 

5 
201

Item 19.



18.1. This Agreement shall be governed, interpreted and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of 
Iowa, regardless of choice of law principles. 

18.2. 

19.0. 

Venue for any dispute under this Agreement shall be the District Court in and for Black Hawk County, Iowa. 

Discrepancy. 

In the event that there are any discrepancies or differences between any terms or conditions of the Contractor's bid or 
quote and this Agreement, this Agreement shall prevail, even if the Contractor's bid or quote is incorporated into this 
Agreement. 

20.0 Public Record. 

20.1. This Agreement as well as Contractor's bid or quote and all documents submitted with any such bid or quote 
shall become public documents subject to Iowa Code Chapter 22, the Iowa Open Records Law. By submitting the 
bid or quote or any document to the City in connection with such bid or quote, the submitting party recognizes this 
and waives any claim against the City, its elected and appointed officers, and its employees, and agents working on 
behalf of the City, relating to the release of any bid or document submitted. 

20.2. Each submitting party shall hold the City and its elected and appointed officers, and its employees, and 
agents working on behalf of the City, harmless from any claims arising from the release of any document or 
information made available to the City related to or arising from the bidding or quoting process. 

20.3. Notwithstanding Sections 20.1 and 20.2, protection from disclosure may apply to those elements of any 
submittal that may be a trade secret, or confidential or proprietary information. Should the submitting party wish to 
designate submittals as such, they must be clearly and prominently marked. The City shall make no determination as 
to whether or not such documents are protected from disclosure under Iowa Code Chapter 22. Rather, the City shall 
endeavor to notify the submitter of any request for such information and the submitter shall be solely responsible for 
asserting exemption from disclosure by obtaining a court order. As long as the City makes a good faith effort to notify 
the submitter of a request for such information, the City and the City's elected and appointed officers, the City's 
employees, and agents working on behalf of the City, shall not be liable for any damages resulting from such 
disclosure, whether such disclosure is deemed required by law, by an order of court or administrative agency, or 
occurs through inadvertence, mistake, or negligence. 

21.0. Debarment. 

21.1. Contractor hereby certifies, pursuant to 48 CFR Part 9, that neither it nor its principals are presently 
debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this 
Agreement by any federal agency. 

21.2. Contractor further certifies that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in any contracts with the City or with the State of Iowa. 

22.0 Confidentiality of Shared Information. 

No information shared between Contractor and the City in the performance of this Agreement shall be deemed 
confidential unless clearly designated as such in writing by the party seeking confidentiality at the time of sharing. If 
designated as confidential the parties agree to maintain the confidentiality of such information except as necessary 
for performance under this Agreement, unless or until written authorization for disclosure is given by the designating 
party, or as required by law, or by an order of court or administrative agency. In the event of a dispute over the 
confidentiality of shared information, the parties agree to maintain the confidentiality of the designated information 
until the issue of confidentiality is resolved. The duty to maintain the confidentiality of such information shall survive 
the termination of this Agreement. 

23.0. Entire Agreement. 

6 
202

Item 19.



23.1. This Agreement, and Exhibits, which are incorporated into this Agreement by this reference, contains the 
entire agreement and understanding by and between the parties with respect to the subject matter, and no 
representations, promises, agreements, or understandings, written or verbal, not contained in this Agreement, shall 
be of any force or effect. 

23.2. No change, modification or waiver of this Agreement shall be valid or binding unless the same is in writing 
and signed by the party against whom such change, modification or waiver is sought to be enforced. 

24.0. Additional Terms. 

24.1 Initial Term. The initial term of this Agreement shall be for a period of three (3) years commencing on the 
Effective Date (the "Initial Term". 

24.2 Automatic Renewal. As stated in the Statement of Work, this Agreement shall automatically renew for an 
additional three (3) years upon the expiration of the Initial Term (each a "Renewal Term"), unless this Agreement is 
terminated. 

24.3 Notice of Non-Renewal. This Agreement shall automatically renew under Section 24.2 unless either party 
gives written notice of its intention to terminate and not renew this Agreement no later than ninety (90) days prior to 
the expiration of the Initial Term or any subsequent Renewal Term. 

24.4 Anti-Spam Policy. The city agrees to abide by the Anti-Spam Policy outlined in Exhibit D. 

25.0. Notices. 

Any notice required to be given under this Agreement and any authorization required to be provided shall be given or 
provided to: 

City: 

Name: Kim Manning 

Title: Visitors, Tourism and Cultural Programs Manager 

Address: 6510 Hudson Road 

Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

Telephone: 319-268-4266 

Email: kim@cedarfallstourism.org 

Contractor: 

Name: Mark Lynch 

Title: Chief Client Officer 

Address: 30 South is" Street, Suite 1001 

Philadelphia, PA 19102 

Telephone: 800-27 4-877 4 

Email: mark@tempest.im 

In Witness Whereof, the City and the Contractor have caused this Agreement to be executed as of the last date listed 
below. 

CONTRACTOR 

(Name of Contractor) 

By:---------------- 

Its: _ Date: _ 

7 
203

Item 19.



CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

By:------------ 

Robert M. Green, Mayor 

Attest: _ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

Date: _ 

8 
204

Item 19.



IM·tempest iDSS CYCLONE SOW: PAGE 1 of 2 
PREPARED BY: Mark Lynch, Chief Client Officer 

SCHEDULE A: iDSS CYCLONE STATEMENT OF WORK 
EXHIBIT A 
Background 
This Statement of Work by and between City of Cedar Falls, IA ("Client") and iDSS Global LLC ("Company," a 
Member of Tempest, Inc.). The parties agree that this SOW, along with the General Terms and Conditions 
Service/Product Agreements and other Statements of Work incorporated by reference therein, form a binding 
agreement between the parties relating to all services to be provided by the Company. 

Definitions 
a. "Client Support" means Company acknowledgement and response to telephone calls and emails from 

Client asking questions about iDSS Cyclone or requesting help in using iDSS Cyclone. 

b. "Fees" means the fees for the license to use the iDSS Cyclone and for the Services as set forth in the 
Fee Schedule. 

c. "Go Live Date" means the point in time where On boarding services are complete, iDSS Cyclone has 
been configured and enabled and is ready for the Client to use. The Go Live Date will be established by 
the Company in the Go Live Date Agreement referred to below under iDSS Cyclone Subscription Fee. 

d. "Standard Reports" means the standard reports available in the iDSS Cyclone for use by Client. 

e. "Users" means anyone logging into and using the iDSS Cyclone. 

f. "Email Credit" means one email credit is equal to one email sent to one email recipient from iDSS 
Cyclone through the iDSS Email Campaigns Feature. 

g. "iDSS Legacy Version" means iDSS Version 8 or other prior versions. 

h. "iDSS Cyclone" means iDSS Cyclone Version 1. 

30 SOUTH 15TH STREET I SUITE 1001 I PHILADELPHIA, PA 19102 I P: +1.800.274.8774 I F: +1.800.274.8775 I TEMPEST.iM 

205

Item 19.



IMtempest iDSS CYCLONE SOW : PAGE 1 of 2 
PREPARED BY: Mark Lynch, Chief Client Officer 

SCHEDULE C: GO LIVE DATE AGREEMENT 

Background 
iDSS Global LLC ("Company," a Member of Tempest. Inc.) as Company and City of Cedar Falls, IA as Client 
executed the SOW dated as of MM/DD/YYYY SOW EFFECTIVE DATE. 

Because the GO LIVE DATE is a dynamic event, this Schedule C will memorialize the actual Go Live Date the Client 
commences use of iDSS, which will then become the SOW Effective Date. 

The SOW states this document shall be delivered and executed upon establishment of Go Live Date. This Go Live 
Date Agreement shall become part of the SOW. 

The Client and Company agree as follows: 

I. Go Live Date. The Go Live Date of this SOW is _ 

2. Initial Term. The end of the Initial Term of this SOW is _ 

3. Renewal Terms. This SOW will automatically renew unless either party gives written notice of its 
intention to terminate and not renew this agreement no later than ninety (90) days prior to the 
expiration of the Initial Term or any subsequent Renewal Term. 

Please sign in the appropriate location below, and return the signed SOW to us by fax or mail. 

City of Cedar Falls, IA 

6510 Hudson Road 

Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

iDSS Global, LLC. (A Member of Tempest, Inc.) 
30 S. 15th St. Suite 1001 

Philadelphia, PA 19102 

Printed Name Printed Name 

Title/ Position Title/ Position 

Signature Signature 

Date Date 

30 SOUTH 15TH STREET I SUITE 1001 I PHILADELPHIA, PA 19102 I P: +1.800.274.8774 I F: +1.800.274.8775 I TEMPEST.iM 

206

Item 19.



IMtempest iDSS CYCLONE SOW: PAGE 1 of 5 
PREPARED BY: Mark Lynch, Chief Client Officer 

FEE SCHEDULE 
EXHIBIT B 

ONBOARDING SERVICES 

SETUP AND CONFIGURATION OF CLIENT iDSS CYCLONE INSTANCE 

DATA MIGRATION AND TRANSFORMATION 

Go-Live TRAINING - onsite 
*for onsite training, travel expenses will be billed to the client at cost 

TRAINING - webinar training 

TOTAL ONBOARDING COST 

ONGOING COSTS (recurring on a yearly basis) 

iDSS CYCLONE SUBSCRIPTION FEE (Annualized) 

INCLUDED 

INCLUDED 

INCLUDED 

INCLUDED 

$3,000.00 

$6,000.00 

TOTAL ONGOING COSTS $6,000.00 

30 SOUTH 15TH STREET I SUITE 1001 I PHILADELPHIA, PA 19102 I P: +1.800.274.8774 I F: +1.800.274.8775 I TEMPEST.iM 

207

Item 19.



IMtempest iDSS CYCLONE SOW: PAGE 2 of 5 
PREPARED BY: Mark Lynch, Chief Client Officer 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

CONSULTING SERVICES $125.00/hour 

CUSTOM REPORT AND REPORT DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 

CUSTOM FEATURE AND INTEGRATION DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 

CREATIVE AND DESIGN SERVICES 

DATA UPDATE, TRANSFORMATION AND CLEANSING SERVICES 

$125.00/hour 

$125.00/hour 

$125.00/hour 

$125.00/hour 

EMAIL CREDITS $.009/credit 

ONSITE TRAINING $1,000 per 
trainer per day 

30 SOUTH 15TH STREET I SUITE 1001 I PHILADELPHIA, PA 19102 I P: +1.800.274.8774 I F: +1.800.274.8775 I TEMPEST.iM 

208

Item 19.



IMtempest iDSS CYCLONE SOW: PAGE 3 of 5 
PREPARED BY: Mark Lynch, Chief Client Officer 

On boarding Services Fee 
a. Fee Description. This is a one-time only, non-refundable fee for On boarding Services listed in the Scope 

of Services in this SOW for Onboarding. 

b. Payment Terms. $1,500.00 (first half of Onboarding Fee) will be paid as a down payment upon executing this 
SOW. The remaining $1,500.00 (last half of On boarding Fee) will be billed and due at the Go Live Date. The iDSS 
Cyclone ongoing Subscription Fee $6,000.00 will be billed in mutually acceptable instances (Monthly, Quarterly, 
Bi=Annually, Annually). 

c. Setup and Configuration of Client iDSS CRM Instance. Company will configure the IDSS Cyclone instance in 
preparation for client use. 

d. Data Migration and Transformation. Company will migrate Client data to iDSS Cyclone from other sources, 
provided that the Client has identified in writing, to the satisfaction of Company, the data source or sources to be 
accessed and the specific data the Client wishes to migrate to iDSS Cyclone and Company has determined that 
migration of the data is feasible. 

e. Onsite Training. If an onsite Training is included as part of On boarding, Company will provide training to Client's 
staff at Client's business location covering the features, use and other information regarding iDSS Cyclone. Client 
shall reimburse Company for any Travel Related Expenses and out-of-pocket expenses pursuant to section 2.1 in 
the MSA. Limitation on Training - Each training session is limited to 10 staff members per trainer. 

f. Travel Expenses. Client shall reimburse Company for any Travel Related Expenses and out-of-pocket expenses 
related to this SOW pursuant to section 2.1 in the MSA. 

g. On boarding Services After Go Live Date. Client Requested Services related to the On boarding Services in Scope of 
Services in this SOW will be included in the On boarding Services Fee for twenty (20) business days after Go Live 
Date. 

iDSS Cyclone Subscription Fee 
a. iDSS Cyclone Subscription Fee. Through payment of this fee, the Client has the right to continued use of iDSS 

Cyclone during the Initial term and any Renewal Term. This fee includes regular upgrades and client support. The 
iDSS Cyclone fee is locked in for the Initial Term period with the exception of adding users. Company shall send 
an invoice for iDSS Cyclone Subscription Fee at the Go Live Date. iDSS Cyclone Subscription Fees will be billed in 
advance of the Go Live Date anniversary for each year. 

i. Go Live Date Agreement. Prior to the Go Live Date, Company shall send Client the Go Live Date 
Agreement form stating the Go Live Date, the updated term of the subscription, agreement, and renewal 
terms. Client agrees that Client's authorized representative shall sign the Go Live Agreement form 
acknowledging and consenting to the Go Live Date, the updated term of the subscription, agreement, 
and renewal deadlines. A copy of the Go Live Date Agreement is attached to this SOW as Schedule C. 

30 SOUTH 15TH STREET I SUITE 1001 I PHILADELPHIA, PA 19102 I P: +1.800.274.8774 I F: +1.800.274.8775 I TEMPEST.iM 

209

Item 19.



IMtempest iDSS CYCLONE SOW: PAGE 4 of 5 
PREPARED BY: Mark Lynch, Chief Client Officer 

Professional Services 
Company provides the following professional services beyond the scope of this SOW at the rates outlined in the 

fee schedule. 

a. Consulting Services. Company offers best practice consulting to assist Client in streamlining processes, auditing 
internal processes, and reinforcing best practices. Company offers this additional professional service at the rate 
outlined in the fee schedule. This service can be performed on-site with a minimum of eight (8) hours and the 
Client agrees to pay all documented Travel Related Expenses and out-of-pocket expenses per the Master Service 
Agreement. Section 2.1. This service can also be performed remotely, billable by the hour with a minimum of four 
(4) hours. 

b. Custom Report Development Services. Company makes available a wide variety of standard reports included in 
iDSS Cyclone. Company may also prepare custom reports if Client requests at their expense. Company offers this 
additional professional service at the rate outlined in the fee schedule. Company will begin development of the 
report upon receiving a signed request or email from Client. describing the specifications, and approving the 
timeline and estimated fees. 

c. Custom Feature and Integration Development Services. Company offers this additional professional service at the 
rate outlined in the fee schedule. If the requested feature is a possible customization, Company will begin 
customizing the feature upon receiving a signed request or email from Client. describing the specifications, and 
approving the timeline and estimated fees. 

d. Creative and Design Services. Company offers additional Creative and Design services beyond what is covered in 
the Scope Of Services in this SOW. Company offers this additional professional service at the rate outlined in the 
fee schedule. Company will begin the Creative and Design services upon receiving a signed request or email from 
Client. describing the specifications, and approving the timeline and estimated fees. 

e. Data Update, Transformation, and Cleansing Services. Company offers additional Data Updates, 
Transformation and Cleansing services beyond what is covered in the scope of services in this SOW. 
Company offers this additional professional service at the rate outlined in the fee schedule. Company 
will begin the data update, transformation and cleansing services upon receiving a signed request or 
email from Client. describing the specifications, and approving the timeline and estimated fees. 

f. Email Credits. iDSS Cyclone includes the iDSS Email Campaigns feature that allows users to design and 
distribute email campaigns. Email Credits can be purchased in blocks of 50,000 Email Credits at the 
rate outlined in the fee schedule. Email overage charge of $.0125 per email credit will be assessed if 
insufficient email credits are available at the time of email campaign delivery. Licensing of this feature 
requires agreement to Schedule B: Anti Spam Policy. 

g. Onsite Training. Company offers additional onsite training beyond what is covered in the scope of services in this 
SOW. Company offers this additional onsite training at the rate outlined in the fee schedule. Additional training 
can be performed onsite with a minimum of one (1) day and the Client agrees to pay all documented Travel 
Related Expenses and out-of-pocket expenses per the Master Service Agreement. Section 2.1. 

30 SOUTH 15TH STREET I SUITE 1001 I PHILADELPHIA, PA 19102 I P: +1.800.274.8774 I F: +1.800.274.8775 I TEMPEST.iM 

210

Item 19.



l..tempest iDSS CYCLONE SOW: PAGE 5 of 5 
PREPARED BY: Mark Lynch, Chief Client Officer 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

ONBOARDING SERVICES 

SETUP AND CONFIGURATION OF CLIENT iDSS CYCLONE INSTANCE 

DATA MIGRATION AND TRANSFORMATION - migration and transformation of 
existing client data from ACT! 

CUSTOM REPORT DEVELOPMENT SERVICES - development of 1 custom report, if 
necessary. 

Go Live-TRAINING - onsite 
*for onsite training, travel expenses will be billed to the client at cost 

TRAINING - webinar training 

iDSS CYCLONE CORE SUBSCRIPTION (including iDSS Email Campaigns (10,000 annual 
Email Credits, iDSS Extranet) 

INCLUDED 

INCLUDED 

INCLUDED 

INCLUDED 

INCLUDED 

INCLUDED 

30 SOUTH 15TH STREET I SUITE 1001 I PHILADELPHIA, PA 19102 I P: +1.800.274.8774 I F: +1.800.274.8775 I TEMPEST.iM 

211

Item 19.



Exhibit C 
ACORD® CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE I 

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY) 

~ 9/16/2020 

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 
IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. 
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on 
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s). 

PRODUCER ~2~i~cT R. Ivette Aponte 
Wharton/Lyon & Lyon 

ritJ8,NJo, Ext): 973-863-2820 I FAX 
PO Box 1660 {AJC Nol: 9739926660 

Livingston NJ 07039 ~t1D'M~ss: iaponte@whartoninsurance.com 

INSURER{Sl AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC# 

License#: BR-787709 INSURER A: Continental Casualty Company 20443 
INSURED TEMPINT-01 INSURER B : CNA 
Tempest Interactive Media LLC., 

INSURERC: Tempest, Inc, iDSS Global LLC, & Destination Sign 
30 S. 15th Street, Suite 1001 INSURERD: 
Philadelphia PA 19102 INSURER E: 

INSURER F: 

COVERAGES 
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. 

INSR ADDL SUBR POLICY EFF POLICY EXP LIMITS LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE •••en ,.n,n POLICY NUMBER IMM/DD/YYYYl IMM/DD/YYYYl 
A X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY y B4031355889 1/26/2020 1/26/2021 EACH OCCURRENCE S 1,000,000 - 0 CLAIMS-MADE 0 OCCUR 

uAMAGE TO RENTED 
PREMISES /Ea occurrence) S 300,000 

- MED EXP (Any one person) S 10,000 

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $1,000,000 - 
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE S 2,000,000 ~ □ PRO- □LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG S 2,000,000 POLICY JECT 

OTHER: s 
A AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY B4031355889 1/26/2020 1/26/2021 COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT S 1,000,000 IEa accident) 
f-- 

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) s 
f-- OI/IINED - SCHEDULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) S 
f-- AUTOS ONLY - AUTOS 
X HIRED X NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE s AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY /Per accident) 
f-- f-- 

s 
8 UMBRELLA LIAS H OCCUR B6046092784 1/26/2020 1/26/2021 EACH OCCURRENCE S 2,000,000 

X EXCESS LIAS CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE S 2,000,000 

DED I X I RETENTIONS rn nn~ s 
WORKERS COMPENSATION I ~ffTuTE I I OTH- 
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY ER 

YIN 
ANYPR0PRIET0R/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE □ N/A E.L. EACH ACCIDENT s 
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? 
(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE S 
If yes, describe under 

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT s DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below 
A E&0 Professional B4031355889 1/26/2020 1/26/2021 2,000,000 
A Employee Liaiblity B4031355889 1/26/2020 1/26/2021 1,000,000 

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/ LOCATIONS/ VEHICLES IACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required) 
Coverage is subject to policy terms, conditions, and exclusions. 
The City of Cedar Falls, including all its elected and appointed officials, all it employees and volunteers, are included on a primary and non --contributory basis 
form no. CNA801103XX and waiver of subrogation with respect to work performed by the named insured when required by a written and executed contract., as 
per form no.SB-146932F. 
Including 30 days notice of cancellation 

CERTIFICATE NUMBER· 400399495 REVISION NUMBER: 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER 

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE 
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 
Cedar Falls IA 50613 

W%t ~ 
I 

CANCELLATION 

ACORD 25 (2016/03) 
© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved. 

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 212

Item 19.



Exhibit C 

ACORDO) CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE I DATE (MMIDD/YYYY) 

~ 09/14/2020 
THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER($), AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 
IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. 
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on 
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s). 

PRODUCER CONTACT Justworks Customer Success NAME: 
Doug Jones Justworks PHONE (888) 534-1711 I FAX 
c/o Artex Risk Solutions, Inc. IA/C No E•ll· fA/C Nol: 

E-MAIL support@justworks.com 8840 E. Chaparral Rd.; Suite 275 ADDRESS: 
Scottsdale, AZ 85250 INSURER!Sl AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC# 

INSURER A: American Zurich Insurance Comoanv 40142 
INSURED INSURER B: 
Justworks Employment Group LLC Labor Contractor, for co-employees of: Tempest 

INSURER C: Interactive Media LLC 
PO Box 7119 Church Street Station INSURER D: 
New York, NY 10008-7119 

INSURER E: 

INSURER F: 

COVERAGES 
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. 

INSR ADDL SUBR POLICY EFF POLICY EXP 
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE '"'"n wun POLICY NUMBER fMMIDD/YYYYl fMMIDD/YYYYl LIMITS 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE s - D CLAIMS-MADE □ OCCUR 
DAMAGE TO RENTED 
PREMISES !Ea occurrence! s 

- MED EXP (Any one person) s 

- PERSONAL & ADV INJURY s 
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE s ~ □PRO- DLoc POLICY JECT PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG s 

OTHER: s 
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT s IEa accident\ - 

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) s - OWNED - SCHEDULED 
AUTOS ONLY AUTOS BODILY INJURY (Per accident) S - HIRED - NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE 
AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY f Per accident\ s - - s 
UMBRELLA LIAB H OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE s - 
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $ 

OED I I RETENTION $ s 
WORKERS COMPENSATION X I ~f:TUTE I I OTH- 
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY ER 

YIN 

A ANYPROPRIETORIPARTNERIEXECUTIVE □ WC 11-23-986-02 06/01/2020 06/01/2021 
E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ 2,000,000 

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? NIA 
(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE S 2,000,000 
If yes, describe under 

2,000,000 DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT s 

Location Coverage Period: 06/01/2020 06/01/2021 Client# 27054-PA 

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required) 

Coverage is provided for 
Tempest Interactive Media LLC 

only those co-employees 30 S 15th Street Ste 1001 
of, but not subcontractors Philadelphia, PA 19102 
to: 

Endorsements: 30 days written cancel notice (10 days for non payment of 
premium) 

CERTIFICATE NUMBER·20NY017966317 REVISION NUMBER· 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER 

City of Cedar Falls SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE 

220 Clay Street THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN 
Cedar Falls, IA 50613 ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. 

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 

I t:::r~L~ 

CANCELLATION 

ACORD 25 /2016/03\ 
© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved. 

The ACORD name and loao are reaistered marks of ACORD 

213

Item 19.



Exhibit C 
WORKERS COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYERS LIABILITY INSURANCE POLICY WC 99 06 33 

NOTIFICATION TO OTHERS OF CANCELLATION ENDORSEMENT 

This endorsement is used to add the following to Part Six of the policy. 

PART SIX 
CONDITIONS 

A. If we cancel this policy by written notice to you for any reason other than nonpayment of premium, we will mail 
or deliver a copy of such written notice of cancellation to the name and address corresponding to each person 
or organization shown in the Schedule below. Notification to such person or organization will be provided at 
least 1 0 days prior to the effective date of the cancellation, as advised in our notice to you, or the longer 
number of days notice if indicated in the Schedule below. 

B. If we cancel this policy by written notice to you for nonpayment of premium, we will mail or deliver a copy of 
such written notice of cancellation to the name and address corresponding to each person or organization 
shown in the Schedule below at least 10 days prior to the effective date of such cancellation. 

C. If notice as described in Paragraphs A. or B. of this endorsement is mailed, proof of mailing will be sufficient 
proof of such notice. 

SCHEDULE 

Name and Address of Other Person(s) / Number of Days Notice: Organization( s): 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 30 
Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

All other terms and conditions of this policy remain unchanged. 

This endorsement changes the policy to which it is attached and is effective on the date issued unless otherwise stated. 

(The information below is required only when this endorsement is issued subsequent to preparation of the policy.) 

Endorsement Effective: 09/14/2020 Policy No:. WC 11-23-986-02 
Insured: Justworks Employment Group LLC Labor Contractor, for co-employees of: Tempest 

Interactive Media LLC 
Insurance Company: American Zurich Insurance Company 

WC 99 06 33 
(Ed. 05-10) Includes copyrighted material of National Council on Compensation Insurance, Inc. with its permission. 

Endorsement No: 
Premium:$ 

214

Item 19.



l..tempest iDSS CYCLONE SOW: PAGE 1 of 1 
PREPARED BY: Mark Lynch, Chief Client Officer 

ANTI-SPAM POLICY 
EXHIBIT D 
Company requires all clients to certify their compliance with the following Anti-Spam policy as well as the opt-in 
status of email distribution lists. 

Your use of the iDSS Cyclone must comply with all applicable laws. This includes laws applicable to you and also 

laws applicable to Tempest and the recipient of each Email. Examples of applicable laws include laws relating to 

spam or unsolicited commercial email (UCE), privacy, security, obscenity, defamation, intellectual property, 

pornography, terrorism, homeland security, gambling, child protection, and other applicable laws. It is your 

responsibility to know and understand the laws applicable to your use of the Services and the Emails you 

generate and send through the Services. 

Your use of iDSS Cyclone must follow all applicable guidelines established by Company. The guidelines below are 

examples of practices that may violate this Policy when generating or sending Emails through the iDSS Email 

Campaigns: 

• Using non-permission based Email lists (i.e., lists in which each recipient has not explicitly granted 
permission to receive Emails from you by affirmatively opting-in to receive those Emails). 

• Using purchased or rented Email lists. 

• Sending Emails to non-specific addresses (e.g., webmaster@domain.com or info@domain.com). 

• Sending Emails that result in an unacceptable number of spam or UCE complaints (even if the Emails 
themselves are not actually spam or UCE). 

• Failing to include a working "unsubscribe" link in each Email that allows the recipient to remove 
themselves from your mailing list. 

• Failing to comply with any request from a recipient to be removed from your mailing list within ten (10) 
days of receipt of the request. 

• Failing to include in each Email a link to the then-current Privacy Policy applicable to that Email. 

• Disguising the origin or subject matter of any Email or falsifying or manipulating the originating email 
address, subject line, headers, or transmission path information for any Email. 

• Failing to include in each Email your valid physical mailing address or a link to that information. 

• Including "junk mail," "chain letters," "pyramid schemes," incentives (e.g., coupons, discounts, awards, 
or other incentives) or other material in any Email that encourages a recipient to forward the Email to 
another recipient. 

30 SOUTH 15TH STREET I SUITE 1001 I PHILADELPHIA, PA 19102 I P: +1.800.274.8774 I F: +1.800.274.8775 I TEMPEST.iM 

215

Item 19.



 

 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com  

 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

Administration Division 

  

  

 

 

  

 
 
 TO: Mayor Green & City Council  

 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 

 DATE: September 14, 2020 

 SUBJECT: Western Home Communities 9th Addition – Early Occupancy Request 
 5324-5326 Lemongrass Dr. (Lot 11), 5404 Lemongrass Dr. (Lot 12),  
 5414  Lemongrass Dr. (Lot 13), 5424-5426 Lemongrass Dr. (Lot 14) 
 
 
In August 2019, City Council approved the final plat for Western Home Communities 
Ninth Addition.  Construction plans were approved by the Engineering Division in June 
2019.  Weather conditions in the fall and spring made it challenging to complete the 
road and infrastructure as timely as originally desired.  Early occupancy for six units was 
granted in late July.  There remain several areas of public improvements needed yet 
before the City can consider final acceptance of all improvements: sidewalks, cleaning 
manholes, intakes, and sewer lines, backfilling and grading areas.  Therefore, Western 
Home Communities has submitted a second request for early occupancy for six 
additional units.  This is permitted by the Subdivision Code, Section 24-54(e) and has 
occasionally been considered in other subdivisions. 
 
In July, it was anticipated that 
remaining improvements would 
be completed for final acceptance 
to occur by September.  However, 
items remain outstanding.  A 
schedule of completion has been 
requested.  The homes are 
accessible if an emergency 
situation were to arise. 
 
Staff recommends approval of the 
request, subject to a schedule of 
completion as well as paved 
driveways for the units and 
installation of any needed 
SWPPP controls. 

216

Item 20.



 

September 14, 2020 
 
Western Home Communities 
5307 Caraway Lane 
Cedar Falls, IA 50613 
 
Attn: Stephanie Sheetz 
City of Cedar Falls – Community Development 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, IA 50613 
 
 
Dear Ms. Sheetz and City Council members, 
 
Western Home Communities respectfully requests early occupancy approval for six addresses 
remaining on the east side of Lemongrass Drive. The future occupants of these six had anticipated 
moving dates this month. We continue to work on outstanding items for final completion. 
 
The addresses for which we are requesting September occupancy are as follows: 
 
5324 Lemongrass Drive 
 

5326 Lemongrass Drive 
 

5404 Lemongrass Drive 
 

5414 Lemongrass Drive 
 

5424 Lemongrass Drive 
 

5426 Lemongrass Drive 
 
 
Please contact Mike Camarata, System Facility Services Officer, with questions and/or your 
response at 319-493-0523 or mike.camarata@westernhome.org. Thank you for your consideration 
on this matter. 
 

 
 
Kris Hansen, CEO 
Western Home Communities 

217

Item 20.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Jaydevsinh Atodaria (JD), Planner I 

 DATE: September 15, 2020 

 SUBJECT: Façade review of property in the Central Business District Overlay 
 

 
REQUEST: 

 
Restoring the existing façade as per architectural historic significance. 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Modern Design Architects 

LOCATION: 
 

201 Main Street, Blue Room Lounge (Case # DR 20-004) 
 

 
PROPOSAL  
The architecture firm Modern Design Architects on behalf of their client Blue Room Lounge, 
owner of 201 Main Street is requesting a design review for renovation activity at 201 Main Street 
in the Central Business District (CBD) Overlay Zoning District. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The subject property is a two-story building 
built in year 1890 and is located within 
Cedar Falls Downtown Historic District, 
which was listed on the National Register of 
Historic Places in 2017. The National Bank 
Building was the original building that stood 
here before the Blue Room Lounge took 
over in 1958. The Blue Room Lounge is 
located on the southwest corner of Main 
and W. 2nd Streets. Blue Room Lounge is a 
two story commercial building with primary 
elevations facing Main Street and W. 2nd 
Street. Buildings overall visual character 
reflects 1958 renovation that stripped the 
1876 Italianate elements from the building. 
The property is located in the 200 block of 
Main Street with entrance facing Main 
Street, (see image to the right).   
 

218

Item 21.



   

   
 
Today, the exterior reflects 1972 alterations including a wood sheathing with wood shingle pent 
roof that runs the full length of the first floor, North elevation. Whereas, the storefront features a 
corner entrance with two medium sized display windows facing the Main Street. Also a vintage 
neon “Orange Crush/Blue Room Lounge” sign projecting over public sidewalk along the Main 
Street is another existing feature of this building. The petitioner proposes to restore/repair both 
existing façades on the North and East faces of the building, remove the existing mansard 
roof/awning projecting over public sidewalk along W. 2nd Street at 201 Main Street. All the 
renovation/restoration work will be carried out through grant from State Historic Tax Credit 
Program and the work will be done in conformance with the State Historic Tax Credit Program 
which will revive the building with 1950’s Architectural style.   
 

219

Item 21.



The subject property is located within the C-3 Commercial District Zone (Section 26-172) and is 
also subject to the Central Business District Overlay District regulations. (Section 26-189). In 
this zone, any “substantial improvement” to an exterior façade, including removing exterior 
windows and the addition of new awnings, requires design review by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission and City Council. A substantial improvement to properties in the Central Business 
District Overlay is defined in Section 26-189 (f) and reads as follows: 
 

"Substantial improvement" includes any new building construction within the overlay 
district or any renovation of an existing structure that involves any modification of the 
exterior appearance of the structure by virtue of adding or removing exterior windows or 
doors or altering the color or exterior materials of existing walls. All facade improvements, 
changes, alterations, modifications or replacement of existing facade materials will be 
considered a substantial improvement. Included in this definition are any new, modified or 
replacement awning structures or similar material extensions over the public sidewalk 
area. A substantial improvement also includes any increase or decrease in existing 
building height and/or alteration of the existing roof pitch or appearance.” 
  

In this case, the proposal is to restore/repair North and East façade of the building at 201 Main 
Street, remove the existing mansard roof/awning project over public sidewalk along W 2nd Street 
and retain the existing projecting sign over the public sidewalk along Main Street. The Planning 
and Zoning Commission and City Council must review and approve the request as per the 
Central Business District Overlay Zoning District “Substantial Improvement” clause (Section 26-
189(f)) 
 
ANALYSIS 
The following is an evaluation of the proposed change according to the review standards in the 
Central Business District Overlay Zone: 
 
1.  Proportion: This criterion takes into account the relationship of the proposed horizontal 

220

Item 21.



elements (such as cornice lines, awnings and canopies) and vertical elements (such as 
windows and doors) with the elements of adjacent buildings. Proposed alteration includes 
removing wooden sheathing and the wood shingle pent roof that runs the full length of the 
main floor along the north and west façade. This plan is to repair and revive the windows and 
worn out bricks along both the north and west facades. This proposed alteration would allow 
the building to resemble the one in year 1958. The proportion of the building will be more 
rhythmic with brick façade complemented with placement of vertical windows. The proportion 
of building along the Main Street will remain unaltered, except for a few repairs/replacement 
of worn out bricks. The proposed alteration of the subject property will be done as per State 
Historical Preservation Office guidelines and will be uniform with the surrounding buildings. 
Criterion is met. 

 
2. Roof shape, pitch and direction: The roof of this building is not being structurally altered. 

This criterion does not apply for this review.  
 
3.  Pattern: The pattern of solid surfaces and openings needs to be considered in the alteration 

of a building.  Elements of the building will be restored as per the original architecture of 
1958. The vertical wooden siding along both north and west facades of the subject property, 
spanned across the main floor area will be removed and bricks and existing windows 
underneath will be restored and will be visible as the exterior material to viewers. All the 
bricks will be restored/ repaired as per the brick pattern that existed on the 1958 building 
façade. The pattern along the east façade facing Main Street will remain same except for a 
few repairs/replacement of worn out bricks. Proposed alteration would make the building 
look more uniform with surrounding context. Criterion is met. 

 
4.  Building Composition: The proposed design must provide visual interest and visually break 

up long building walls. The existing building composition is being altered by removal of wood 
sheathing with a projecting wood shingle pent roof that runs the full length of the first floor 
along the north and west façades. This removal will allow the building façade to take its 
historical architectural form of the 1950s, making the building composition more balanced 
and uniform with surrounding buildings. Criterion is met. 

 
5. Windows and transparencies: The CBD overlay zoning district requires that any alteration to 

the size, proportion, and type of windows on a building be compatible with existing 
neighboring buildings. The Existing building composition is not being altered along the Main 
street façade but the existing building composition is being altered on the main level façade 
along W 2nd Street as per the original building design in 1958. Removal of wood sheathing 
with projecting wood shingle pent roof along north and west façade on main level will expose 
the view of brick patterns and windows currently covered underneath it. This alteration will 
allow the building to look more harmonious as it looked in 1958. Proposed alterations will not 
involve any new placement of windows along the facades and will ensure that the windows 
are transparent as per State Historic Preservation Office guidelines. Criterion is met. 

 
6. Materials and textures: All material alterations to a building in the CBD overlay zoning district 

are required to be similar to or compatible with existing materials and textures of buildings in 
the immediate area. The applicant is proposing to repair/ replace worn out bricks over the 
north, west and east building facades of the subject property. The proposed alteration project 
will not include any new materials or textures being added on the building. Rather, the 
proposal would ensure that the building façade looks more uniform and aligns with the 
architecture style of neighboring buildings. Criterion is met.  

221

Item 21.



7. Color: The proposal restores and repair existing bricks. The color tones of the bricks will 
more or less be the same and will look more uniform than the existing buildings which have 
different color tones of exterior bricks. The window frames will be painted (if needed) as per 
the existing color. No new exterior paint colors will be used for the alteration. The proposed 
colors along the facades of 201 Main Street will be compatible with the existing colors of the 
district. Criterion is met. 

 
8.  Architectural features: Architectural features including but not limited to cornices, 

entablatures, doors, windows, shutters, fanlights and other elements prevailing in the area 
shall be considered in the construction or alteration of a building. The existing building 
composition is being altered to restore the architectural features of the building from the 
1950s. This proposed alteration will revive not only the building façades but will also revive 
lost architectural features from the 1950s. Criterion is met. 

 
9.  Building entries: The entries into this building are not changing. This criterion does not 

apply for this review. 
 
10. Exterior mural wall drawings, painted artwork, exterior painting: No mural is being proposed. 

This criterion does not apply for this review. 
 
11. Signage: The applicant wishes to keep the original vintage neon “Orange Crush/Blue Room 

Lounge” sign projecting over public the sidewalk along Main Street as it is one of the 
historical features of this building. No new signage is being proposed at this time. Criterion 
is met. 

 
The proposed alterations for the subject property at 201 Main Street will be done as per State 
Historical Preservation Office guidelines as the applicant has received a grant from the State 
Historic Tax Credit Program to carry out alterations and revive the building as per the 1950s 
architectural style. Alterations including removal of wood sheathing and the projecting wood 
shingle pent roof along the north and west façades on the main level, repair/revive the worn out 
bricks along north, west and east façades, and retain the existing vintage neon projecting sign 
along Main Street meet city code. If approved by the Planning and Zoning Commission, this 
item will be placed on the next regularly scheduled City Council meeting. If the City Council 
approves this request, the necessary permit will be issued for carrying out the alteration work. 
 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
No comments. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Planning and Zoning Commission recommend approval of the submitted design review 
application for Blue Room Lounge at 201 Main Street at their regular meeting on 9th September 
2020 with a vote of 7 ayes and 0 nays. The Community Development Department also 
recommends approval of the submitted proposal to restore the facades at 201 Main Street.  
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion/Vote 
09/09/2020 

Chair Holst introduced the item and Mr. Atodaria provided background 
information. He explained that the building is located at 201 Main Street and 
a request has been made to restore and repair the facades of the building, 
remove the existing mansard roof and awning projecting over the sidewalk 
and preserve the projecting vintage neon sign. The restoration work would be 

222

Item 21.



carried out through a grant from the State Historic Tax Credit Program in 
conformance with the program. It will revive the building with the 1950’s 
architectural style. Mr. Atodaria discussed the aspects considered in the 
analysis of the project and how the applicant plans to address each item. 
Staff recommends approval of the façade review. 

Jim Trunnell, spoke for the owner, stating that the drawings are ready to 
submit to the building department and the form is filled out and ready to be 
turned in. The State Historic Office will not allow the neon sign to come down 
as it is intrinsic to the period significance. Mr. Leeper asked how much brick 
is anticipated to be saved as it is not all in the greatest condition. Mr. Trunnell 
stated that the goal is to save as much as they can once the brick is able to 
be examined. Mr. Schrad asked how the new bricks will match the old. Mr. 
Trunnell stated that there is a company out East that can manufacture a very 
close match to replace current bricks. It is estimated that 40 – 60% may be 
saved. 

Ms. Lynch made a motion to approve the item. Mr. Larson seconded the 
motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 7 ayes (Hartley, Holst, 
Larson, Leeper, Lynch, Prideaux and Schrad), and 0 nays. 

 
  

 

223

Item 21.



224

Item 21.



225

Item 21.



226

Item 21.



227

Item 21.



228

Item 21.



229

Item 21.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8606 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Jaydevsinh Atodaria (JD), Planner I 
  Matthew Tolan, Civil Engineer II 

 DATE: September 15, 2020 

 SUBJECT: Chrisbro Subdivision Final Plat 
 

 
REQUEST: 

 
Request to approve the Chrisbro Subdivision Final Plat. Case #FP 20-002 
 

PETITIONER: Craig Christianson 
 

LOCATION: 
 

The property is located on 12.18 acres of land at the northwest corner of 
Nordic Drive and Commerce Drive 
 

 

PROPOSAL 
The petitioner owns the 12.18 acre parcel at the northwest corner of Nordic Drive and 
Commerce Drive. The proposed subdivision will divide the existing lot into four commercial lots 
and two tracts to serve as detention basins.  
 
BACKGROUND 
The Lockard Pines subdivision was created in the summer of 2003. This subdivision is located 
at the northwest corner of Highway 58 and W. Ridgeway Avenue. Over the years, commercial 
development has expanded in this area, which includes the Super 8 Motel, Kwik Star, Farm 
Credit Services and Comfort Suites. One of the remaining lots in this subdivision was purchased 
by the petitioner in the spring of 2011. A site plan for a new Hilton hotel was reviewed by the 
Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council in 2011. In the fall of 2017, the Planning and 
Zoning Commission and City Council reviewed and approved a site plan for a conference center 
addition to the existing Hilton Garden Inn and a site plan for a second hotel on the property. 
Following that in summer 2019, preliminary plat for entire Chrisbro subdivision was reviewed 
and approved by Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council. 
 
The petioner intends to approve the final plat of the subdivision based on recently approved 
preliminary plat in 2019. The petitioner intends to split the existing 12.18 acre parcel into four (4) 
commercial lots and two (2) tracts for stormwater management. Lot 1 is reserved for the existing 
Hilton Garden Inn and Conference Center, Lot 2 is for the second hotel and Lots 3 & 4 will be 
developed for a commercial use. Site plan review for Lots 3 & 4 will be brought before the 
Planning and Zoning Commission at a later date. The proposed Chrisbro Subdivision is 
essentially a re-plat of Lot 3 of the Lockard Pines Addition. 

230

Item 22.



 
ANALYSIS 
The petitioner, Chrisbro Inc. proposes to approve the final plat of 12.18 acres of land at the 
northwest corner of Nordic Drive and Commerce Drive. The final plat includes four commercial 
lots and two tracts for stormwater management. The property is located in the HWY-1 
commercial zoning district. Any development on these lots requires site plan review by the 
Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council. The site plan review process was 
completed for the two hotel projects on Lots 1 and 2. The future development for Lots 3 and 4 
will be brought before the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council at a later time. 
 
Tracts A and B are reserved for stormwater detention for all the lots. Chrisbro will own these 
tracts and will be responsible for the maintenance and upkeep of these basins. There are no 
public improvements needed for these lots and all utility connections are private from the 
property line to the building. The Hilton Garden Inn is currently served with a 24-foot wide 
driveway from Nordic Drive and Commerce Drive. Access to both hotels and the future 
commercial businesses on Lots 3 and 4 will utilize these driveways. 
 
The HWY-1 zoning district requires a 20-foot setback along Nordic Drive and Commerce Drive 
and along the north and west side of the plat. The current hotel on Lot 1 and the proposed hotel 
on Lot 2 satisfy these setback requirements. There are no setbacks required along the interior 
driveways and access ways into the site. However, the final plat indicates that there is a 20 feet 
setback along north and south of the private drive for Lot 3 and Lot 4. The setback along the 
north and west side of the plat include some steep slopes that were created during the grading 
of the site. The property owner has maintained these sloped areas in turf grass and mows it on 
a regular basis. 
 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
All the utilities and internal road connections within the subdivision are private. The placed 
internal infrastructure is able to serve the platted lots with access to public streets and Right-of-
Way. All the placed utilities are available for development for the platted lots. The petitioner’s 
engineer has submitted a storm water management plan to the City and it has been reviewed by 
the City Engineer. The City Engineer has determined that the plan meets the City’s subdivision 
requirements. Storm water is collected within the existing parking lots and private drives, 
captured into intakes, and placed into a private underground storm sewer network that empties 
into two detention basins identified as Tract A and B before entering the public storm sewer 
located along Nordic Drive and Commerce Drive. The sanitary sewer to this development is 
provided by a private underground sanitary sewer network to service each lot before connecting 
into the public sanitary sewer located along Commerce Drive. Additional utility connections for 
Lots 3 and 4 will be reviewed at a later date when those site plans are submitted to the City.   
 
The property is located outside of the designated 100-year floodplain.   
 
The platting documents including the Deed of Dedication, mortgage release, abstract of title 
documents and plat fees have been submitted.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

231

Item 22.



STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The proposed Final Plat for Chrisbro Subdivision is consistent with the approved Preliminary 
Plat. Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of the submitted final plat for 
Chrisbro Subdivision at their regular meeting on 12th August 2020 with a vote of 8 ayes and 0 
nays. The Community Development Department also recommends approval of this proposed 
final plat. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
 
Discussion 
& Vote 
08/12/2020 

Mr. Atodaria provided background information. He explained that the plat is 
located at 7213 Nordic Drive in the Industrial Park and is in the HWY-1 
commercial zoning district. He displayed the location of detention basins and 
noted that all utilities and internal road connections are private and are available 
to all platted lots. He noted that the final plat is consistent with the approved 
preliminary plat.  Staff recommends approval with any comments or direction 
specified by the Commission and conformance to all staff recommendations and 
technical comments. 
 
Wendell Lupkes, VJ Engineering, stated that the owner doesn’t have immediate  
plans to develop the lots and the proposed second hotel has been put on hold  
due to COVID-19. They would like to get approval of the final plat to have it  
ready when potential buyers are ready.  
 
Ms. Saul made a motion to approve the item. Mr. Schrad seconded the motion.  
The motion was approved unanimously with 8 ayes (Hartley, Holst, Larson, 
Leeper, Lynch, Prideaux, Saul, and Schrad), and 0 nays. 
 
 

 
 

232

Item 22.



Industrial
Park

Le
xin

gto
n B

lvd

Tre
nto

nA
ve

No
rdi

c D
r

Cha nc el lor Dr

Saratoga St

Concord St

Shawnee Rd

Scranton St

Camden St

Commerce Dr

Performance Dr

W Ridgeway Ave E Ridgeway Ave

®¬27

®¬58

µ180.5

R-4

M-1

HWY-1

HWY-1

BR

A-1

A-1

Cedar Falls City Council
September 21, 2020

Chrisbro Final Plat
W Viking

Industrial Park

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls

University Ave
Rainbow Dr

Orchard Dr

E Dunkerton Rd

W 18th St

W Ridgeway Ave

S M
ain

 St

C ente rS t

Hu
ds

on
 Rd

Ma
in

St

W 12th St

W 1st St

E V ikin

g Rd
W Viking Rd

Un
ion

 Rd

W 27th St

E Greenhill Rd

Lincoln St

NUnion Rd E Lone Tree Rd

Le
ver

see
Rd

E 1st St
®¬57

®¬58

®¬27 £¤63
£¤20

£¤218

^

Location
Map

233

Item 22.



234

Item 22.



235

Item 22.



236

Item 22.



237

Item 22.



238

Item 22.



239

Item 22.



240

Item 22.



241

Item 22.



242

Item 22.



243

Item 22.



244

Item 22.



245

Item 22.



246

Item 22.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council  
 
 FROM: Brett Armstrong, Civil Engineer I 
 
 DATE: September 17th, 2020 
 
 SUBJECT: 2020 Sidewalk Assessment Project 
  Project No. SW-000-3204 
  Contract Documents 
 
Attached for your approval are the Form of Contract; the Performance, Payment, and 
Maintenance Bonds; Certificates of Insurance; and Form of Proposal with Feldman 
Concrete for the construction of the 2020 Sidewalk Assessment Project.  
 
The Department of Public Works recommends approving and executing the contract 
with Feldman Concrete for the construction of the 2020 Sidewalk Assessment Project. 
This project shall consist of the construction of Portland Cement Concrete (PCC) 
sidewalk according to the plans and specifications.  
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
 
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, City Engineer 
 Matt Tolan, Civil Engineer II 
  

 
 
 

247

Item 23.



248

Item 23.



249

Item 23.



250

Item 23.



251

Item 23.



252

Item 23.



253

Item 23.



254

Item 23.



255

Item 23.



256

Item 23.



257

Item 23.



258

Item 23.



259

Item 23.



260

Item 23.



261

Item 23.



262

Item 23.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Brett Armstrong, Civil Engineer I  
 
 DATE: September 16th, 2020 
 
 SUBJECT: 2020 Street Patching Project 
  Project No. RS-000-3243 
  Bid Opening 
 
On Friday, September 11th, 2020 at 2:00 p.m., bids were received and opened for the 
2020 Street Patching Project. A total of two (2) bids were received, with Boulder 
Contracting as the low bidder: 
 

 Base Bid 

Engineering Estimate $367,039.35 

Boulder Contracting $277,914.28 

K. Cunningham Construction Inc $322,712.58 

 
The Engineer's Estimate for this project was $367,039.35. Boulder Contracting of 
Grundy Center, Iowa submitted the low bid in the amount of $277,914.28. Attached is a 
bid tab for your reference. The project will be funded by Cedar Falls Utilities.   
 
We recommend acceptance of the lowest bid from Boulder Contracting in the amount of 
$277,914.28. On September 21st, 2020, the Contract, Bonds, and Insurance Certificate 
will be submitted for City Council approval. 
  
 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, City Engineer   
  

263

Item 24.



ITEM#
DESCRIPTION

UNITS

BID 

QUANTITY
UNIT PRICE

TOTAL 

ESTIMATE PRICE

1 REMOVAL OF PAVEMENT S.Y. 1014.5 10.00$        10,145.00$        $25.00 $25,362.50 $20.00 $20,290.00

2 REMOVAL OF CURB & GUTTER L.F. 571.2 10.00$        5,712.00$          $5.00 $2,856.00 $25.00 $14,280.00

3 REMOVAL OF DRIVEWAY S.Y. 6.8 50.00$        340.00$              $80.00 $544.00 $25.00 $170.00

4 REMOVAL OF SIDEWALK S.Y. 46.3 20.25$        937.58$              $12.00 $555.60 $25.00 $1,157.50

5 REMOVAL OF PAVED MEDIAN S.Y. 24.8 15.00$        372.00$              $38.00 $942.40 $25.00 $620.00

6 SAW CUTTING FOR REMOVALS L.F. 2217.2 10.00$        22,172.00$        $10.00 $22,172.00 $8.50 $18,846.20

7 EXCAVATION, CLASS 10 C.Y. 349.8 25.00$        8,745.00$          $35.00 $12,243.00 $20.00 $6,996.00

8 CURB, PCC 7 IN. 2.0 FT. WIDTH, TYPE "C" CLASS III L.F. 309.4 40.00$        12,376.00$        $47.00 $14,541.80 $70.25 $21,735.35

9 CURB, PCC 7 IN. 2.5 FT. WIDTH, TYPE "C" CLASS III L.F. 232.1 46.00$        10,676.60$        $49.00 $11,372.90 $70.25 $16,305.03

10 CURB, PCC 7 IN. 3.0 FT. WIDTH, TYPE "C" CLASS III L.F. 30.2 52.00$        1,570.40$          $75.00 $2,265.00 $80.00 $2,416.00

11 MODIFIED SUBBASE C.Y. 349.8 18.00$        6,296.40$          $60.00 $20,988.00 $40.00 $13,992.00

12 TOPSOIL, FURNISH & SPREAD C.Y. 20.19 75.00$        1,514.25$          $92.00 $1,857.48 $100.00 $2,019.00

13 HYDRAULIC SEEDING S.Y. 181.9 1.00$          181.90$              $15.00 $2,728.50 $25.00 $4,547.50

14 DRIVEWAY, P.C.C., 6 IN., CLASS "C" S.Y. 6.8 80.00$        544.00$              $116.00 $788.80 $250.00 $1,700.00

15 SIDEWALK, P.C.C., 4 IN., CLASS "C" S.Y. 43.1 47.25$        2,036.48$          $84.00 $3,620.40 $245.00 $10,559.50

16 SIDEWALK, P.C.C., 6 IN., CLASS "C" S.Y. 3 51.75$        155.25$              $250.00 $750.00 $355.00 $1,065.00

17 PEDESTRIAN RAMPS, DETECTABLE WARNING EACH 1 50.00$        50.00$                $200.00 $200.00 $325.00 $325.00

18 UTILITY PATCH, P.C.C., TYPE "C" CLASS III S.Y. 777.8 300.00$      233,340.00$      $120.00 $93,336.00 $125.00 $97,225.00

19 UTILITY PATCH, HMA (ST),  PG58-28S TONS 167.3 250.00$      41,825.00$        $110.00 $18,403.00 $165.00 $27,604.50

20 Median, P.C.C., 6", TYPE "C" Class III SY 24.8 75.00$        1,860.00$          $53.00 $1,314.40 $140.00 $3,472.00

21 COMPACTION OF SUBGRADE S.Y. 1014.5 1.00$          1,014.50$          $5.00 $5,072.50 $6.00 $6,087.00

22 VALVE ADJUSTMENT EACH 1 175.00$      175.00$              $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,300.00 $1,300.00

23 TRAFFIC CONTROL L.S. 1 5,000.00$  5,000.00$          $35,000.00 $35,000.00 $50,000.00 $50,000.00

367,039.35$      TOTAL $277,914.28 TOTAL $322,712.58

X X

X X

X X

Project Estimate:

ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE

2020 Street Patching Project                                                                                                                                          Project No.: RS-000-3243

Boulder Contracting 
K. Cunningham 

Construction

UNIT 

PRICES
UNIT PRICES

EXTENDED 

PRICES

EXTENDED 

PRICES

264

Item 24.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council  
 
 FROM: Brett Armstrong, Civil Engineer I 
 
 DATE: September 16th, 2020 
 
 SUBJECT: 2020 Street Patching Project 
  Project No. RS-000-3243 
  Contract Documents 
 
Attached for your approval are the Form of Contract; the Performance, Payment, and 
Maintenance Bonds; Certificates of Insurance; and Form of Proposal with Boulder 
Contracting for the 2020 Street Patching Project.  
 
The Department of Public Works recommends approving and executing the contract 
with Boulder Contracting for the 2020 Street Patching Project. This project involves the 
construction of forty-three (43) utility patches on existing City streets. Work shall include 
1,014.5 SY removal and replacement of the existing pavement; 167.3 ton HMA patches; 
571.7 LF of PCC Curb and Gutter; subgrade preparation; replacement of driveway 
approaches and pedestrian ramps.  
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
 
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, City Engineer 
  
  

 
 
 

265

Item 25.



266

Item 25.



267

Item 25.



268

Item 25.



269

Item 25.



270

Item 25.



271

Item 25.



272

Item 25.



273

Item 25.



274

Item 25.



275

Item 25.



276

Item 25.



277

Item 25.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
M E M O R A N D U M 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Ben Claypool, PhD, EI 

 DATE: September 16, 2020 

 SUBJECT: 100 Block Alley Reconstruction 

  City Project Number RC-039-3154 

  Final Acceptance  

The 100 Block Alley Reconstruction Project is completed and ready for final 
acceptance. This project replaced the existing alley surface with new concrete, new 
storm sewer infrastructure, bollards, stairway accesses for the businesses and parking 
lot, and landscaping between the parking lot and alley. Attached is the final pay 
estimate (releases retainage). 
 
The following documents have been received and reviewed by the Engineering Division 
and forwarded to the City Clerk's Office: 
 

A) Suppliers: 
- American Fence Company of Iowa 

- BMC Aggregates L.C. 
- Reliance Foundry 

- County Materials Corporation 

B) Subcontractors: 
- Bravo Contracting 
- K&W Electric, Inc. 
- Central States Concrete LLC 
- Tiedt Nursery, LTD 
- Utility Equipment Company 

- Weikert Contracting, Inc. 
 

Following is a breakdown of final contract costs for all items and their funding sources 
as none of the project was funded by the Local Option Sales Tax: 
 

 Black Hawk County Gaming Grant, 45,000 

 TIF-Downtown District, $194,969.99  

 Private Individual Stairwell Reconstruction Agreements, $43,670.80 

 Cedar Falls Utilities, $1,181.00 

 
I certify that the public improvements for the 100 Block Alley Reconstruction Project 
were completed in reasonable compliance with the project plans and specifications. 
 
 
              ______________________   9/16/2020__ 
     Ben Claypool, Civil Engineer II, PhD, EI            Date 
 
xc:  Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, P.E., City Engineer 
 Lisa Roeding, CMFO, Controller/City Treasurer       

278

Item 26.



279

Item 26.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Benjamin Claypool, Civil Engineer II, PhD, EI 
 
 DATE: September 16, 2020 
 
 SUBJECT: Maintenance and Repair Agreement  
  Post-Construction Stormwater Management Plan 
  Trinity Bible Church – 125 Orchard Drive  
 
 
 
The Post-Construction Stormwater Control Ordinance requires a formal maintenance 
and repair agreement for the stormwater management plan. The Maintenance and 
Repair Agreement will require the benefited property to undergo, at a minimum, an 
annual inspection and to maintain records of installation, maintenance and repair 
activities of the stormwater control devices. The agreement will also create an 
easement for the City to inspect and repair the stormwater control devices if the 
property owners fail or refuse to meet the requirements of the Maintenance and Repair 
Agreement. The Maintenance and Repair Agreement is attached for your review.  
 
The Engineering Division has reviewed the stormwater management plan and 
Maintenance and Repair Agreement for Trinity Bible Church located at 125 Orchard 
Drive and finds it in accordance with City Code. The Engineering Division recommends 
the agreement be accepted by the City Council and recorded at the Black Hawk County 
Recorder’s Office.  
 
 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
 

280

Item 27.



281

Item 27.



282

Item 27.



283

Item 27.



284

Item 27.



285

Item 27.



286

Item 27.



287

Item 27.



288

Item 27.



289

Item 27.



290

Item 27.



291

Item 27.



292

Item 27.



293

Item 27.



294

Item 27.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: August 17, 2020 
 
 SUBJECT: W. 27th Street Reconstruction 
  Project No. RC-000-3240   
  Iowa Department of Transportation 
  Iowa Clean Air Attainment Program (ICAAP) 
  Support of Application for ICAAP 
 
Please find attached the resolution in support of the City of Cedar Falls application for 
the Iowa Department of Transportation’s Iowa Clean Air Attainment Program (ICAAP) 
for the W. 27th Street Reconstruction project.  
 
The W. 27th Street Reconstruction will involve the reconstruction of the existing roadway 
from the new Cedar Falls High School east to Hudson Ave. This project is currently 
programmed in the CIP for construction in FY 2023-2024. The project is currently 
budgeted at $3,900,000. Programmed funds include Local Option Sales Tax, Street 
Construction Fund, Cedar Falls Community School District, and General Obligation 
Bonds.  
 
The ICAAP awards funds to projects with the highest potential for reducing 
transportation-related congestion and air pollution. 
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends approval and 
support of this ICAAP application with the Iowa Department of Transportation. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
 
 

295

Item 28.



 
 

 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

 

RESOLUTION ACCEPTING AND APPROVING THE SUPPORT OF ICAAP 
GRANT APPLICATION, CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council does hereby recommend approval of the 

ICAAP grant application for the Traffic Flow Improvements project on West 27th 

Street; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Black Hawk County Metropolitan Area Transportation 

Policy Board as the designated Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) for 

the urbanized area of Black Hawk County, Iowa, which includes the City of 

Cedar Falls supports the City of Cedar Falls ICAAP grant application for the 

Traffic Flow Improvements project on West 27th Street; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Iowa Department of Transportation administers the Iowa 

Clean Air Attainment Program (ICAAP) and awards funding to projects that will 

relieve traffic congestion and improve air quality; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Traffic Flow Improvements project on West 27th Street in 

Cedar Falls will help achieve these goals for the City of Cedar Falls and the 

metropolitan area; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Traffic Flow Improvements project conforms to the MPO’s 

transportation planning process and the 2045 Long-Range Transportation 

Plan.; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls will commit necessary local matching 

296

Item 28.



funding for the project implementation; and 

 

WHEREAS, upon project completion, the City of Cedar Falls will be 

responsible for adequately maintaining and operating the project for public use 

during the project’s useful life.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, that supports the City of Cedar Falls’ ICAAP 

grant application for the Traffic Flow Improvements project on West 27th Street. 

 
 

ADOPTED this _______ day of ___________________, 2020. 

 
 

 
__________________________________________ 
Robert M. Green, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 

        
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

297

Item 28.



298

Item 28.



299

Item 28.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
 
 DATE: September 16, 2020 
 
 SUBJECT: Mandalay Slope Stabilization Project 
  Project No. MC-091-3218 
  Receipt of Competitive Quotes 
 
Pursuant to Iowa State Code and The City’s Accounting Policies and Procedures 
Manual, the Engineering Division solicited competitive quotes from three contractors 
certified for installing the specified system of slope stabilization repair for the Mandalay 
Slope Stabilization Project. On Monday, September 14th, 2020 at 2:00 p.m., quotes 
were received and reviewed for the referenced project. All three Contractor’s responded 
to the solicitation with Peterson Contractor’s Inc., 104 Blackhawk Street, Reinbeck, IA 
50669 supplying a quoted amount to complete the work. The quoted amount received is 
$106,611.00. The Engineer’s estimate for this project is $104,040. The received quote 
is 2.4% above the Engineer's Estimate. Attached is the tabulation of quotes for your 
reference. 
 
Although the City having only received one quoted amount and that the quote is above 
the Engineer’s estimate, the Engineering Division feels it can be attributed to scheduling 
and uncertainty in the construction sector due to the ongoing pandemic. As a result of 
these findings, the Engineering Division recommends acceptance of this quote from 
Peterson Contractors, Inc. in the amount of $106,611.00. It is anticipated On October 
5th, 2020, the Contract, Bonds and Insurance Certificate will be submitted for City 
Council approval. 
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
  
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
  

300

Item 29.



TABULATION OF QUOTES
Mandalay Slope Stabilization
Project Number: MC-091-3218

ITEM NO. DESCRIPTION UNIT QUANTITY UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE
1 Mobilization LS 1.0 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $19,500.00 $19,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $19,500.00 $19,500.00
2 SRT Plate Pile System LS 1.0 $75,000.00 $75,000.00 $56,631.00 $56,631.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $56,631.00 $56,631.00
3 Connect Subdrain to Ex. Storm MH LS 1.0 $500.00 $500.00 $750.00 $750.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $750.00 $750.00
4 4" Subdrain LF 40.0 $20.00 $760.00 $65.00 $2,600.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $65.00 $2,600.00
5 Filling of Drainage Rill CY 20.0 $120.00 $2,280.00 $125.00 $2,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $125.00 $2,500.00
6 Manhole Casting - Remove and Replace EA 3.0 $1,000.00 $3,000.00 $750.00 $2,250.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $750.00 $2,250.00
7 Site Restoration - Seeding LS 1.0 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $18,940.00 $18,940.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $18,940.00 $18,940.00
8 Site Restoration - Sodding LS 1.0 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $3,440.00 $3,440.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,440.00 $3,440.00

$104,040.00 $106,611.00 $0.00 $0.00 $106,611.00

Bid Security (5%) X

TOTAL BASE BID

Bentons Sand and Gravel

DECLINED TO PROVIDE 
QUOTE

DECLINED TO PROVIDE 
QUOTE

GeoStabilization International AVERAGE OF QUOTESSeptember 14, 
2020 @ 2:00 PM BASE BID ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE Peterson Contractors, Inc.

301

Item 29.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO:   Honorable Mayor Robert M Green and City Council 
 
 FROM:  David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
 
 DATE:  September 16, 2020 
 
 SUBJECT: Greenhill Rd and South Main St Intersection Improvements   
    Public Hearing 
    Project Number RC-173-3228 
     
The City of Cedar Falls is planning to reconstruct the intersection of Greenhill Road and 
S Main St. The existing intersection will be replaced with a multilane roundabout to 
improve the overall flow of traffic in all directions. The project will include improvements 
to the water main, storm sewer and other miscellaneous roadway items. In addition, 
overhead electrical will be buried as a result of this project. Right-of-Way acquired for 
the project will be used for roadway alignment and utility relocations. Plans for the 
project shows the need for fee title and/or easement acquisitions from approximately 
five (5) properties.  
 
These acquired property acquisitions are a result of the new intersection design. Due to 
the changes in the roadway and the necessary utility relocations, the City plans to 
acquire the right-of-way on two properties along the northeast corner, and one property 
along the southwest corner. Temporary construction easements will be necessary for 
these three same properties, as well as two additional properties located on the 
northwest and southeast corners, respectively.  
 
Iowa law requires that the City Council hold a public hearing to authorize proceeding 
with the project, including the purchase of right-of-way.  The public hearing offers an 
opportunity for the public, especially those from whom the fee title and easement 
acquisition will be purchased, to comment on the project. 
 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 Ben Claypool, Civil Engineer II, PhD, EI 

302

Item 30.



106+00 107+00 108+00
109+00

110+00

111+00

112+00

113+00

114+00

115+00

116+00

117+00

118+00

119+00

20
5+

00
20

6+
00

20
7+

00
20

8+
00

20
9+

00
21

0+
00

21
1+

00
21

2+
00

SESMA,LILLIAN JEAN

113 BALBOA AVE

891425126050

MIKLO,ERIC J

119  BALBOA AVE

891425126003

SESMA,LILLIAN JEAN &
KALKWARF,MORGAN J

125 BALBOA AVE

891425126004

SUND,DAVID W &
SUND,PENNY S

201 BALBOA AVE

891425126005

GREEN,JANET W &
OSTBY,RANDY R

207 BALBOA AVE

891425126006

TREMBLY,SCOTT E JR &
TREMBLY,MEGAN R

213 BALBOA AVE

891425126007

FOSTER,RICHARD L

221 BALBOA AVE

891425126008

HETH,GARY L &
HETH,JANICE E

227 BALBOA AVE

891425126009

SCHICK,TROY &
SCHICK,JULIE

303 BALBOA AVE

891425126010

108 A BALBOA AVE

891425127000

108 B BALBOA AVE

891425127000

108 C BALBOA AVE

120 A BALBOA AVE

891425127000

FAREWAY STORES INC

4500 S MAIN ST

891425202006 FAREWAY STORES INC

4500 S MAIN ST

891425202006

4515 CONEFLOWER PKWY

891425202008

WILSON,GARY L &WILSON,JILL S

4319 S MAIN ST

891424376012

TILKES,ANDREW M

891424376017

TILKES,ANDREW M

4309 S MAIN ST

891424376011

KELLY,STEVEN E

223 SPRUCE HILLS DR

891424455027

WAGNER,MICHAEL D TRUST &
WAGNER,COLEEN M TRUST

217 SPRUCE HILLS DR

891424451020

SCHMIDT,KENT J &
SCHMIDT,MELISSA L

211 SPRUCE HILLS DR

891424451019

ANHALT,JOSEPH L &
ANHALT,KRISTI K

205 SPRUCE HILLS DR

891424451018

FAUCHER,ADAM &
ANDERSON,CHELSEA L
201 SPRUCE HILLS DR
891424451017

MC CORMACK,GARY A TRUST &
MC CORMACK,LINDA K TRUST
123 SPRUCE HILLS DR
891424451016

WHEATON,MICHAEL W
119 SPRUCE HILLS DR
891424451021

MC ELHOSE,BRIAN K &
MC ELHOSE,MELANIE J
4309 SPRUCE HILLS DR
891424451014

FERGUSON,STEVEN R &
FERGUSON,SANDRA E
4303 SPRUCE HILLS DR
891424451013

RINEHART,RONALD W &
RINEHART,REBECCA W
4227 SPRUCE HILLS DR
891424451012

SESMA,LILLIAN JEAN

891425126068

SCALE

EXHIBIT:  

GREENHILL ROAD IMPROVEMENTS
FROM S MAIN STREET TO CONEFLOWER PKWY

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
06/11/2020

RIGHT OF WAY ACQUISITION

S.
 M

AI
N

 S
TR

EE
T

GREENHILL ROAD

BALBOA AVENUE

SPRUCE HILLS DRIVE

09/03/2020

LEGEND

PROPOSED PROPERTY
ACQUISITION (FEE TITLE)

PROPOSED TEMPORARY
CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

1812 SF TCE
651 SF TCE
408 SF ACQUISITION

573 SF TCE
498 SF ACQUISITION

3985 SF TCE
2461 SF ACQUISITION

3205 SF TCE

303

Item 30.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE IN FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
60



304

Item 31.



305

Item 31.



306

Item 31.



307

Item 31.



308

Item 31.



309

Item 31.



310

Item 31.



311

Item 31.



312

Item 31.



313

Item 31.



314

Item 31.



315

Item 31.



316

Item 31.



317

Item 31.



318

Item 31.



319

Item 31.



320

Item 31.



321

Item 31.



322

Item 31.



323

Item 31.



324

Item 31.



325

Item 31.



326

Item 31.



327

Item 31.



328

Item 31.



329

Item 31.



330

Item 31.



331

Item 31.



332

Item 31.



333

Item 31.



334

Item 31.



335

Item 31.



336

Item 31.



337

Item 31.



338

Item 31.



339

Item 31.



340

Item 31.



341

Item 31.



342

Item 31.



343

Item 31.



344

Item 31.



345

Item 31.



346

Item 31.



347

Item 31.



348

Item 31.



349

Item 31.



350

Item 31.



351

Item 31.



352

Item 31.



353

Item 31.



354

Item 31.



355

Item 31.



356

Item 31.


	Top
	1.	Regular Meeting of September 8, 2020
	200908MINUTES

	2.	PH-Funding distribution of state's CDBG-CV
	1. PH for State CDBG-CV 9-15-20
	Cedar Falls Entitlement Application 9-1-20

	3.	PH-PPTE - Owen 5, LLC
	1_Council Memo for Tax Exemption 09-21-20
	2_Owen 5, LLC Site Map
	3_PPTE Ordinance - Owen 5, LLC

	4.	PH-PPTE- Tjaden Properties, LLC
	1_Council Memo for Tax Exemption 09-21-20
	2_Tjaden Properties, LLC Site Map
	3_PPTE Ordinance - Tjaden Properties, LLC

	5.	PH-PPTE - Zuidberg NA, LLC
	1_Council Memo for Tax Exemption 09-21-20
	2_Zuidberg NA, LLC Site Map
	3_PPTE Ordinance - Zuidberg NA, LLC

	6.	PH-DA - Panther Builders, LLC
	1_CC Memo for Approval of Agreement on 09-21-20
	2_Site Location Map
	3_EXECUTION VERSION DA Panther Builders, LLC 616 Clay St
	Resolution Approving Agreement - Panther Builders, LLC

	7.	2969-Rezone CFHS property
	2_CC Staff Report for CF High school
	3. ZoningLocationMap
	4. CFHS - Rezoning Plat-20200605
	1. 2969-Rezoning-CF High School

	8.	2970-12th St. and Walnut St.
	1  W 12th_Walnut Stop signs Ordinance Memo
	2-Ord 2970-Walnut 4-way stop

	9.	Mayor-Compost Fire Report
	2020-09-17_Compost_Facility_Fire_After_Action_Review_Report

	10.	Appointment of Student Liaison-Jordan Peterson
	2020-09-17_NISG _StudentLiaison_Appoint (2)

	11.	Resignation HRC
	Morse, Andrew

	12.	9/8/20 Work Session Minutes
	09-08-20 City Council Work Session Minutes

	13.	FY20 Report-Operations & Maintenance Division
	FY report cover 2020
	FY 20 report cc receive and file

	14.	Liquor Beer 9-21-20
	Liquor Beer 9-21-20

	15.	FY2020 Annual City Street Financial Report
	Street Financial Rpt- Council Memo
	FY2020 Cedar Falls Annual Street Financial Report

	16.	Assessment-1122 W. 22nd St.
	Supporting docs for CC

	17.	Assessment-234 Clark Drive
	Supporting docs for CC

	18.	Assessment-2013 Maplewood Drive
	supporting docs for CC

	19.	V&T Agreement-Customer Relationship Software
	iDSS Agreement for City Council wCover Memo

	20.	Western Home– Occupancy permits
	1. Council-Occupancy permit request 9-21-20
	2. 2020-9-14_WHC_Early occupancy request

	21.	Facade Improvements- 201 Main Street
	1.CC Staff report-Blue Room Lounge
	2. Letter of Intent
	3. Supplemental Material

	22.	Final Plat-Chrisbro Subdivision
	1 CC staff report for Chrisbro  Final Plat
	2. ZoningLocationMap
	3. Final Plat - Revised 7-21-2020
	4. Deed of Dedication - Signed
	5. Surveyor&#39;s Certificate signed

	23.	Contract-2020 Sidewalk Assessment
	1. 2020 Sidewalk Assessment Project Memo Rev.
	2. Form of Contract
	3. Performace, Payment and Maintenance Bond
	4. Insurance
	5. Form of Proposal

	24.	Low Bid - 2020 Street Patching Project
	1. Low Bid - 2020 Street Patching Project
	Bid Tabulation- 2020 Street Patching

	25.	Contract-2020 Street Patching
	1. 2020 Street Patching Memo
	2. Form of contract
	3. Performace, Payment and Maintenance Bond
	4. Insurance
	5. Form of Proposal

	26.	Certificate of Completion-100 Block Alley Reconstruction
	1. 100 Block Alley Reconstruction - Memo Final Acceptance
	2. PE #13 - Retainage Release

	27.	M&R Agreement - Trinity Bible Church
	1. Memo MRA Trinity Bible Church
	2. MRA - Trinity Bible Church

	28.	Grant Application-ICAAP-W. 27th Street Reconstuction
	1. W. 27th Street Grant Application
	2. Resolution for ICAAP Grant Application
	3. LOS MPO - W 27th St
	4. LOS CFCSD - W 27th St

	29.	Mandalay Slope Stabilization Project
	1. Memo_Mandalay Low Quote
	2. Quote Tabulation_2020.09.14

	30.	Set PH - Greenhill Rd./S. Main Street Intersection
	1. Memo - ROW Acquisition Setting of Public Hearing
	2. Right of Way Exhibit

	31.	Allow Bills and Payroll of 9/21/20
	1 Daily Invoices 092120
	2 Council Invoices 092120

	Bottom

